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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Jubilant Generics Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Jubilant Generics Limited (‘the Company’),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive loss), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss (including other comprehensive loss), its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

4. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. Other information does
not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Annual Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of Directors.
The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive loss, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls. that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material I, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the
Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control;

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls; NG/ S
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern, and

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 were audited by the
predecessor auditor, BSR & Co. LLP, who have expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial
statements vide their audit report dated 29 May 2023.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down
under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit,
we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial
statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Gompany so far
as it appears from our examination of those baoks except for the matters stated in paragraph
14(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(as amended);

¢) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
' ~Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed
_as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;
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f)  With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith refer to our

h

—_—

—_—

comments in paragraph 14(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 14(h)(vi) below on reporting under rule 11(g) of the of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company, as detailed in Note 28 to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2024,

i.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024;

i.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in Note 40(g) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in Note 40(h) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by
the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding
Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any
material misstatement.

v.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2024.

v, As stated in Note 41 to the financial statements and based on our examination which included
test checks, the Company, in respect of financial year commencing on 1 April 2023, has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same have been operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software other than the audit trail feature was not

| period 01 April 2023 to 30 November 2023, used for maintenance of all accounting and payroll
'] records by the Company. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any

. ; @/ ':-,' | enabled at the database level for accounting software to log any direct data changes for the
|
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instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of the accounting software where
such feature is enabled.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Nitin Toshniwal e 35
Partner \ov) >
Membership No.: 507568 U metds) 7
UDIN: 24507568BKEJWD7309 - o

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 May 2024
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Annexure B

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements of Jubilant Generics Limited under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Jubilant Generics Limited (‘the Company’)
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') (‘the Guidance Note'). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company's business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

4. Our auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

5 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

6. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
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provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

st i 0

Nitin Toshniwal o Pl
Partner N
Membership No.: 507568 T
UDIN: 24507568BKEJWD7309

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 May 2024
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Jubilant Generics Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March

2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment, and relevant details of
right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of other intangible
assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and

equipment, Capital work in progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets under
which the assets are physically verified in a phased manner over a period of 3 years,
which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and
equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets were verified during the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties

where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour
of the lessee), disclosed in Note 3(6) to the financial statements, are held in the name of
the Company.

(d) The Company has adopted cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including

right-of-use assets) and intangible assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any

benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals

(iii)

during the year, except for goods-in-transit and inventory lying with third parties. In our
opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate
and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were
noticed as compared to book records. In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these
have substantially been confirmed by the third parties and in respect of goods-in-transit,
these have been confirmed from corresponding receipt or dispatch inventory records.

(b) As disclosed in Note 11(a) to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned a

working capital limit in excess of INR. 5 crores by banks based on the security of current assets.
The quarterly statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the Company
with such banks and such statements are in agreement with the books of account of the Company
for the respective periods, which were subject to audit.

The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security to
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships during the year. Further, the Company has
granted loans to other parties during the year, in respect of which:

(a) The Company has provided loans to Others during the year as per details given below:
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Particulars Loans (INR Million)
Aggregate amount provided during the year (INR): 18.57
-Others
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect | 0.85
of above cases INR):
-Others

(b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the grant of

(c)

(iv)

(V)

(vi)

(vii)(a)

all loans provided are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of Interest has been stipulated and the repayments/receipts of principal and
interest are regular.

There is no amount which is overdue for more than 80 days in respect of loans granted to
such other parties.

The Company has granted loans which had fallen due during the year and were repaid on
or before the due date. Further, no fresh loans were granted to any party to settle the
overdue loans/advances in nature of loan.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, which are
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made,
as applicable. Further, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered under
section 185 and section 186 of the Act in respect of loans granted, guarantees and security
provided by it.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Act in respect of the products of the Company. We have broadly
reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by
the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.
However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state

insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly

deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been slight

delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
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(b) According to the informat
referred in sub-clause (a) w

(viii)

outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became

payable.

on account of any dispute except for the following:

ion and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
hich have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities

Name of | Nature | Gross Amount paid | Period to | Forum where dispute
the of dues | Amount under Protest | which  the | is pending
statute (INR million) | (INR million) amount

relates (F.Y.)
Income- | Income 210 - | 2015-16 Commissioner of Income
tax Act, | Tax Tax (Appeals)
1961
Income- | Income 35.77 - 2018-19 Commissioner of Income
tax Act, | Tax Tax (Appeals)
1961
Income- | Income 5.07 - | 2021-22 Commissioner of Income
tax Act, | Tax Tax (Appeals)
1961
Income- | Income 56.70 - | 2022-23 Commissioner of Income
tax Act, | Tax Tax (Appeals)
1961
Income- | Income 121.66 - | 2017-18 Income Tax Appellate
tax Act, | Tax Tribunal, New Delhi
1961
Central Excise 3.59 - | 2010-11 High court, Uttarakhand
Excise duty
Act, 1944
Central Excise 0.10 - | 2011-12 Deputy  commissioner
Excise duty (Excise), Dehradun
Act, 1944
Central Excise 4.14 414 | 2017-18  to | Appellate Tribunal, New
Excise duty 2018-19 Delhi
Act 1944
Good Goods 3.71 3.71 | 2017-18 Assistant Commissioner,
and and CGST, Roorkee
Services | Service
Act, 2017 | tax

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income-tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books

of accounts.
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(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received
from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any money by way of term loans during the year and did not have any term
loans outstanding at the beginning of the current year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the
Company on short term basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or associates.

() According to the information and explanations given fo us, the Company has not raised any loans
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries or associate companies.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
period covered by our audit,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has received whistle
blower complaints during the year, which have been considered by us while determining the
nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.

(xi)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party
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Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed
under section 133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company is not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business as
required under the provisions of section 138 of the Act.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the
period under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management
of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016) does not have any CIC.

(xvi) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year but had incurred cash
losses amounting to INR. 982.16 million in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information in the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors
and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall
due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has met the criteria as
specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, however, in the absence of average net profits in the
immediately three preceding years, there is no requirement for the Company to spend any amount
under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

¢



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the
members of Jubilant Generics Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024 (Cont’d)

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

INW'S
Nitin Toshniwal
Partner

Membership No.: 507568 2\
UDIN: 24507568BKEJWD7309 = ) 7]

Place: New Delhi i pe
Date: 27 May 2024



Jubilant Generies Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024
(MR in million unless otherwise stated)

iytios Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 3.280.97 3615.03
Capital work-in-progress ] 50.10 4359
Other intangible assets 1 128 64 192.57
Intangible assets under development 4 2.384 84 2.29891
Right-ol-use assets 35 1534 52,30
Finaneial assets
I Investments 5(a) 4,055.00 4.055.00
ii. Loans 5(b) .85 1.25
i Others financial assets 3(e) 19.04 17.01
Deferred tax assets (net) 6 1,609 64 1.573.51
Incame tax assets (net) 14.11 12,68
Other non-current assets 7 423 £
Total non-current assets 11,562.706 11,861.85
Current nssets
Inventories 8 1,338 #8 1,629.74
Financial assefs
. Trade receivables 5(d) 112110 1,040.88
1. Cash and cash equivalents i(e) 16.28 Y.55
iii,  Other bank balances 5(H) 3.80 3.60
iv. Loans 5(b) - 0.06
% Other financial assels S(c) 29028 26031
Other current assets 9 38706 52597
Tatal current assets 3,157.40 347011
Total assets 14,720.16 15,331.96
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 10{a) 25.80 25.80
Other equity 11.830.06 1 1.885.36
Total equity 11,855.86 11,911.16
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
FFmancial liabihties
i, Lease liabilities 11(b) 14.60 45.59
Provisions 13 B8.88 75.00
Other non-current liabililics 12 (a) 3872 4680
Total non-current linbilities 142.20 167.39
Current linbilities
Finaneial habilities
i Borrowings I 1{a) 1.026.00 1,122.53
il Lease liabilities 11{h) 844 19.52
iii.  Trade payables
Total outstanding dues ol micro, small and medium enterprises 11{c) 2872 3332
Total outstanding dues of ereditors other than micro. small and (o)
medium enterprises 138111 1.165.05
iv.  Other linancial liabilities 11{d) 11140 529.50
Other current liabilities 12(h) 127.86 300,59
Provisions 13 38.57 82.88
Tatal current liabilities 2,722.10 3,253.41
Total equity and linbilitics 14,720.16 15.331.96

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accowntanis

1CAl Firm Registration Mumber.: 001 Q?ﬁWNSDl‘}O 13
P\

Nitihy Toshniwal
Partner
Membership No: 307568
Place: Noida

Dale: 27 May 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of’

x>

Dr. Jaidev Sanjeey Rajpal
Managing Director & CEQ

Gurddgpsingh Sdod

Whele-Kme Directdr
DIN: 03383378
Place: Noida

Date: 27 May 2024

DIN: - 09734618
Place: Neida
Date: 27 May 2024




Jubilant Generies Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss [or the year ended 31 March 2024
(INR in million unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

ok 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Revenue from operations 14 3.790,20 3.199.65
Other income 15 92.57 66.57
Total income 3,882.77 3,266.22
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 16 701.55 912.56
Purchases of stock-in-trade 176.00 133.14
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in- 17 153,51 1889
progress
Employee benefits expense 18 1.034.90 1.336.00
Finance costs 19 43.71 15.78
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense 20 418.24 1.741.74
Other expenses 21 1,246,035 1.812.01
Tutal expenses 3,973.96 5.990.12
Loss before tax (91.19) {2,723.90)
Tax expense 22

- Current tax - 0.01

- Deferred tax credit (36.05) (836.30)
Total tax benetits (36.05) (836.29)
Loss for the year (55.14) (1,887.61)
Other comprehensive loss
Hems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit obligations (0.24) (7.81)
Income tax on re-measurement of defined benefit obligations 22 0.08 273
Other comprehensive loss for the year (0.16) (5.08)
Total other comprehensive loss (55.30) (1,892.69)
Loss per equity share of INR 10 each 34
Basic (INR) (21.37) (731.73)
Diluted (INR) (21.37) (731.73)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report ol even date attached

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountaits

1CAI Firm Registration Number.; 001076N/N500013

Nitin Toshniwal
Pariner
Membership No: 507568

Place: Noida
Date: 27 May 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

ilant Generies Limite
! ;
)\?z‘u

Dr. Jaidev San:iecv Rajpal

Whole-Yime Direcior
DIN; 03383578

Managing Direcior & CLO
DIN: - 09734618

Place: Noida
Date: 27 May 2024

Place: Noida
Date: 27 May 2024




JUBILANT GENERICS LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024

(INR in million unless otherwise stated)

a) Equity share capital

Balance as at 1 April 2022
Issue of equity shares

Balance as at 31 March 2023
Issue of equity shares
Balance as at 31 March 2024

(b) Other Equity (1)

25.80

25.80

25.80

Reserves and surplus

Capital Securities Retained Total

reserve premium earnings
As at 31 March 2022 3512.42 15,572.04 6,266.08 25,350.54
Profit/(loss) for the year - - (1,887.61) (1,887.61)
Adjustments on account of demerger (Refer note 38) (3,512.42) (8.060.07) - (11,572.49
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (net of tax) i ) (5.08) (5.08)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (3,512.42) (8,060.07)  (1,892.69) (13,465.18)
As at 31 March 2023 - 7,511.97 4,373.39 11,885.36
Profit/(loss) for the year (55.14) (55.14)
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (net of tax) (0.16) (0.16)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - - (55.30) (55.30)
As at 31 March 2024 - 7.511.97 4,318.09 11,830.00

(1) Refer note 10(b) for nature and purpose of other equity

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accouniarnls

ICAI Firm Registration Number.: 001076N/N500013

Nitin Toshniwal
Pariner
Membership No: 507368

Place: Noida
Date: 27 May 2024

Jasdeepsin

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Jubilant Generics Limited

Whaole-time
DIN: 03383578

Place: Noida

Date: 27 May 2024

W

Dr. Jaidev Sanjeev Rajpal
Managing Direcior & CEO
DIN: - 09734618

Place: Noida

Date: 27 May 2024




JUBILANT GENERICS LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
(INR in million unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

A. Cash flows from operating activitics

Lass before tax

Adjustments :

Depreciation and amortisation expense

(Gain)/loss on sale/disposalfdiscard of property, plant and equipment {net)
Finance costs

Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss

Allowance for expected credit loss

Interest income

Operating cash flows before working capital changes

(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables, loans. other financial assets
and other assets

Decrease in inventories

(Decrease)/ Increase in trade payables, other financial liabilities, other
liabilities and provisions z

Cash generated/ (used in) from operations

Income tax paid (net of refunds)

Net cash generated from/(used in) operafing activities

B. Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment. other intangible assels (including capital

work-in-progress and intangible assets under development)
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment
Investment in deposits

Loan repaid by fellow subsidiaries

Interest received

Net eash used in investing activities

C. Cash flows from financing activities #
{Repayment)/ proceeds from shorl term borrowings (net)
Finance costs paid

Payment of lease liabilitics (net)

Net cash generated (used in)/from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Add: cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents transferred pursuant to demerger (Refer note 38)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (vefer note 5(e))

# Refer note 11(b) for changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

Note: Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7

(91.19) (2.723.90)
418.24 1.741.74
(6.05) 335
4371 15.78
5.52 (4.29)
(197) 27.78
(2.32) (0.08)
365.94 (939.62)
(7.65) 517.61
290.86 152.46
(383.77) 137.25
265.38 (132.30)
(1.43) (15.58)
263.95 (147.88)
(73.29) (366.84)
9.08 158.09
(0.30) -
2 7.00
238 17.48
(62.13) (184.27)
(96.55) 482.55
(89.66) (76.77)
(8.88) (69.39)
(195.09) 336.39
6.73 424
9.55 5.46
2 (0.15)
16.28 9.55

"Statement of Cash Flows".

N%‘ in Toshniwat—

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial stalements
As per our report of even date attached

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accointants

NV

Partner
Membership No: 507568

Place: Noida
Date: 27 May 2024

For and on behall of the

Whole-tne Diredor
DIN: 03383578

Place: Noida
Date: 27 May 2024

oard of Directors ol

Dr, Jaidey Sanjeev Rajpal
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: - 09734618

Place: Noida
Date: 27 May 2024




Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(IMNR in million unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate Information

Jubilant Generics Limited (“the Company™) is a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated on 25 November 2013 under the
provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The Company is incorporated to engage in the manufacture and supply of Generics (Solid Dosage
Formulations). The registered office ol the Company is situated at Plot No 1A, Sector 16A, Institutional Area, Noida, Gautam Buddha Nagar,
Uttar Pradesh 201301, During the year 2020, the Company acquired the India Branded Pharmaceuticals {“1BP7) business from Jubilant
Pharmova Limited, erstwhile Jubilant Life Sciences Limited, which is a formulmtions business that caters to the Indian market

The Scheme of Arrangement (“the Scheme”) for demerger of the Active Pharmaceuticals Ingredients business undertaking of Jubilant Generies
Limited (“1GL™) and vesting of the same with the Jubilant Pharmova Limited (Ultimate Holding Company) on a going concern basis, with an
appointed date of 1 April 2022 was approved by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench (“the Tribunal™) vide its order (“the
Order™) dated 23 May 2022 (formal order received on 13 June 2022). The Company has liled the certified copy of the Order from the Tribunal
with the Registrar of Companies on 1 July 2022 [or registration in terms the requirements under the Companies Act, 2013 and therefore the
Scheme is effective with effect from | July 2022

2 Material accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. The accounting policies
adopted are consistent with those of the previous linancial year.

(a) Basis of preparation

(i) Statement of compliance

These Ind AS Financial Statements (“financial statements”) have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (“the Act™) and other relevant
provisions of the Act,

All the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in millions of Indian Rupees and are rounded Lo the nearest million, except per
share data and unless stated otherwise.

The financial statements are authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Dircctors on 27 May, 2024,

In accordance with Rule 6 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company does not prepare consolidated financial statements.

(ii) Historical cost convention
The standalone financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis, unless otherwise stated.

(b) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assels and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classilication. An asset is treated as current when:
+ It is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

« It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

« It is expected to be realised within twelve months afier the reporting period; or

* It is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting
period.

The Company classifics all other assets as non-current,

A liability is treated as current when:

+ It is expected (o be settled in normal operating cycle;

« 1t is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

+ It is due to be settled within twelve months atter the reporting period: or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets [or processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company
has identified a period of less than twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of current / non-current classification of assets and
liabilitics.

(c) Property, plant and equipment (PPL) and intangible asscts

(i) Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, which includes capitalized finance costs, less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. The cost of an item of a PPE comprises its purchase price including import duty, and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly
attributable cost of bringing the assel to its working condition of its intended use, Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the
purchase price. 7 =,




Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Marveh 2024
(INR in million unless otherwise stated)

Ixpenditure incurred on startup and commissioning of the project and/or substantial expansion, including the expenditure incurred on trial runs
(net of trial run receipts. it any) up to the date of commencement of commercial production are capitalised. Subsequent costs are included in the
assel’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate assel, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate assel is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred.

Advances paid towards acquisition of property. plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date, are shown under other non-current
assets and cost of assets not ready for intended use before the year end, are shown as capital work-in- progress.

(ii) Intangible assets

With regard to other internally generated intangible assets:

- Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding, is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

- Development expenditure including regulatory cost and legal expenses leading to product registration/ market authorisation relating to the new
and/or improved produet and/or process development capitalised only if development costs can be measured reliably, the produet or process is
technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to
complete development and to use the asset. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour, overhead costs that are
directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use, and directly attributable finance costs (in the same manner as in the case of PPL).
Other development expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

- Intangible assets that are acquired (including implementation of software system) are measured initially at cost.

- Affer initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the specific assct to which it relates.

(iii) Depreciation and amortization methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided on straight line basis on the original cost/ acquisition cost of assels or other amounts substituted for cost of PPE as per
the useful life specified in Part 'C' of Schedule 11 of the Act, read with notification dated 29 August 2014 of the Ministry of Corporate Alfairs,
except for the following classes of property, plant and equipment which are depreciated based on the internal technical assessment of the
management as under:

Category of assets Management Useful life as per

estimate of useful life|Schedule 11

Motor vehicles (owned) 5 years 8 years

Computer servers and networks (included in office equipment) 5 years 6 years

Dies and punches for manufacture of dosage formulations 1-2 years 15 years

Change parts for manufacture of dosage formulations 5 years 15 years

Employee perquisite related assets (except end user computers) (included in office equipment) 5 years, being the 10 years
period ol perquisite
scheme

Leasehold improvements 10 years Period of lease

Leasehold land which qualifies as finance lease is amortised over the lease period on siraight line basis.

The estimated useful Tives of intangibles are as follows:

Internally generated product registration 5 years
Rights 5 years
Software 5 years

Depreciation and amortization on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets added/ disposed of during the year has been provided on
pro-rata basis.

Depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted if
appropriate.

(iv) Derecognition

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
and disposal. Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of a tangible assel are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement ol Profit and Loss.

(d) Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill, intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life and intangible assets under development are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. The company’s
other non-financial assets. other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed al each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. 1f any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.




Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(INR in million unless otherwise stated)

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent eash inflows (i.e. corporate assets) are grouped together into cash-generating units
(CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assels that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other
assets or CGUs. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The
utits or groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds ils estimated recoverable amount. Impainment loss
recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first (o reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGLs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed, In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised
in prior periods, the Company reviews at reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does nol exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recopnised.

(e) Financial instrument

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equily instrument of another
entity.

Financial agsets :

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assel. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date
that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

+ Debt instruments at amortised cost

+ Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

« Debl instruments, derivatives and equily instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
» Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCI)

Debi instruments at amortised cost

A *debt instrument’ is measured al the amortised cost if the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and contractual terms of the assel give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimaled future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or the amortised cost of the financial liability. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Investments in subsidia and an associate

Investments in subsidiaries and an associate are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, i any. Where an indication of impairment
exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in
subsidiaries, the difference hetween net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) made! for the financial assets which are not fair valued through
profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For
all financial assets with contractual cash flows other than trade receivable, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless
(here has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECL.
(or reversal) thal is required to adjust the loss allowance al the reporting date is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.




Jubilant Generies Limited
Naotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(INR in million unless otherwise stated)

Derecognition of financial assels

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial assel or part of a group of similar financial assets) 1s primarily derecognized (i.e.,
removed from the Company’'s balance sheet) when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

+ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
swithout material delay to a third party under a *pass-through® arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantial Iy all the risks and rewards ol the assel, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates il
and 10 what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred assel Lo (he extent of the
Company’s continuing invalvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVPL, A financial liability is classified as at FVPL if it is classified as held for
trading, or il is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVPL are measured at fair value and net gains
and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. [nterest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derccognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires, When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another [rom the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms ol an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derccognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(f) Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value except scrap, which is valued at net estimated realisable value,

The Company uses weighted average method to determine cost for all categories of inventories except for goods in transit which is valued at
specifically identified purchase cost. Cost includes all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition inclusive of non-refundable (adjustable) taxes wherever applicable. The cost of work in progress and
manufactured finished goods include an appropriate share of variable and fixed production overheads. Fixed production overheads are included
based on normal capacity of production facilities.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished
products. Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are not written down below cost, except in cases
where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed their net realisable value. The
comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

(g) Cash and cash cquivalents
Cash and cash equivalent comprise cash at banks and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value,

(h) Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is
malerial, provisions are determined by discounting the expected luture cash flows at a pre-tax rate that refleets current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as a finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at reporting date, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When some or all of the economic benefits required Lo setlle a provision are
expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably,

Contingent liability

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require
an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respeet of which the likelihood of outllow of resources is
remote, no provision or disclosure is made. (Y




Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(INR in million unless otherwise stated)

(i) Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of products is recognised when the Company satisties a performance obligation upon transfer of control of products to
customers at the time of shipment to or receipt of goods by the customers. Service income is recognized when the Company satisfies a
performance obligation as and when the underlying services are performed.

Any fees including upfront fees received in relation to contract manufacturing arrangements is recognized over the period over which the
company satisfies the underlying performance obligations.

Revenues are measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, net ol tax collected from customers and remitted to
government authorities such as Goods and services tax (GST), sales tax, excise duty, value added tax and applicable discounts and allowances
including expected sales return ete. The computation of these estimates using expected value method involves significant judgment based on
various factors including contractual terms, historical experience, estimated inventory levels ete.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets are classified as unbilled
receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash and only passage of time is required as per
contractual terms. Contract liabilities are recognised when there are billings in excess of revenues. Contract liabilities relate o the advance
received from customers and deferred revenue against which revenue is recognised when or as the performance obligation is satisfied.

Income in respect of entitlement towards export incentives is recognised in accordance with the relevant scheme on recognition of the related
exporl sales. Such export incentives are recorded as part of other operating revenue.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method,

(j) Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits: All employee benelits falling due within twelve months of the end of the period in which the employees
render the related services are classified as short-term employee benefits, which include benefits like salaries, wages, short term compensated
absences, performance incentives, ete. and are recognised as expenses in the period in which the employee renders the related service and
measured accordingly.
(ii) Post-cmployment henefits: Post employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution plans as under:

(a) Gratuity

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined henefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides for a lump
sum payment to vested employees al retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount based on the
respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment.

(b) Provident fund

(i) The Company earlicr made contribution to the recognised provident fund - "VAM Employees Provident Fund Trust" (a multi-employer trust)
for most of its employees in India, During the previous year, the Company transferred the balance in VAM Employees Provident Fund Trust to
Regjonal Provident Fund Commissioner and started making contribution with Regional Pravident Fund  Commissioner for all the qualified
employees with effect from 1 December 2021, This is treated as a defined contribution plan.

The Company's contribution to the provident fund is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Other long-term employce benefits:

Compensated absences

As per the Company's policy, eligible leaves can be accumulated by the employces and carried forward to future periods (0 either be utilised
during the service, or encashed. Encashment can be made during service, on early retirement, on withdrawal of scheme, al resignation and upon
death of the employee. Accumulated compensated absences are trealed as other long-term employee henefits.

(iv) Termination benefits:

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

(v) Actuarial valuation

The liability in respect of all defined benefit plans and other long term henefits at the end of the financial year is accrued in the books of account
on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each year of
service as giving rise lo additional unit of employee benefil entitlement and measure each unil separately to build up the final obligation. The
obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of obligation
under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date, having maturity periods
approximating to the terms ol related obligations.

Remeasurment gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise. Remeasurment gains and
losses in respect of all defined benefit plans arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in other equity in the Statement of Changes in Equity and
in the Balance Sheet. Changes in lhe present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognised immediately in the Statement of profit and loss as pasl service cost. Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined
benefit plan are recognised when the curtailment or seltlement occurs. Any differential between the plan assets (for a funded defined benefit plan)
and the defined benefit obligation as per actuarial valuation is recognised as a liability if it is a deficit or as an asset if it is a surplus (1o the extent
ol the lower of present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reduction in future_contribution to the
plan). <AMNDIoR




Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(INR in million unless othenwise stated)

Past service cost is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits
become vested. To the extent that the benefits are already vested immediately following the introduction of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan,
the past service cost is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Past service cost may be either positive (where benefits are
introduced or improved) or negative (where existing benefits are reduced)

(k) Finance costs

Finance costs consist of interest and other costs thal an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Finance cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the finance costs. Finance costs that are directly attributable to the construction or
production or development of a qualifying assel are capitalized as parl of the cost of that asset. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. All other finance costs are expensed in the period in which they oceur,
Investment income earned an the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted [rom
the finance costs cligible for capitalization. Any difference between the proceeds (net ol transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method Ancillary costs incurred in
connection with the arrangement of borrowings are amortised over the period of such borrowings.

(1) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profi or loss except to the extent (hat it relates to a business
combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in OCL

= Current tax:

« Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected o be paid
or received after considering uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates cnacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

« Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to
realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

« Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for {inancial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

— temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of asses or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction:

— temporary differences related to frechold land and investments in subsidiaries and an associate, to the extent that the Company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

— taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill,

Deferred tax assets (DTA) include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give future
cconomic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability.

Deferred tax assels are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Unrecognised deferred Lax assets are reassessed at cach reporting date
and recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred lax
is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. The measurement ol deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of ils assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right Lo set ofT the recognised amounts, and it is intended (o
realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

(m) Leases

(i) Leases— Company as a lessor

The Company, as a Lessor, presents assets subjec Lo operating leases in the balance sheel according to the nature of the asset,

Lease income from operating leases is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term as per the agreed lease rentals, unless
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which use benefit derived from the leased asset is diminished.

(ii) Leases — Company as a lessee
The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, al inception of a contract. A contract is, or conlaims, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to contrel the use of an identified asset for a period ol time in exchange for consideration, To assess whether a contract conveys the right
1o control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contact mvolves the use of an identificd asset: (2) the Company
has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease: and (3) the Company has the right to direct the
use of the assel. “0MNDIE
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(INR in million unless otherwise stated)

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Land, buildings and vehicles which typically run for a period of 3 to 10 years.
with an option to renew the lease after that date, For certain leases, the Company is restricted from entering into any sub-lease arrangements. At
the date of commeneement of the lease, (he Company recognises a right-ol-use asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangemenis
in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of welve months or less (short-term leases). For these short-term leases, the Company
recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Right-of-use assels and lease linbilities includes the options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that they will be
exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if’ any.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying assel. Right-of-use assets are lested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. Impairment loss, if any. is recognised in the Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates based on information available as
at the date of commencement of the lease. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a lermination option. Lease liability and right-of-use asset have been
separately presented in the Balance shect and lease payments have been classified as financing cash fows.

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate
ihe lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain, The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis
and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease
term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease lerm, costs relating to the
termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to Company’s operations taking inlo account the location of the underlying
asset and the availability of suitable altematives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed o ensure that the lease term reflects the current
economic circumstances,

(n) Segment reporting

Board of Directors of the Company had been identified as the Chief Operating Decision maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108, Operating
Segments. Operaling Segments have been defined and presented based on the regular review by the CODM (o assess the performance of segment
and to make decision about allocation of resources. Accordingly, the Company has determined pharmaceutical as the only reportable segment,

(o) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees.
(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange pains and losses resulting from the seitlement of such transactions and from the translation of monectary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at balance sheet dale exchange rates are generally recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

MNon-monetary items that are measured al fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried al fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss, For
example, translation differences on non-monelary asscts such as equity investments classified as FVOCT are recognised in other comprehensive
income (OCI).

(p) Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating (o income are deferred and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period necessary 1o match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other operating income.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are
credited to Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other operating
income.

(q) Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
« the profit attributable to owners of the Company

+ by the weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equfl}{‘sﬂares issued
during the year and excluding (reasury shares, / c}}if‘f‘m O -
¢ "

&
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(INR in million unless otherwise stated)

(ii) Diluted carnings per share

Diluted carnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

« the after income tax effect of interest and other (inancing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

« the weighted averape number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares,

(r) Measurement of fair values

A number of the accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:
Level I: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. :

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indireetly
(i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a finance team that has overall
responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements. including Level 3 fair values.

The finance team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information is used to measure fair
values, then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to supporl the conclusion that these valuations meet the
requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classitied.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible, [T the inputs used to measure
the [air value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the Fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant 1o the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has
oceurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used in preparing these financial statements is included in the
respective notes.

(s) Share based payments

The Company has adopted the policy to account for Employees Welfare Trust as a legal entity separate from the Holding Company but as a
subsidiary of the Holding Company. Any loan from the Holding Company to the trust is accounted for as a loan in accordance with its term.

The grant date fair value of options granted (net of estimated forfeiture) lo employees of the Company is recognised as an employee expense, and
those granted to employees of subsidiaries is recharged (o subsidiaries or considered as the Company’s equity contribution and is added to the
carrying value of investment in the respective subsidiaries, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees become
unconditionally entitled to the options, The expense is recorded for each separately vesting portion of the award as if the award was, in substance,
multiple awards. The increase in equity recognised in connection with share based payment transaction is presented as a separale component in
equity under “share based payment reserve”. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of stock options that vesL.
For the option awards, grant date fair value is determined under the option-pricing model (Black-Scholes-Merton). Forfeitures are estimated at the
time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures materially differ from those estimates.

(t) Critical estimates and judgments
The preparation of Financial Statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities. income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

- Assessment of useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets — Note 2(c)

« Valuation of inventories — Note 2(f)

+ Recognition of revenue — Note 2(i)

= Fair value measurement — Note 2(q)

« Estimation of assets and obligations relating to employee benefits — Note 2(j)

« Recognition and estimation of tax expense including deferred tax — Note 2(1)

- Estimated impairment of financial asscts and non- financial assets — Mote 2(d) and 2(e)

+ Recognition and measurement of contingeney: Key assumption about the likelihood and magnitude of outflow of resources — Note 29
» Lease term: whether the Company is reasonably certain Lo exercise extension options — Note 2(m)

(u) Recent accounting pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate AfTairs (*MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments (o the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments o
the existing standards applicable to the Company, TR )
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(INR in million unless otherwise slated)

Note 5: Financial assets

5(a) Non-current Investments

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Investment in equity shares (at cost)
Unquoted investment (fully paid up)
(A) Subsidiary:

Jubilant Pharma NV 965.00 965.00
[13,900,000 (Previous year 13,900,000) equity shares of face value

Euro 1 per share]

(B) Associate*

Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc. 3,090.00 3,090.00
[200 (Previous year 200) equity shares with no par value]

Total non-current investments 4,055.00 4,055.00
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 4,055.00 4,055.00

*The Company, by virtue of its group holding, control 14.64% and thus has been shown as an Associate and kept as cost

in accordance with Ind AS-28.
5(b) Loans

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Non-current:
Unsecured, considered good

Loan to employees* 0.85 1.25
Total loans 0.85 1.25
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current:
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to employees® - 0.06
Total loans - 0.06

* There are no loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and their related
parties (as defined under companies act. 2013) cither severally or jointly with any other person, that (a) repayable
on demand or (b) without specifying any other term or period of repayment.

5(c) Others financial assets

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Non-current:
Deposits accounts with maturity more than twelve months from the

: 0.33 0.23

reporting date
Security deposits 18.71 16.78
Total 19.04 17.01
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Current:

Advances recoverable from related parties (refer note 28) 267.51 226.06
Unbilled revenue - 15.45 27.22
Interest receivable RIOFN 0.64 0.70
Others o 6.68 6.33
Total : 290.28 260.31
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Jubilant Generics Limited

Notes to the finaneial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

{INR in million unless otherwise stated)

5(¢) Cash and cash equivalents

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Balances with banks

- in current accounts 16.28 9.44
Others
- imprest - 0.11
Total cash and cash equivalents 16.28 9.55
5 (f) Other bank balance

As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Deposits accounts with maturity up to twelve months from the reporting date- held as margin

money®

Total other bank balance

3.80

3.60

3.80

3.00

*Deposit with orginal maturity of more than threee months but less than twelve months and against the credit facility extended to the

Company by banks

Note 6 : Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred income tax reflects the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amount of asset and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amount used for income tax purposes. Significant component of the Company’s net deferred income tax are as

follows:

The balance comprises temporary diffevences attributable to:

Deferred tax assets

Provision for

Expcndilurc

compensated allowed on o IEJSSCS MAT credit
absences and  actual payment f:arnc(t Entitlement Ofhiess Tael
4 ; forward
pratuity basis
As at 1 April 2022 111.23 36.72 761.22 1,629.27 29.01 2,567.45
Transferred in demerger (refer note 38) (61.02) (12.30)  (350.22) (749.60)  (5.24) (1.178.38)
(Charged)/Credited:

- 1o statement of profit and loss (11.18) 8.59 636.87 (13.539) 7.89 628.58

- to other comprehensive income (2.73) - - - (2.73)
As at 31 March 2023 36.30 33.01 1,047.87 866.08 31.66  2,014.92
(Charged)/Credited:

- to statement of profit and loss (11.90) 29.95 54.09 7.90 (4.94) 75.04

- to other comprehensive income 0.08 2 - - 0.08
As at 31 March 2024 24.42 62,96 1,101.96 873.98 26,72 2,090.04
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Deferred tax liabilities
PPL, Intangibles and sz
Right u[guse assets R Fotal
As at 1 April 2022 1,479.21 0.23 1,479.44
Transferred in demerger (refer note 38) (825.05) - (825.05)
(Charged)/Credited:

- to statement of profit and loss (212,98) s (212,98)
As at 31 March 2023 441.18 0.23 441.41
(Charged)/Credited: ey

- to statement of profit and loss 38.99 - 38.99 . \

As at 31 March 2024 480.17 0.23 480.40




Jubilant Generics Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(INR in million unless otherwise stated)

Reflected in the Balance Sheet as follows:

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Deferred tax assels 2.000.04 2.014.92
Deferred tax liabilities 480.40 441.41
Deferred tax assets, net: 1,609.64 1,573.51

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets (net):

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Balance as al the commencement of the year 1,573.51 1.087.81

Amount transferred in demerger (refer note 38) - (353.34)
Credit during the year recognised in statement of profit and loss (including MAT) 36.05 836.31
Credit during the year recognised in OCI 0.08 2.73
Balance as at the end of the year 1,609.64 1,573.51

A. The Company has recognized deferred tax assets (o the extent that management is reasonably certain that the same would be available
for adjustment against foreseeable tax profit. The Company has unabsorbed depreciation as per tax laws for INR 3,152.47 million as at
March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023:INR 2.954.42 million) that is available for off-setting against the future taxable profits of the Company.

The unabsorbed depreciation can be carried forward indefinitely as per tax laws.

B. Deferred tax asscls comprises o' Minimum alternate fax eredit (MAT credit) amounting to INR 873.98 million (Previous year INR
866,08 million). The MAT credit can be carried forward up to 15 assessment years. The MAT credit will expire in assessment year 2034-

35.2035-36, 2036-37, 2037-38.

This space intentionally left blank



Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(INR in million unless otherwise stated)

Note 7: Other non-current assets

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Capital advances 4,23 -

Total other non-current assets 4.23 =
Note 8: Inventories

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Raw materials (including packing material) 837.25 717.40

Work-in-progress 40.65 301.74

Finished goods 200,30 307.00

Traded goods 71.80 57.54

Stores, spares and others 188.88 246.00

Total inventories 1,338.88 1,629.74

1) Refer note 16 and 17, for consumption and change in inventories (other than stores and spares).
2) Includes Goods in transit of INR 28.29 million (previous year INR 11.39 million).
3) The Company has recorded the provision against the value of inventory including NRV (net realisable value) provision

of INR 149.11 million (previous year INR 130.49 million).

Note 9: Other current assets

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Prepaid expenses 100.72 93.81
Recoverable from/ balance with government authorities 228.63 327.84
Advance o employees 1.14 2.45
Advance for supply of goods and services 47.44 4947
Others 9.13 52.40
Total other current assets 387.06 525.97

This space intentionally lefl blank



Jubilant Generies Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(INR in million unless otherwise stuted)

Note 10; Equity share capital and other equity

10{a) Equity shave capital

As al Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Authorised
3,000,000 (Previous year 3,000,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 30.00 30.00
30.00 30,00
Issued and subseribed
2_,:?9,{;?5 (Previous year 2.579.665) equity shares of INR 10 each 25.80 25 80
Tully paicup
25.80 25.80
(1) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number INR in million Number INI in million
At the commencement of the year 2,579,665 25.80 2,579,665 25.80
Al the end of the year 2,579,605 25.80 2,579,665 25.80

(2) Terms and rights attached to cquity shares

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having par value of INR 10 each. Holder of each equity share is entitled to one
vote per share, In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion te the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(3) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Ate ont and end of the y A Bt
commencement and end o 1¢ year 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid-up held by Number % of total shares Number % of total shaves
Jubilant Phamlm_ Lumul'd, Sl_ngi'fp(.!re— the holding company (including 2.579.665 100% 2,579,665 100%
6 shares held jointly with 6 individuals)
(4) Sharcholding of promoters are as follows :
. As at As at
At commencement and end of the year 31 Mareh 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid-up held by Number % of total shares Number % of total shares
; o s : o 3 o T
Jubilant Pharma Limited, Singapore - the holding company (including 2,579,665 100% 2.579.665 100%

6 shares held jointly with 6 individuals)

(5) The Company has not issued any bonus shares neither has issued shares for consideration other than cash and has not bought back any shares in the
current and previous periods.

10(b) Other equity #
Nature and purpose of other equity

Particulars Asat Asne

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Securities premium 7.511.97 7,511.97
Retained earnings 4.318.09 437339

Securiifes prewiinm

The unutilized aceumulated excess of issue price over face value on issue of shares. This rescrve is utilized in accordance with the provisions of the
Act,

Retained earnings

Retained earnings represent the amount of aceumulated earnings of the Company and re-measurement differences on defined benefit plans.

# Refer statement of change in equity for movement.



Jubilant Generies Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(INR in million unless otherwise stated)

Note 11: Financial liabilities

11(a) Borrowings

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Loans repayable on demand
From banks (secured)
-Cash credit 166.00 7.55
-Working capital demand loan 860.00 1,115.00
Total current borrowings 1,026.00 1,122.55

Notes:

1. Working capital facilities (including cash credit) sanctioned by consortium of banks are secured by a
first charge by way of hypothecation, ranking pari-passu inter-se banks, of the entire book debts,
receivables and inventorics, both present and future, of the Company.

2. Short-term loans are availed in Indian rupees. Indian rupee loans carry interest rate ranging from 7.50
% to 9.50 % p.a. (Previous year interest rate ranging from 4.04% to 8.75% p.a.).

3. The Company has availed fund based and non-fund based working capital facility of INR 2,450
million (previous year INR 2,450 million) from a consortium of banks. The facility is secured by way of
hypothecation of the Company's entire stock of raw materials, semi-finished and finished goods,
consumable stores and spares and such other movables current assets including book-debts, receivables,
both present and future, on a first charge basis ranking pari-passu with other participating consortium
member banks.

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current borrowings are:

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current:
Financial assets
First pari-passu charge:
Receivables -note 5(d) L2110 1,040.88
Inventories- note 8 1,338.88 1,629.74
Total current assets pledged as security 2,459.98 2,670.62

NOB
&)

This space intentionally left hlank



yunyq Yo Kyouonuan avds siy

‘uone[PouRs SUIPN[oUI SULIA) 3SEI] Ay} Ul aFuBYD Aup Sapnjoul sjuaunsnIpY .

8TI61°1 0879 8L'S1 (sp's) 6T 6£9¢€ P8'8LL el
7v¢ 08'29 8LE1 = 3 (LL9L) 181 panIooe 1$aIu]
seTTll - 2 2 = SST8Y 00°0¥9 (15u) puewsp uo ajgeedal suro| uLs) HoYS
11°59 s 2 (s¥°g) 6T (6£°69) €0°LET S3111]1qP1| 9SBI']
. d i
€TOT U [§  pasiended pasuadxd Susmailoy:  SRsreTRIE AN samop T20T UME 1€
18 sy 1502 2duBUl 1502 JuEBUlg 7 ™ ysed 3unueulg JE sy
SIURWRAOW 1Y
17°750°1 05°Sk 1L°EP (61°cr) 00701 60°561- ST161°1 [e30L
LIS occh [L°¢h - z (99°68) 79'€ Paniode 153121U]
00°9Z0°1 = - z - (cc96) gszel’l (3ou) puzwap uo ajqeiedal SUEO| WAL LOYS
pOET = - (61°¢r) 0001 (38°8) 1159 sanijiqel| asea’]
d
$TOT WIEN 1 pasifended pasuadxa S TR U — smoy £207 YA [€
jE Sy 1502 IduUB UL 1502 3DUBULY §sed Suroueulf Je sy

SUIWRAOW IO

SANIANDE SUUBUY WO SUISLIE SAO[) YSBI 0] SAI[IqRI] JO SIUSWIIAOUI j0 UORRI[IDU0Y ()11

(PoIEIS 9SIALIAYIO SSI[UN UOH]|TLL Ul YN])

$707 UDIBIAl 1€ PAPUI Jeak 3] £0] SJUIIIE)S [RIDURUL Y} 03 SAJON

poJIIT SILIIUID) JuEIgNf



Jubilant Generies Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(INR in million unless otherwise stated)

11(e) Trade payables

Asal As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
T'rade payables
-Tolal outstanding dues of micro, small and medium enterprises (Refer Note 33) 28.72 33.32
“Total outstanding dues of ereditors other than micro, small and medium enterprises 1,381.11 1,165.05
Total trade payables 1,409.83 1,198.37
Amount payable to related parties included in above (Reler Note 28) 858.13 542.55
Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at 31 March 2024 is as follows :
Particulars - Qutstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
LSS Mor Total
Naot due Lessting 1-2 years  2-3 years Marethan 3
1 year years
Micro, small and medium enterprises 27.92 0.80 - B - 28.72
: i Il and medi
et ST, sk sne i 408.32 520,05 246,51 97.42 108.81 138111
enlerprises
Total 436.24 520.85 246.51 97.42 108.81 1,409.83
Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at 31 March 2023 is as follows :
Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
T 1 * thy Total
Not due Less than i2yeais 23 years NMore than 3
1 year years
Micro, small and medium enterprises 12.44 20.77 0.11 - - 3332
Other l!}an micro, small and medium 352,42 767.79 2765 _ 17.19 1.165.05
enterprises
Total 364.86 788.56 27.76 - 17.19 1,198.37

This space intentionally lefi blank |




Jubilant Generics Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(INR in million unless otherwise stated)

11(d) Other current financial liabilities

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest acerued but not due on borrowings 3.17 3.62
Capital creditors 12.62 12.14
Employee benefits payable 95.61 88.49
Other payable to related parties - 42525
Total other current financial liabilities 111.40 529.50
Note 12 (a): Other non-current liabilities
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deferred revenue 16.07 16.78
Deferred income - government grant 22.65 30.02
Total other non-current liabilities 38.72 46.80
Note 12 (b): Other current liabilities
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Contract liabilities 3.14 4,32
Deferred income - government grant 7.37 7.67
Advance from customers (refer note 28) 52.81 209,55
Statutory dues payables 64.54 79.05
Total other current liabilities 127.86 300.59
13: Provisions
As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Current:

Provision for gratuity (refer note 23)

Provision for compensated absences (refer note 23)
Provision for sales return (Refer movement below)

Movement:

Opening as on | April 2023
Addition during the year
Deletion during the year
Closing as on 31 March 2024

Non-current:
Provision for gratuity (refer note 23)
Provision for compensated absences (refer note 23)

12.99 41.82
11.59 29.38
13.99 11.68
38.57 82.88
11.68 10.72
13.99 11.68
(11.68) (10.72)
13.99 11.68
56.95 45,58
31.93 29.42
88.88 75.00




Jubilant Generies Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(INR in million unless otherwise stated)

Note 14: Revenue from operations

Ior the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2023

Sale of products

- Finished goods

- Traded goods

Sale of services

Other operating revenue

- Export benefits

- Serap sale

= Others

Tatal revenue from operations

Disaggregation of revenuc:

2.909.46 2.175.70
462.34 352.12
335.50 485.27

59.70 29.02
8.08 8.90
14.52 148.64
3,790.20 3,19%.65

In the following table, revenue (other than other operating revenue) is disaggregated by primary geographical market, service

lines and sales channels.

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Primary geographical markets

India 539.44 491.11
Americas and Europe 1.695.96 808.10
Rest of the world 1.471.90 1,713.88
Total 3,707.30 3,013.09
Major product/service line
Dosage 3.371.80 2,527.82
Management of services 335.50 485.27
Total 3,707.30 3,013.09
Contract balances
As al As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Trade receivables LI121.10 1,040.88
Coniract assels 1545 27.22
Contract liabilities (including advance {rom customers) 72,02 230.65

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price is as follows:

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2023

Contracted Price
Reductions towards discounts/variable consideration components
Revenue recognised

Nate 15: Other income

3,707.55 3.027.28
0.25 14.19
3,707.30 3,013.09

For the year ended

31 Mareh 2024

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2023

Government grant income

Interest income

Gain on sale/disposal/diseard of property, plant and equipments (net)
Rental income

Reversal of allowance for expected loss

Other iteins

Tatal other income

7.67 8.31
2.32 0.08
6.05 =
74.50 53.90
1.97 -
- 1,28
92.57 66.57
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Note 16: Cost of materials consumed

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Raw materials consumed
Total cost of materials consumed

701.55

912.56

701.55

912.56

Note 17: Changes in inventories of worle-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2024

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2023

Opening balance
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Stock-in-trade

Total opening balance
Adjustment / Transfer pursuant to the demerger Scheme
(Refer note 38)
Closing balance
Waork-in-progress
Finished goods
Stock-in-trade

Total closing balance

Total changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-

in-progress
Net change in inventories

Note 18: Employee benefits expense

301.74 2.074.26
307.00 798.73
57.52 50.40
666.26 2,923.39
. (2.218.24)
40.65 301.74
200.30 307.00
71.80 57.52
312.75 666.26
353.51 38.89
353.51 38.89

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Salaries, wages, bonus, gratuity and allowances

Contribution to provident fund and other funds (refer note 23)
Employee share-based payment expense (refer note 28)

StafT welfare expenses

Total employee benefits expense

Note 19: Finance costs

872.53 1.183.80
48.25 65.67
67.52 25,15
46.60 61.38

1,034.90 1,336.00

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Interest expense (1)
Other borrowing costs
Total finance costs

43.71 15.44
- 0.34
43.71 15.78

(1) Finance costs on general borrowings amounting to INR 45.50 million (previous year INR 62.24 million) has been capitalised

during the year..

Note 20: Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of right of use assets (refer note 35)

Impairment of intangible assets (including intangibles under development)

(refer note 4)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4)
Total depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense

337.98 351,98
7.53 48.17

- 1.202.34
72.73 139.25
418.24 1,741.74
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Note 21: Other expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2023

Power and fuel
Consumption of stores and spares and packing materials
Processing charges
Rental charges (refer note 28 & 36)
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Advertisement, publicity and sales promotion
Travel and conveyance
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and machinery
Buildings
Others
Office expenses
Vehicle running and maintenance (refer note 28)
Printing and stationery
Telephone and communication charges
Staff recruitment and training
Donation (including corporate social responsibility expenditure)
(refer note 31)
Payments to auditors (refer note 21 (a))
Legal and professional fees
Freight and forwarding (including ocean fieight)
Directors' sitting fees
Subscription
Bank charges
Claims and other selling expenses
Comumission on sales
Net foreign exchange loss
Allowance for expected loss

Loss on sale/disposal/discard of property, plant and equipments (net)

Miscellancous expenses
Total other expenses

118,71 164.86
119,30 229.61
13.85 140.25
.85 1.37
191.09 157.65
16.79 20.49
145.17 123.15
85.06 73.25
40.13 79.52
427 11.24
119.46 227.20
10.81 34.83
243 5.02
1.26 3.53
6.02 12.56
4.87 8.86

= 18.63

1.00 125
303.94 373.59
28.52 33.23
0.85 0.19
10.84 15.05
1.80 1.49
14.32 2043
2.90 $.26
0.77 228

. 2778

. 335

0.04 13.09
1,246.05 181201

Note 21(a): Details of payments to auditors (excluding applicable taxes and including out of pocket expenses)

For the year ended

31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Payment to auditors

As auditor:

Audit fee

In other capacities

Certification and other service fees
Total payments to auditors

This space intentionally left blank

0.70 1.05
0.30 0.20
1.00 1.25
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Note 22: Income tax expense

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Prafit or loss section
Current income tax:
Current income lax charge for the year -

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years 0.01
- (.01

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax for the year (32.07) (845.51)

Adjustments in respect of deferred tax of previous years (3.98) 9.21
(36.05) (836.30)

Income tax (benefit) / expense reported in the Statement of Profit and (36.05) (836.29)

Loss

QCl section

Tax related to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss {(.08) (2.73)

Income tax charged to OCI (0.08) (2.73)

Reconciliation between average effective tax rate and applicable tax vate for the year:

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Profit before income tax (91.19) (2,723.90)
At India's statutory income tax rate o' 34.944% (31 Mar 2023 34.944%) (31.87) (951.84)
Effect of non-deductible expenses and exempt income - 127.20
Effect of lower tax rate on temporary difference of current year (0.20) (13.94)
Effect of prior year re-assessments (3.98) 9,22
Others - (6.93)
Income ‘T'ax expenses reported in the Statement ot Profit and Loss (36.05) (836.29)

Note 23: Employee Benefits in respect of the Company have been calculated as under:
(A) Defined Contribution Plans

The Company has certain defined contribution plan such as employee state insurance, employee pension scheme, wherein
specified percentage is contributed to them. During the year, the Company has contributed following amounts to:

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Employer's contribution to provident fund (refer note 23(B)(ii)) 20,606 44.03
Employer's contribution to employee’s pension scheme 1995 16.94 2043
Employer's contribution to employee state insurance 1.65 1.21

(B) Defined Benefit Plans

(i) Gratuity:

In Accordance with Ind AS 19 “Employee benefits™ an actuarial valuation has been earvied out in respect of gratuity.

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an independent actuary, at cach
balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method. The discount rate assumed is 7.13% p.a. (Previous year 7.35 % p.a.)
which is determined by reference to market yield at the balance sheet date on Government bonds. The retirement age has been
considered at 58 years (Previous year 58 years) and mortality table is as per TALM (2012-14) (Previous year IALM (2012-14),

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation is 10% p.a. for first three years and 6% p.a. thereafier
(Previous year 10% p.a. Tor first three years and 6% p.a. thereafter), taking into account of inflation, seniority, promotion and
other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation:

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 87.39 277.13
Current service cost 12.84 14.71
'l'rfmsl'er In / Out {including transferred pursuant to the demerger Scheme. (19.41) (163.42)
refer note 38)
Interest cost 6.42 8.18
Actuarial (gain)/loss 0.24 7.81
Benefits paid (17.54) (57.02)
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 69.94 §7.39
Fair Value of Plan Assets**
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Plan assets at the beginning of the year - 29.67
Expected return on plan assets - -
Contribution by emplayer . -
Actual benefits paid - -
Fund management charges - -
Transferred pursuant to the demerger Scheme (refer note 38) - (29.67)
Plan assets at the end of the year - -
## Iy respect of certain employees of Nanjangud manufacturing unit of the Company, which has been transferred out as a result
of demerger Scheme (Refer note 38).
Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 69.94 87.39
IFair value of plan assets at the end of the year - -
Net liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet 69.94 §7.39

Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss under employce benefit expense

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Current service cost 12.84 14.71
Interest cosl 6.42 818
Expenses recognised in the Statement of profit and loss 19.26 22.89

Amount recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Actuarial loss/(gain) on arising from change in demographic assumption 4.11
Actuarial loss/(gain) on arising from change in financial assumption 1.49
Actuarial loss/(gain) on arising from experience adjustment (5.35)

(0.96)

(0.94)
2.70

Company’s best estimate of contribution during, next year is INR 19.70 million (previous year INR 19,77 million).
As at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 there are no plan assets. 100% of the plan assets were invested in insurer managed

funds.

Sensitivity analysis

Particulars

31 March 2024

Impact on defined

Assumptions Sensitivity level benefit
Bisen s 00.5% increase (1.53)
().5% decrease 1.61
0.5% increase 1.6l

Future salary increase >
£ 0.5% decrease

(1.55)
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Particulars 31 March 2023
: TR Impact on defined
Assumptions Sensitivity level 3
benefit
. 0.5% increase (0.62)
Discount rate
0.5% decrease 0.63
. T s ().3% increase 0.64
Future salary increase
0.5% decrease (0.63)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring
at the end of the year and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the key assumption while
holding all other assumptions constant,

(ii) Provident Fund:
The Company made monthly contributions to the recognised provident fund - "VAM Employees Provident Fund Trust" (a multi-
employer trust) for most of its employees in India. for the period starting with 1 April 2021 till 30 November 2021. Post 1

December 2021, these contributions are made with the regional provident fund authority for qualifying employees. Under the
scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits.

The Company has contributed NIL to Provident Fund Trust (previous year: INR 65.67 million) during the year.
(C) Other long term bencfits (Compensated absences) @

As at As at
31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 43.52 58.80

This space intentionally lefi blank =| \r \
/
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Note 24: Fair value measurements

- 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Note levd ol Amortised Amortised
hierarchy FVPL FvoCi i FVPL FVOCI® %
cost cost
Financinl ussets
fexeluding investient in subsidinries)
Trade receivables (a) - - 1,121.10 - . 1,040 88
Loans () 3 = - .85 - - 1.31
Cash and cash cquivalents (a) - - 16.28 - = 9.55
Other bank balances (a) - - 380 . - 3.60
Other linancial assels (i) - - 309.32 - - 27732
Total financial assets - - 145135 - - 1,332.66
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (a) 3 - - 1,026.00 - - 1,122.55
Trade payables (a) - - 1. 409,83 - - 1.198.37
Other financial liabilities (a) - - 111.40 - - 529.50
Lease liabihity (a) - - 23.04 - - 65.11
Total financial liabilities - - 2,570.27 - - 2,915.53

Note:

(a} Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities with short term maturities is considered as approximate 1o respeetive carrying amount due to the short
term maturitics of these instruments.

(b) Fair valuation of non-current financial assets has been disclosed to be same as carrying value as there is no significant difference between carrying value
and fair value.

(¢) All the assets and liabilites belong to Level 3.

There are no transfers between Level 1. Level 2 and Level 3 during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

Note 25; Financial Risk Management

A. Financial risk management
The Company has expasure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

Risk management framework
The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework,

The Company, through three layers of defense namely policies and procedures, review mechanism and assurance aims to maintain a diseiplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. The Audit committee of the Board with top management
oversees the formulation and implementation of the Risk management policies. The risks are identified at business unit level and mitigation plan are
identified, deliberated and reviewed at appropriate forums.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from linancial instruments:
- credit risk (see (1))

- liquidity risk (see (ii)): and

- markel risk (see (iii)).

(i) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter party to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and

arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, loans and investments. The carrying amount of financial assels represents the maximum
credit risk exposure,

Trade receivables and other financial assets

The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Company's standard
payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company’s review includes external ratings, if they are available, financial statements, credit
agency information. industry information and business mtelligence. Sale limits are established for each customer and reviewed annually. Any sales exceeding
those limits require approval from the appropriate authority as per policy.

In monitoring customer credit risk. customers are compared according to their credit charaeteristics, including whether they are an individual or a legal
entity, whether they are an institutional dealers or end-user customer, their geographic location, industry, trade history with the Company and existence of
previous financial difficulties.

Expected credit loss for trade receivables:

Based on internal assessment which is driven by the historical experience/ current facts available in relation to default and delays in collection thereof. the
credit risk for trade receivables is considered low. The Company estimates its allowance for trade receivable (excluding reated parties) using lifetime
expected credit loss.
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Company’s exposure to eredit risk for trade receivables using provision matrix is as follows:

As at 31 March 2024 Asat 31 March 2023
Gross Allowance Net earrying Gross Allowance Net
carrying for credit amount carrving for credit carrving
MNot due 621.15 0.76 620039 357.05 (.59 33646
0-90 days 409.89 048 40941 235.50 048 235.02
90-180 days 65.25 0.73 64.52 25437 0.17 254,40
180-270 days 9.22 1.55 767 134 31 0.85 133.46
270-360 days 3.42 1.41 4.01 887 1.53 7.34
Mare than 360 days 36.59 41.49 1510 103 15 48.95 34.20
1,167.52 46.42 1,121.10 1,093.45 52.57 1,040.88

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance of trade receivables are as follows:

31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Ralance at the beginning of the year 52.57 33.90
Transferred pursuant to the Scheme of

demerger (refer note 38) : ()
(Less)fadd: Reversed/provided during the (3.94) 2670
year (net of reversal)

Less: Amount written of™* (2.21) -
Balance at the end of the year 46.42 52.57

* Assets are wrilten off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a deblor declaring bankruptey or failing to engage in a repayment plan
with the Company.

Expected credit loss with respect to other financial asseis;

With regards to all financial assets with contractual cash flows other than trade receivable, management believes these (o be high quality assets with
negligible credit risk. The management believes that the parties from which these financial assets are recoverable, have strong capacity to meet the
obligations and where the risk of defaull is negligible and accordingly no provision for excepted credit loss has been provided on these financial assets.
Break up of financial assets other than trade receivables have been disclosed on balance sheet.

(i) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that arc settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset, The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is (o ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufticient liquidity
to meel ils liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions. without incurring unaceeptable losses or risking damage to the
Company's reputation,

The Company’s treasury department is responsible for managing the short term and long term liquidity requirements. Short Lerm liquidity situation is
reviewed daily by the treasury department. Longer term liquidity position is reviewed on a regular busis by the Beard of Directors and appropriate decisions
are taken according Lo the situation.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The fallowing are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include
contractual interest payments and exclude the impact ol netting agreements.

Contractual Cash flows (1)

31 March 2024 Carrybig Total Witk 1 More than 1 year
Amount year

Naon-derivative financial liabilities

Borrowings 1,026.00 1,026.00 1,026.00 -

Trade payables 1.409.83 1.409.83 1.409.83 -

Other Tinancial liabilities 111.40 111.40 11140 -

Lease hability 23.04 23.04 844 14 .60
2,570.27 2,570.27 2,555.67 14.60

~ Contractual Cash lows (1)

31 March 2023 Catrying Total Vrikttnd More than 1 year
Amount year
Non-derivative financial liabilitics
Borrowings 1, 12255 1,122.55 1,122.55 -
Trade payables 1.198.37 1,198.37 1,198.37 =
Other financial liabilities 529.50 52950 529.50 - TN
Lease hability 6511 6511 19.52 45.59 oMo
2,915.53 2,915.53 2,869.94 45589 Jo/
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(Eif) Market visk

Markel risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates that will affeet the Company’s income or the value of'its
holdings of financial instruments. The abjective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,
while optimising the return,

Currency risk

The Company is exposed Lo currency risk o the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies i which sales. purchases and borrowings are
denominated. The curreneies in which the company is exposed 1o risk are USD. Euro, CAD and Other,

The Company follows a natural hedge driven eurreney risk mitigation policy to the extent possible. Any residual risk is evaluated and appropriate risk
mitigating steps are taken.

Exposure to currency risk

The summary quantitative data about the Company’s exposure 1o currency risk as reported to the management of the Company 1s as follows:

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 Mareh 2023

USD Eura CAD Other usp Eura CAD Other
Trade and other receivables 550.96 48.02 2741 T08.14 64727 103,77 15.11 21416
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - - - - -
Short term borrowings - - - - - - - -
Trade and other payables (574.06) (3111} (24.83) {3.22) (708.65) (26.84)  (7.25) (15.67)
NERRbt e of Tzl yandtion (23.10) 16.91 258 70492 (61.38) 7693 786 25849
exposure

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening/weakening of the USD, Euro, CAD and others against all other currencies at 31 March would have affected the
measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis
assumes (hat all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain conslant and ignores any impact on farecast sales and purchases.

Profit or loss (before tax)
Strengthening  Weakening

31 March 2024

USD (1% movement) (0.23) 023
Euro (1% movement) 017 {017y
CAD (1% movement) 0.03 (0.03)
Other (1% movement) 7.05 (7.05)
31 Mareh 2023

USD (1% mavement) (0.61) 0.6l
Euro (1% movement) 0.77 0.77)
CAD (1% movement) 0.08 {0.08)
Other (1% movement) 2.58 {2.58)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Quctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company is exposed to interest rate risk because funds are borrowed at both fixed and {loating interest rates. Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash
flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rate. The borrowings of the Company are principally denominated in INR with a mix of fixed and floating
rates of interest. The Company has exposure Lo interest rate risk, arising principally on changes in base lending rate. The risk is managed by the Company by
maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floaling rate borrowings.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of the Company is as follows:

The following table provides a break-up of the Company’s fixed and floating rate borrowings and floating rate loan given:

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Fixed rate borrowings -
Floating rate barrowings 1,026.00 1,122.55
Total borrowings 1,026.00 1,122.55

The sensilivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to mterest rates for floating rate liabilities assuming the amount of the liability
autstanding at the year-end was outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates bad been 25 basis points higher / lower and all other variables were held constant, the Company’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2024
would decrease / increase by INR 2.57 million (previous year decrease / increase by INR 2.81 million). This is mainly altributable to the Company’s
exposure o interest rates on its variable rate borrowings. A0 RO
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Note 26: Segmental Information

Board of Directors of the Company has been identified as the Chiel Operating Decision maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS
108, “Operating Segments”. Operating Segments have been defined and presented based on the regular review by the CODM to
assess the performance of segment and to make decision about allocation of resources. Accordingly. the Company has
determined pharmaceutical as the only reportable segment.

Information about Geographical segments:

The geographical information analyses the Company’s revenue (other than other operating revenuc) and non-current assets by
the Company’s country of domicile and other countries. In presenting the geographical information, segment revenue has been

based on the geographical location of customers and segment assets were based on the geographical location of the assets.

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Primary geographical markets

India 539.44 491.11
Americas and Europe 1,695.96 808.10
Rest of the world 1.471.90 1,713.88
Total 3,707.30 3,013.09
As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Non-current assets (by geographical location of assets)*
Within India

#*Non-current assets are excluding financial instruments and deferred fax assets.

Major customers comprising more than 10% of total revenue

5.898.12

6.233.33

5,898.12

6,233.33

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Within Group
Qutside group
Note 27: Capital management

Risk management
The Company’s ohjectives when managing capital are to:

1.317.78
491,82

353.06
1.001.82

« safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for its sharcholders and benefits

for other stakeholders. and

« maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital,

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharcholders, return

capital to sharcholders. issue new shares or sell assets (o reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry. the Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:

Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances) divided by *Total equity’ (as shown in the

Balance Sheet).

The gearing ratios were as follows:

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Net debt 1.005.92 1,109.17
Tolal equity 11.855.80 11.911.16
Net debt to equity ratio 0.08 0.09
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Note 28: Related Party Disclosures
(i) Name of the Related Parties

Ultimate holding company
Jubilant Pharmova Limited

Holding company
Jubilant Pharma Limited

Fellow subsidiaries (including partnership firm)
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC

Jubilant Biosys Limited

Jubilant Therapeutics India Limited
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc.
Jubilant Draxlmage Inc.

Jubilant Pharma Australia Pty Limited
Jubilant Draximage Limited

Jubilant Pharma SA (Pty) L

Jubilant Business Services Limited
Jubilant Pharma UK Limited

Jubilant HollisterStier General Partnership
Jubilant Pharma ME FZ - LLC

Subsidiary

Jubilant Pharma NV

Associate

Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc.

Step-down subsidiaries

Jubilant Pharmaceuticals NV

PSI Supply NV

Other entities

Jubilant Enpro Private Limited

Jubilant Bhartia Foundation

Ogaan Retail Pvt. Ltd.

Jubilant Ingrevia Limited

Jubilant Foodworks Limited

Jubilant Life Sciences (Shanghai) Limited

Key Managerial Personnel

Ms. Sudha Pillai (Independent Director) - resigned on 31 March 2024
Mr. Jasdeepsingh Gurdeepsingh Sood (Whole-time Director)
Dr. Jaidev Sanjeev Rajpal (Managing Director & CEQ)

Mur. Arvind Chokhany (Director)

Sr. No.

Particulars

Description of transactions:

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Sales of poods and services:

Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 406.96 201.19
Jubilant Pharma Holding Inec. 1.41 151.87
Jubilant Pharma ME FZ -LLC 28.32 12.84
Tubilant HollisterStier LLC 43.20 55.27
PSI Supply NV 86.93 90.82
Jubilant DraxImage Inc. 24,59 80.72
Jubilant Pharma UK Ltd 930.68 183.22
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited - 0.18
Jubilant Pharmova Limiled 45,04 183.47
Jubilant Biosys Limited 2.56 -
Jubilant Therapeutics India Limited 0.28 -
Jubilant HollisterStier General Partnership 12.86 21.14
Jubilant Pharma SA (Pty) Ltd 113.72 85.86

1,696.55 1,066.58
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Particulars

Sr. No, At .
Description of transactions:

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

2 Rental and other expenses:

Jubilant Pharmova Limited 11.48 48.57
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited - 5.25
11.48 53.82
3 Purchase of goods and services:
Tubilant Pharma Australia PTY LTD 1.63 2.45
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 330.97 308.20
Jubilant Biosys Limited 2.51 647
Jubilant Pharma Holding Ine. 16.70 -
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 52.04 -
Jubilant Pharma SA (Pty) Lid = 9.40
Jubilant Pharma UK Litd - 12.83
Jubilant Foodworks Limited .44 -
404.29 339.35
4 Interest income
Jubilant Draximage Limited - 0.23
- 0.23
5 Sale of merchandise exports from India scheme serip:
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 2.90 83.75
2.90 83.75
6 Net assets transferred pursuant to demerger Scheme (Refer
note 38)
Jubilant Pharmova Limited - 11,572.49
- 11,572.49
7 Royality Income
Jubilant Pharma ME FZ -LLC 4.15 -
4.15 -
8 Recovery of expenses:
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 1.76 -
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 4.34 439.84
Jubilant DraxImage Ine. 0.81 -
Jubilant Pharma Limited 0.22 0.10
Jubilant Business Services Limited - 2.00
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 0.01 0.04
Jubilant Pharma Holding Ine. - 12.62
7.14 454.60
9 Sale of property plant and equipment:
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 2.05 33.15
Jubilant Biosys Limited - 21.31
Jubilant DraxImage Inc. - 22,73
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 336 -
5.41 77.19
10 Reimbursement of expenses:
Jubilant Pharma Holding Inc. 1.65 96.34
Jubilant Pharma UK Ltd - 240
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 10,64 11.04
Jubilant DraxImage Ine. 0.08 0.27
Jubilant Pharma SA (Pty) Lid 0.04 4.09
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 93.04 5545
Jubilant Pharmaceuticals NV §1.31 55.52
PSI Supply NV 0.32 0.20
Jubilant Pharma Limited 83.39 81.05
Jubilant Pharma Australia PTY LTD 1.63 .58
Jubilant Enpro Private Limited 3.03 -
Jubilant Business Services Limited 0.03 -
Ogaan Retail Pvt. Ltd. 0.04 -
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC 2.86 -
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited ) = 57.51
Jubilant Foodworks Limited A NDIG, - 0.01
T TSN 278.08 364.46




Jubilant Generics Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(INR in million unless otherwise stated)

Sr. No Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
) Description of transactions: 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
11 Donations:

Jubilant Bhartia Foundation - 18.63
- 18.63
12 Remuneration and related expenses™;
Mr. Jasdeepsingh Gurdeepsingh Sood 19.34 22.54
Dr. Jaidev Sanjeev Rajpal 121.34 43.11
140.68 65.65
13 Sitting fees:
Ms. Sudha Pillai 0.85 0.19
0.85 0.19
14 Recovery of payments made on behalf of API:
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 2.83 230.19
2.83 230.19
15 Collections made on behalf of APL
Jubilant Pharmova Limited - 74.36
- 74.36
16 Rental income
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 87.98 63.60
87.98 63.60
17 Employee benefit transfer:
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 34.14 14.27
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 0.25 0.53
34.39 14.80
Particulars As at

Sr. No.
o Amount outstandings:

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

18 Trade payables:

Jubilant Pharma Australia Ply Lid 0.96 1.13
Jubilant DraxImage Inc. 0.40 0.31
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 293.67 141.37
Jubilant Pharma Holding Inc. 3358 113.91
Jubilant Pharmaceuticals NV 12,96 24.66
Jubilant Life Sciences (Shanghai) Limited - 94.86
Jubilant Pharma SA (Pty) Lid - 0.03
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC 2.86 -
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 236.66 -
Jubilant Biosys Limited 2.30 5
Jubilant Foodworks Limited 0.41 -
Jubilant Pharma Limited 196.15 111.08
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 78.17 55.20
§58.13 542.55
19 Other payables:

Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Ine. - 425.25
- 425.25

20 Advance from customers
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 28.32 165.09
28.32 165.09




Jubilant Generies Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(INR in million unless otherwise stated)

Sr. No. Particulars As al
| Amount putstandings: 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
21 Trade receivables:

Jubilant Pharma Holding Inc. - §1.50
Jubilant Pharma ME FZ -LLC 45.71 12.98

PSI Supply NV 19.40 100.27
Jubilant Biosys Limited - 2.37
Jubilant Pharma SA (Py) Litd $3.03 56.01
Jubilant Pharma UK Ltd 602.93 187.82
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc, - 136.54
Jubilant Draximage Inc, - 12.69
Jubilant HollisterStier General Partnership - 3.52
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC - 7.27
Jubilant Pharmova Limited - 11291

751.07 713.88

22 Other receivables:

Tubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 239.85 34.46
Jubilant Biosys Limited 0.10 18.93
Jubilant Draximage Ine. 0.38 22.54
Jubilant Pharma Holding Inc. .43 0.78
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC 13.47 0.00
Jubilant HollisterStier General Partnership 12.79 (0.01)
Jubilant Pharmova Limited - 143.49
Jubilant Therapeutics India Limited 0.25 -
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited - 5.85
Jubilant Pharma Limited 0.24 0.02

267.51 226.06

* As the liabilities for the gratuity and compensated
as 2 whole. the said liabilities pertaining specifically to KMP are not known and hence, not

Breakup of remuneration to key management personnel were as follows::

absences are provided on an actuarial basis, and calculated for the company
included in the above table.

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Short term employment benefits
Post employment benefits
Share based payment

Sitting fees

64.80
3.37
67.52
0.85

39.66
0.84
25.15
0.19

This space intentionally lefi blank




Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(INR in million unless otherwise stated)

Note 29: Contingent liabilitics to the extent not provided for

(a) Claims against the Company, disputed by the Company, not acknowledged as debt:

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Central Excise 7.83 7.83
Goods and Service Tax 3.71 3.71
Income Tax 221.29 -
Others 132.62 12680

Additionally, the Company is involved in other disputes, lawsuits, claims, governmental and/ or regulatory inspections, inquiries,
investigations and proceedings, including commercial matters that arise from time to time in the ordinary course of business.

The Company believes that none of these matters, cither individually or in aggregate, are expected to have any material adverse effect on its
financial statements.

(b) In July 2021, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“USFDA") placed the Roorkee [acility under import alert, which restricted supplies
1o the USA from the Roorkee facility. However, subsequent to the USFDA inspection in the current year (completed on 2 February 2024}, the
inspection classification has been concluded as “VAI” (Voluntary Action Indicated) in April 2024. Based on (his inspection and the USFDA
VAl classification, the Facility is considered to be in acceptable state of compliance with regard to current Good Manufacturing Practices
(¢cGMP). With this, the USFDA has concluded that this inspection is “closed”. The Company will continue to take all necessary steps, (o
ensure continuous quality improvements and ensure cGMP compliance al the Roorkee site.

Note 30: Commitments as at year end

(a) Capital commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital aceount (net of advances) is INR 13.48 million (previous year INR 0.55
million).

(b) Other commitments:

There is no export obligation in the current year (previous year INR 127.39 million) under EPCG scheme to be completed over a period of six
years on account of import of Capital Goods at concessional import duty. Export obligation under Advance License Scheme/DFIA scheme on
duty free import of specific raw materials, remaining outstanding is INR 44.27 million (previous year INR 3.04 million).

Note 31: Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expense

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Prescribed CSR expenditure as per Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013

Details of CSR spent during the period

a) Construction / acquisition of any asset = 3
b) On purposes other than (a) above (1) - 18.63

- 18.63

(1) Included in Donation (Refer note 21 and note 28)

(2) The Company has met the criteria as specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, however, in the absence of average net profits in the immediately three preceding years, there is no
requirement for the Company to spend any amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act in the current year.

Note 32: Government grant recoverable INR 11.17 million (Previous year INR 18,15 million) and Government grant recognized INR 67.37
million (Previous year INR 37.19 million) in Statement of Profit and Loss.

This space intentionally left blank




Jubilant Generies Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(INR in million unless otherwise stated)

Note 33: Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

The information as required to be disclosed in relation to Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties

have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

Particulars s Asiat
31 Mareh 2024 31 Mareh 2023
The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the period 2872 3332
The interest due on principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the period i
The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), along with the amount of the payment made to & -
the supplier beyond the appointed day during the period
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding the interest specified under # '
the MSMED Act
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the period a =
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of S g
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Acl
Note 34: Earnings/(Loss) per share
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Profit for basic and diluted eamings per share of INR INR in million (55.14) (1.887.61)
10 each
Weighted average no. of shares outstanding during the Nos 2,579.665 2,579,665
period
Basic INR (21.37) (731.73)
Diluted INR (21.37) (731.73)
Note 35: Leases
a) As a lessee:
Leases under Ind AS 116 for the period ended 31 March 2024
The details of the right-of-use assets held by the Company is as follows:
Deseription Operating building  Operating vehicle Finance vehicle Total
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at [ April 2022 266.13 1.94 11.67 279.74
Additions/adjustments = = 292 292
Deductions/adjustments on account of demerger (4.94) . (1.09) (6.03)
Deductions/adjustments (158.90) - (3.60) (162.50)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 102.29 1.94 9.90 114,14
Additions/adjustments 747 - 2.53 10.00
Deductions/adjustments (71.55) (1.94) (1.45) (74.94)
Balancc as at 31 March 2024 38.21 - 10.98 49,19
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 1 April 2022 157.12 1.93 5.57 164.62
Addition on account of transition to Ind AS 116 - - - -
Amortisation charge for the period 45.82 0.01 233 48.16
Deductions/adjustments on account of demerger
(Refer Note 38) (0.60) - (0.43) (1.03)
Deductions/adjustments (146.32) - (3.60) (149.92)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 56.02 1.94 3.87 61.84
Addition on account of transition to Ind AS 116 &
Amortisation charpge for the period 5.68 - 1.85 7.53
Deductions/adjusiments (33.71) (1.94) 0.14 (35.51)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 27.99 - 5.86 33.85
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2023 46.27 - 6.04 52.30
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2024 10.22 - 5.12 15.34




Jubilant Generies Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(INR in million unless otherwise stated)

Amount vecognised in Statements of Profit or Loss:

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest on lease liabilities 247 8.12
Rental expense relating to short term leases 1.85 1.37
Taotal 4.32 949

Amgount recognised in statement of cash flows:

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total cash outflow for leases (8.58) (69.39)
Total (8.88) (69.39)

b) As a lessor:
The details of assets included in note 3, given on operating lease are as follows:

As al

. 31 March 2024 Lease rent
Paigicnlars Ace lated received

Gross Block cu"m, “. Net Block

Depreciation

Land 374.60 - 374.60
Building 1.139.08 36331 775.77 74.56
Tatal 1,513.68 363.31 1,150.37 74.56

The Company has given its land and building at Nanjangud on lease vide lease deed dated 29 July 2022 to Jubilant Pharmova Limited for the
purposes of occupation and to conduct its business with effect from 1 July 2022 for a period of 3 years till 30 June 2025. The deed can be
extended for a period of 3 years on mutnally agreed terms by way of a fresh deed.

Note 36: The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer
pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Income-tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence of such information and
documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Company is in the process of updating the documentation for the specified domestic
transactions entered into with the specified persons and the international transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the
financial year and expects such records to be in existence before the due date of filing of income tax return. The management is of the opinion
that its specified domestic transactions and international transactions are at arm’s length so (hat the aforesaid legislation will not have any
impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation.
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(INR in million unless otherwise stated)

Note 38: The Scheme of Arrangement {“the Scheme™) for demerger of the Active Pharmaceuticals Ingredients business undertaking of
Jubilant Generics Limited (“JGL”) and vesting of the same with the Jubilant Pharmova Limited (*Ultimate Holding Company”) on a
going concern basis. with an appointed date of | April 2022 was approved by Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal. Allahabad
Bench (“the Tribunal™ vide its order (“the Order”) dated 23 May 2022, The Company had filed the certified copy of the Order from the
Tribunal with the Repistrar of Companies for registration in terms the requirements under the Companies Act, 2013, to make the
Scheme eflective,

Scheme of Arrangement for Demerger of the API Undertaking of the Company

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 16 July 2021 had approved the Scheme of Arrangement (“Scheme”) and
subsequently filed with the Tribunal for demerger of the API Undertaking of the Company and vesting of the same with Jubilant
Pharmova Limited. on a going concern basis with an appointed date of | April 2022. The Scheme was approved by Honourable NCLT,
Allahabad Bench (“the Tribunal™ vide its order dated 23 May 2022 (formal order received on I3 June 2022). The said NCLT order
was filed with the Registrar of Companies registration in terms the requirements under the Companies Act, 2013 by both the Company
and Jubilant Pharmova Limited on | July 2022 thereby making the Scheme effective on 1 July 2022.

Accounting of the demerger of the API Undertaking as per the approved Scheme:

Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date on 1 July 2022, and with effect from the Appointed Date, the Company
accounted for the demerger of the AP Undertaking in its books of accounts as under:

(i) The Company reduced the book values of assets and liabilities of the AP1 Undertaking as at the close of business on the day
immediately preceding the appointed date of 1 April 2022 in its books of accounts: and

(ii) the Company made an adjustment equal to the book values of the AP Undertaking, lirst in the Capital Reserve to the extent
available, and (hereafter residual balance in the Securities Premium under the head “Other Equity™,

Note 39: The Company has foreign currency receivables aggregating to INR 167.93 million (previous year INR 55.24 million) which
are outstanding for more than nine months as at 31 March 2024 and foreign currency payables apgregating to INR 372.24 million
(previous year INR 693.44 million) which are outstanding for mere than six months as at 31 March 2024, The Company is in the
process of applying 10 its authorised dealer bank for extension of time for receipt and payment of above mentioned receivables and
payables respectively.

This space intentionally lefi biank




Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(INR in million unless otherwise stated)

Note 40: Additional Information:

a) No proceeding has been initiated or pending agains! the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder,

b) The Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.
¢) The Company has not entered any transactions with the companies struck off.

d) There are no transaction which has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961,

) The Company has complied with the number of layers of companies prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

f) There are no charges or satisfaction yet (o be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

g) There are no funds which have been advanced or loaned or invested (either [rom borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, thal the Intermediary shall:

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or

on behalf of the Company or

i) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

h) There are no funds which have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:
i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ullimate Beneficiaries”) by or
on behalf of the Company or

ii} Provide any puarantee, securily ot the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
i) The Company (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have any Core
Investment Company,

i) The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.
k) The quarterly returns and statement of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with
the hooks of accounts,

Note 41: The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 inserled by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring companies, which
uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account, shall use only such accounting software which has a feature of recording
audit lrail of each and every transaction, crcating an edit log of cach change made in the books of account along with the date when
such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled.

The Company uses accounting software for maintaining, its hooks of account, which includes a feature for recording an audit trail (edit
log) of all relevant transactions throughout the year. However, the audit trail (edit logs) feature for any direct changes at the database
level was not enabled in the accounting software for the period from 01 April 2023 to 30 November 2023. The management
implemented the audit trail (edit logs) feature at the database level for all accounting software in the current year effective from 01
December 2023,

Note 42: No subsequent event occurred post balance sheet date which requires adjustment in the financial statement for the year ended
31 March 2024,

Note 43: The figures of the corresponding previous year have been regrouped wherever considered necessary to correspond to current
year disclosure. The impact of such reclassification/regrouping is not material.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Julfitant Generics Limited
ICAI Firm Registration Number.: 001076N/NS00013

LI
< R \/"

Dr. Jaidev Sanjeey Rajpal
Managing Director & CED
DIN: 03383578 DIN: - 09734618

Toshniwal
Partner
Membership No: 507568

Place: Noida Place: Noida
Date: 27 May 2024 Date: 27 May 2024

Place: Noida
Date: 27 May 2024




Jubilant Generics Limited

Ind AS Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023



Jubilant Generics Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

INR in million
Notes As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 3,615.03 7445.41
Capital work-in-progress 3 43.59 64299
Goodwill 4 B 1,371.36
Other intangible assets 4 192.57 284.86
Intangible assets under development 4 2,298.91 3,346.89
Right of use assets 37 52.30 115.12
Fmancial assets
i Investments 5(a) 4,055.00 4,055.00
ii. Loans 5(b) 1.25 3,255.39
ii. — Others 5(c) 17.01 44.63
Deferred tax assets (net) 6 1,573.51 1,087.81
Income tax assets (net) 12.68 2.90
Other non-current assets 7 - 17.62
Total non-current assets 11,861.85 21,669.98
Current assets
Inventories 3 1,629.74 5,014.03
Fmancial assets
i Trade receivables 5(d) 1,040.88 1,927.08
i. Cash and cash equivalents 5(e) 8.55 5.46
ii. ~Other bank balances 5(f) 3.60 3.83
iv. Loans 5(b) 0.06 7.22
v.  Other financial assets 5(g) 260.31 870.96
Other current assets 9 525.97 1,136.61
Total current assets 3,470.11 8,965.19
Total assets 15,331.96 30,635.17
.... Continued



Jubilant Generics Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

INR in million

Notes As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capial 10(a) 25.80 25.80
Other equity 11,885.36 25350.54
Total equity 11,911.16 25,376.34
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i Lease Liabilities 11(b) 45,59 71.47
Provisions 13 75.00 313.53
Other non-current liabilities 12 (a) 46.80 61.01
Total non-current liabilities 167.39 446.01
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i.  Bomrowings 11(a) 1,122,55 640.00
ii.  Lease Liabilities 11(b) 19.52 65.56
tii. Trade payables 11(¢)

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and

small enterprises 33.32 33.11

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than

micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,165.05 2,394.73
iv.  Other financial kabilities 11(d) 529.50 685.99
Other current liabilities 12 (b) 300.59 894.58
Provisions 13 82.88 93.05
Current tax liabilities (net) 2 5.80
Total current liabilities 3,253.41 4,812.82
Total liabilities 3,420.80 5,258.83
Total equity and liabilities 15,331.96 30,635.17

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For BSR & Co, LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 101248W/W- 100022

0;,]}
Manish Gupta
Pariner

Membership No: 095037

Place: Noida
Date: 29 May 2023

For and on be half of the Board of Directors of
Jubilant Generies Limited

9 M” ,L«/) y

singh
Gurdeepsingh Seod

Whole-time Director

DIN: 03383578

Place : Noida
Date: 26 May 2023

Dr. Jaidev Sanjeev
Rajpal

Managing Director
& CEO

DIN: - 09734618

Place : Noida
Date: 26 May 2023




Jubilant Generics Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

INR in million

For the year ended

For the year ended

Notes 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue from operations 14 3,199.65 6,724.23
Other income 15 66.57 88.06
Total income 3,266.22 6,812.29
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 16 912.56 1,975.57
Purchases of stock-in-irade 133.14 111.04
Changes 1n inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade 17 38.89 (061)
and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense 18 1,336.00 1,198.72
Finance costs 19 15.78 24.57
Depreciation, amoritsation and impairment expense 20 1,741.74 840.95
Other expenses 21 1.812.01 2,535.83
Total expenses 5,990.12 6,656.08
(Loss)/Profit before tax (2,723.90) 156.21
Tax expense/(benefits) 22

= Current tax 0.01 34.45

- Deferred tax charge/(credit) (836.30) 17.35
Total tax (benefits)/expense {836.29) 51.81
(Loss){’]’roﬁt for the year from continuing (1,887.61) 104.40
operations
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Profit from discontinued operations 40 = 24.72
Tax expense/(benefits) of discontinued operations 40
- Current tax - 6.19
= Deferred tax charge/(credit) 5= (1.37)
Profit after tax of discontinued operations - 19.90
{Loss)/Profit for the year {1,887.61) 124.30
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
a) In respect of continuing operations
Ttems that will not be reclassified fo profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit obligations (7.81) 5.05
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclasssified 3 27 (1.75)
to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (5.08) 3.30
b) In respect of discontinued operations
Trems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit obligations - 8.58
Income tax relating io items that will not be reclasssified 7 ) 3.01)
to profit or loss ’ ’
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - 5.58
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) (5.08) 8.87
Total Comrehensive Income/(Loss)
In respect of continuing operations (1,892.69) 107.70
In respect of discontinued operations - 2547
Total comprehensive income/(loss) (1,892.69) 133.17

.... Continued

A



Jubilant Generics Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

INR in million
Notes As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Total comprehensive income/(loss) (1,892.69) 133.17
(Loss)/Eaming per equity share of INR 10 each (for 36
coniinuing ope rations)
Basic (INR) {731.73) 40.47
Diluted (INR) {731.73) 4047
Eaming per equity shave of INR 10 each (for
. . . 36
discontinued operations)
Basic (INR) - 7.1
Diluted (INR) . 7.7
(Loss)/Eaming per equity share of INR 10 each (for . 36
continuing and discontinued ope rations)
Basic (INR) (731.73) 48.18
Diluted (INR) (731.73) 48.18
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountanis For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

ICAl Firm Registration Number : 101248W/W-100022 Jubj

ant Generies Limited
\ % fﬂ g«& ‘
P o
Jasdegpsingh

Dr, Jaidev Sanjeev

Manish Gupta Gurdetpsingh Sood Rajpal

Partner Whole-time Director Managing Director
& CEO

Membership No: 095037 DIN: 03383578 DIN: - 09734618

Place: Noida Place : Noida Place : Noida

Date: 29 May 2023 Date: 26 May 2023 Date: 26 May 2023




Jubilant Generics Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2023

a) Equity share capital

INR. i milion
Balance as at 1 April 2021 25.50
Issue of equity shares - =
Balance as at 31 March 2022 15.80
Issue of equity shares -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 25.50
{b) Other Equity (1)
INR in million
Total reserves and
R d I surplus and other .
eserves and surplus compweliensive Total ather equity
income
Capital Secun.nes Retained earnings
reserve pre mium
As at 1 April 2021 3,512.42 15,572.04 6,132.91 25,217.37 25,217.37
Profit for the year - - 124.30 124.30 124.30
Other comprehensive income - - 8.87 887 887
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 133.17 133.17 133.17
As at 31 March 2822 3,512.42 15,572.04 6,266.08 25,350.54 15,350.54
Profit / (Loss) for the year - - {1,887.61) {1,887.61) (1,887.61)
Adpstments on account of demerger
(Refer note 40) (3.512.42) (3.060.07) - (11,572.49) (11,57249)
Qther comprehensive income - - (5.08) (5.08) (5.08)
Total comprehensive ncome for the year (3,512.42) (8,060.0M (1,892.69) (13465.18) (13465 18)
As at 31 March 2023 - 7,511.97 4,373.39 11,885.36 11,885.36
{1) Refer note 10(b) for nature and purpose of other equity
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered dAccountants Jubilant Generjes Limited
ICAI Ffth Registration Number - 101248W/W-100022 / &/%/ /f Fg/
Jasdecpsingh Dr, Jaidev Sanjeev
Manish Gupts Gurdeepsingh Sood  Rajpal
Pariner Whole-time Director Managing Director
& CEO
Membershp No: 095037 DIN: 03383578 DIN: - 09734618
Place: Noida Place : Noida Place - Nowda

Date: 29 May 2023 Date: 26 May 2023 Date: 26 May 2023




Jubilant Generics Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended 31 March 2023

INR. in million

For the year ended
38 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

A. Cash dows from operating activities

{Loss) / Profit before tax from conthwing operations
Proft before tax from discontinued operations

{Loss) { Profi¢ before tax

Adjusitnents

Depreciation and amortisation expense

{Gam)foss on sale/disposalidiscard of property, plant and equipment {net)
Finance costs

Uunrealised foreign exchange (Gain} / loss

Allowance for expected credit loss

Interest income

Operating cash flows before working capital changes

Decrease / {Increase) in trade receivables, loans, other financial asseis
Decrease / (Increase) m inventories

Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables, other tinancial liabilities, ofher
liabilities and provisions

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid (net of refinds)

Net cash (usedigenerated from operating activitics

B. Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, other intanghble assets (inchding capital work-
n-progress and intangible assets under development)

Proceeds from sale of property plant a2nd equipment

Investment in deposits

Loan repaid by fellow subsidiaries

Interest received

Net eash used in investing activities

C. Cash flows from Snancing activities #

Proceeds from short term borrowings (net of repayments)
Finance costs paid

Payment of lease liabiities

Net cash genevated/(used in) from financing activities

MNet (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Add: cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents transfetred pursuant to demerger (Refer note 40)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note S(e}))

# Refer note 11{b) for changes in labdities arisig from fmancing activities
MNote:

(2.723.90) 156.22
- 24.71
(2.723.90) 120.93
1,41.74 114758
3.35 (83.24)
15.78 25.98
(4.29) 35.63
7778 24.72
{0.08) (203.61)
(939.62) 1,127.99
517.61 (467.41)
152.46 (523.73)
137.25 {158.84)
(132.30) (21.99)
{15.58) (76.1%)
(147.88) (98.18)
(366.34) (684.24)
158 09 152.05
- 5272
7.00 =
17.48 200.64
(184.27) (278.83)
482,55 439.99
(76.77) (38.19)
(69.39) (67.23)
336.39 334.57
4.24 42.44)
546 47.90
(0.15) =
9.55 $.46

1. Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indiwect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows"

2. Bank balances of INR 3.83 million ( Previous year INR 3 83 million) has restricted use.

3. During the year, the Company paid in cash INR 12.63 million (previous year INR 30.55 million) towards corporate social

responsibility (CSR) expenditure (inchuded in domation refer note 33).

4. For non-cash transaction pursuant to demerger, refer note-40

The accompamying notes form an integral part of the fimancil statements
As per our report of ¢ven date attached
For BSR & Co. LLP

Chapteged Accountanis

IC m:i stration Number ; 101248W/W-100022

Manish Gupta
Parmer

Membership No: 095037

Place: Noida
Date: 29 May 2023

Jubilan

Y

Jasdeepsingh
Gurdeepsihgh Sood
Whole-fime Director

DIN: 03383578

Place : Moida
Date: 26 May 2023

For and ouw behalf of the Boavd of Divectors of
\Generics Limited

&7 ”L';)?”A(
Dy, Jaidev Sanjeey
Rajpal
Managing Direcror
& CEO
DIN: - 09734618

Place : Moida
Date: 26 May 2023




Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial stat ts for the vear ended 31 March 2023

Corporate Information

Jubilant Generics Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company domiciled in India and
incorporated on 25 November 2013 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The Company is
incorporated to engage in the manufacture and supply of Generics (including Active Pharmaceutical
Ingredients (APTs) and Solid Dosage Formulations). The registered office of the Company is situated at
Plot No 1A, Sector [GA, Institutional Area, Noida, Gautam Buddha Nagar, Uttar Pradesh 201301. During
the year 2020, the Company acquired the India Branded Pharmaceuticals (“IBP™) business from Jubilant
Pharmova Limited, erstwhile Jubilant Life Sciences Limited, which is a formulations business that caters
to the Indian market,

The Scheme of Arrangement (“the Scheme™) for demerger of the Active Pharmaceuticals Ingredients
business undertaking of Jubilant Generics Limited (“JGL”) and vesting of the same with the Jubilant
Pharmova Limited (Ultimate Holding Company) on a going concer basis, with an appointed date of 1
April 2022 was approved by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench (“the Tribunal™)
vide its order (“the Order”) dated 23 May 2022 (formal order received on 13 June 2022). The Company
has filed the certified copy of the Order from the Tribunal with the Registrar of Companies on | July 2022
for registration in terms the requirements under the Companies Act, 2013 and therefore the Scheme is
effective with effect from [ July 2022.

Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year.

(a) Basis of preparation

(i) Statement of compliance
These Ind AS Financial Statements (“financial statements™) have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS} as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified

under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (“the Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

All the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in millions of Indian Rupees and are
trounded to the nearest million, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

The financial statements are authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 26 May, 2023.

In accordance with Rule 6 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company does not prepare
consolidated financial statements.

(i) Historical cost convention

The standalone financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on acerual basis,
unless otherwise stated,

(b) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when:



Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

* Itis expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
o Ttis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
¢ It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

* It is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.

A liability is treated as current when;
* Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
s Ttis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
Tt is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified a period of less than twelve
months as its operating cycle for the purpose of current / non-current classification of assets and
liabilities.

(¢) Business Combinations

Business combinations {other than business combinations between common control entities) are
accounted for using the purchase (acquisition) method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the fair value of the consideration transferred, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange. The consideration transferred does not include amounts
related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships; such amounts are generally recognised in
the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. The cost of acquisition also
includes the fair value of any contingent consideration. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
& contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at fair value at
the date of acquisition. Transaction costs incurred in connection with a business combination are
expensed as incurred. The excess of the consideration transferred aver the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value
of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as capital reserve provided there is clear
evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain
purchase.

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the control of
the shareholder that controls the Company are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at
the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented or, if later, at the date that common
control was established; for this purpose comparatives are revised. The assets and liabilities
acquired are recognized at their carrying amounts, The identity of the reserves is preserved and
they appear in the financial statements of the Company in the same form in which they appeared
in the financial statement of the acquired entity. The differences, if any, between the



Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

consideration and the amount of share capital of the acquired entity is transferred to capital
reserve.

(d) Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and intangible assets
(i} Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost,
which includes capitalized finance costs, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment loss, Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
The cost of an item of a PPE comprises its purchase price including import duty, and other non-
refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition of its intended use., Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price,

Expenditure incurred on startup and commissioning of the project and/or substantial expansion,
including the expenditure incurred on trial runs (net of trial run receipts, if any) up to the date of
commencement of commercial production are capitalised. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during
the repotting period in which they are incurred.

Advances paid towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance
Sheet date, are shown under other non-current assets and cost of assets not ready for intended use
before the year end, are shown as capital work-in- progress.

(7i) Intangible assets
o Goodwill

Goodwill arising on business combinations is disclosed in the Balance sheet and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an asset,
With regard to other internally generated intangible assets:

- Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or
technical knowledge and understanding, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as
incurred,

- Development expenditure including regulatory cost and legal expenses leading to product
registration/ market authorisation relating to the new and/or improved product and/or process
development capitalised only if development costs can be measured reliably, the product or process
is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Company
intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use the asset. The expenditure
capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour, overhead costs that are directly attributable
to preparing the asset for its intended use, and directly attributable finance costs (in the same manner

10
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as in the case of PPE). Other development expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss as incurred.

- Intangible assets that are acquired (including implementation of software system) are measured
initially at cost.

- After initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment loss. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the
future economic benefits from the specific asset to which it relates.

(iti) Depreciation and amortization methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided on straight line basis on the original cost/ acquisition cost of assets or other
amounts substituted for cost of PPE as per the useful life specified in Part 'C’ of Schedule 1T of the Act,
read with notification dated 29 August 2014 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, except for the
following classes of property, plant and equipment which are depreciated based on the internal
technical assessment of the management as under:

Category ofassets Management estimate of useful| Useful life as per Schedule 11
life

Motor vehickes (Vehick -Owned) 5 years 8§ years

Coatnputer servers and networks (included

) . 5 years 6 yeats

in office equipment)

Dies and punches for manufacture of

dosage formulations 1-2 years 15 yeats
Change parts for manufacture of dosage 5 years .

formulations
Employee  perquisite  related  assets

5 years. being the period of]

{except e|'1d user computers) {included in perquisite scheme 10 years

office equipment)

Leasehold improvements 10 years Period of lease

Leaschold land which qualifies as finance lease is amortised over the lease period on straight line

basis.

The estimated useful lives of intangibles are as follows:

Internally generated product registration 5 years
Rights 5 years
Software 5 years

Depreciation and amortization on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets added/ disposed
of during the year has beer provided on pro-rata basis.

Depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each
reporting petiod and adjusted if appropriaie.
fiv) Derecognition

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use and disposal. Losses arising from retirement and gains or

11
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(e)

U

losses arising from disposal of a tangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered
primarily through sale rather than through continuing use. Such assets, are generally measured at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell. Losses on initial classification as held for
sale and subsequent gains and losses on re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss. Once classified
as held for sale, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are no longer depreciated or
amortised,

A discontinued operation is a component of the Company’s business that has been disposed-off or is
classified as held for sale and represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of operations,
or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The results of discontinued operations are
presented separately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill, intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life and intangible assets under development
are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. The company’s other non-financial
assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows (i.e. corporate assets) are
grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made (o those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units ot groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for intemal management purposes.

The recoverable amount of an asset ar CGU is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using
a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for
which impairment loss has been recognised in ptior periods, the Company reviews at reporting date
whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a
reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount

12
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that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment foss had been
recognised. '

(2) Financial instrument

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are atiributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset, Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the Company commiis to purchase or sell the asset,

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

¢ Debt instruments at amortised cost

¢ Debt instraments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

*  Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
*  Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A *debt instrument’ is measured at the amottised cost if the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and contractual terms of the asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or the amortised cost of the financial liability. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies
to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument al FYOCI
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVOCTI if the objective of the business model is achieved both

by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and the asset’s contractual cash flows
represent SPPI.

13
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Debt instruments included within the FVOCT category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at-fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Tnterest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest
income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVPL

FVPL is a residual category for debt instruments, Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria
for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOCT, is classified as at FVPL. In addition, at initial
recognition, the Company may irrevocably elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortised cost or FVOCI criteria, as at FVPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces
or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all chan ges recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instrumenis which are
held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquiret in a business combination to which
Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value, The
Company makes such election on an instrument by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from
OCl1 to the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer
the cumulative gain or loss to retained earnings,

Equity instruments included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

fnvesiments in subsidiaries and an associate

Investments in subsidiaries and an associate are catried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written
down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference
between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss aliowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets
which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant
financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with
contractual cash flows other than trade receivable, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month
ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those

14
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are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECL (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance
at the reporting date is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset ot part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

. The Company has transfetred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
*pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantial ly all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantial Iy all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership,
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associaied liability,
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

Financial tiabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial

recognition. Financial liabilities at FVPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financiai liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as foreign-exchange forward contracts to hedge
its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when
the fair value is negative.
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(h)

M

()

Offseiting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Balance Sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value except scrap, which is valued at net estimated
realisable value.

The Company uses weighted average method to determine cost for all categories of inventories except for
goods in transit which is valued at specifically identified purchase cost. Cost includes all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition inclusive of non-refundable (adjustable) taxes wherever applicable. The cost of work in progress
and manufactured finished goods include an appropriate share of variable and fixed production overheads.
Fixed production overheads are included based on normal capacity of production facilities.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The net realisable value of work-
in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished products. Raw materials
and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are not written down below cost,
except in cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products
will exceed their net realisable value. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-
by-item basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprise cash at banks and on hand (including imprest) and shott-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settfe the present
obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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(k)

0

Contingent liability

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

Revenue recoghnition

Revenue from sale of products is recognised upon transfer of controi of products to customers at the time of
shipment to or receipt of goods by the customers. Service income is recognised as and when the underlying
services are performed. The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance
obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a period of time,

Any fees including upfront fees received in relation to contract manufacturing arrangements is recognized
over the period over which the company satisfies the underlying performance obligations. In respect of
outsourcing contracts for drug development with third party Clinical Research Organization (CRO),
revenue is recognized on the basis of actual cost incurred plus mark up as agreed with the customer under
each agreement,

Revenues are measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, net of tax collected from
customers and remitted to government authorities such as Goods and services tax (GST), sales tax, excise
duty, value added tax and applicable discounts and allowances including expected sales return etc. The
computation of these estimates using expected value method involves significant judgment based on various
factors including contractual terms, historical experience, estimated inventory levels etc.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract
assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending} when there is unconditional
right to receive cash and only passage of time is required as per contractual terms, Contract liabilities are
recognised when there are billings in excess of revenues. Contract liabilities relate to the advance received
from customers and deferred revenue against which revenue is recognised when or as the performance
obligation is satisfied.

Income in respect of entitlement towards export incentives is recognised in accordance with the relevant
scheme on recognition of the related export sales. Such export incentives are recorded as part of other
operating revenue.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
Employee benefits
(i) Shori-term employee benefits: All employee benefits falling due within twelve months of the end of
the period in which the employees render the related services are classified as shori-term employee
benefits, which include benefits like salaries, wages, short term compensated absences, performance
incentives, etc. and are recognised as expenses in the period in which the employee renders the related

service and measured accordingly.

{ii) Post-employment benefits: Post employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans
and defined contribution plans as under:
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(a) Gratuity

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible
employees. The plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in
employment or on termination of employment of an amount based on the respective employee's salary
and the tenure of employment.

{b) Provident fund

(i) The Company earlier made contribution to the recognised provident fund - "VAM Employees
Provident Fund Trust" (a muiti-employer trust) for'most of its employees in India. During the previous
year, the Company transferred the balance in VAM Employees Provident Fund Trust to Regional
Provident Fund Commissioner and started making contribution with Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner for all the qualified employees with effect from | Decerber 2021, This is treated as a
defined contribution plan,

The Company's contribution to the provident fund is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.
(ii) Other long-term employee benefits:
Compensated absences

As per the Company's policy, eligible leaves can be accumulated by the employees and carried forward
to future periods to either be utilised during the service, or encashed. Encashment can be made during
service, on early retirement, on withdrawal of scheme, at resignation and upon death of the employee.
Accumulated compensated absences are treated as other long-term employee benefits.

(i) Termination benefits:

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when, as a result of a past event, the Company has a
present obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation.

Aetuarial valuation

The liability in respect of all defined benefit plans and other long term benefits at the end of the financial
year is accrued in the books of account on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent
actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each year of service as giving rise to
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the final
obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows, The discount
rates used for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the
market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date, having maturity periods
approximating to the terms of related obligations.

Remeasurment gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
they arise. Remeasurment gains and losses in respect of all defined benefit plans arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly
in other comprehensive income. They are included in other equity in the Statement of Changes in Equity
and in the Balance Sheet. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from
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plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in the Statement of profit and loss as past
service cost. Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised
when the curtailment or settlement occurs. Any differential between the plan assets (for a funded defined
benefit plan) and the defined benefit obligation as per actuarial valuation is recognised as a liability if it
is a deficit or as an asset if it is a surplus (to the extent of the lower of present value of any economic
benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reduction in foture contribution to the plan),

Past service cost is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss on a straight-line basis
over the average period until the benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefits are already vested
immediately following the introduction of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan, the past service cost is
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Past service cost may be either positive
(where benefits are introduced or improved) or negative (where existing benefits are reduced)

{m) Finance costs

(n)

Finance costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Finance cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
finance costs. Finance costs that are directly atiributable to the construction or production ot development
of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. All other finance
costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the finance costs eligible for capitalization. Any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method Ancillary costs incurred in
connection with the arrangement of borrowings are amortised over the period of such borrowings.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in OCL.

o Current tax:

e Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount
of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received after considering uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

®  Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the lability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

o Deferred tax:
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for;
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- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss
at the time of the transaction;

- temporary differences related to freehold land and investments in subsidiaries and an associate,
to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets (DTA) include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws
in India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future
income tax liability,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they
can be used. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recoghised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
used. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

(0} Leases
(i) Leases — Company as a lessor

The Company, as a Lessor. presents assets subject to operating leases in the balance sheet according to
the nature of the asset.

Lease income from operating leases is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term
as per the agreed lease rentals, unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern
in which use benefit derived from the leased asset is diminished.

(1} Leases — Company as a lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contact involves the use of an identified asset;
(2) the Com pany has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of
the lease; and (3) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Land, buildings and vehicles which
typically run for a period of 3 to 10 years, with an option to renew the lease after that date. For certain
leases, the Company is restricted from entering into any sub-lease arrangements. At the date of
commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease
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liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months
or less (short-term leases). For these short-term leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities includes the options to extend or terminate the lease when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any
initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment
whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if
any, is recognised in the Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the future fease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates based on information available as at the date of
commencement of the lease. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension
or a termination option. Lease liability and right-of-use asset have been separately presented in the
Balance sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted
with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The
Company makes an assessment on the expected |ease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses
whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In
evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements
undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the
underlying asset to Company’s operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the
availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease
term reflects the current economic circumstances,

(p) Segment reporting

Board of Directors of the Company had been identified as the Chief Operating Decision maker (CODM)
as defined by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments. Operating Segments have been defined and presented
based on the regular review by the CODM to assess the performance of segment and to make decision
about allocation of resources. Accordingly, the Company has determined pharmaceutical as the only
reportable segment.

(q) Foreign currency translation
{0 Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. These financial statements are presented
in Indian rupees.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreigh currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
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dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at Balance Sheet date exchange rates are generally recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the Statement
of Profit and Loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses).

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated usin g the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss, For example translation differences on non-
monetary assets such as equity investments classified as FYOCT are recognised in other comprehensive
incotne (OCT),

(r) Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are defetred and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within
other operating income,

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred income and are credited to Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over
the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other operating income.

(s) Earnings per share
(i)  Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
o the profit attributable to owners of the Company
¢ by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted
for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

(i) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

¢ the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and

¢ the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

22



Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the linancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

() Measurement of fair values

A number of the accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value
hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows;

Level 1; quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either  directly  (ie. as prices) or indirectly (.. derived from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This
includes a finance team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value
measurements, including Level 3 fair values.

The finance team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third
paity information is used to measure fair values, then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from
the third patties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including
the [evel in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far
as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of
the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used in prepari ng these financial
statements is included in the respective notes.

(u) Critical estimates and judgments

The preparation of Financial Statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
aftected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments
in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements is included in the following notes.

« Assessment of useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets — Note 2(d)
« Valuation of inventories — Note 2(h)

= Recognition of revenue — Note 2(k)

» Fair value measurement — Note 2(t) and 25

- Estimation of assets and obligations relating to employee benefits — Note 2(e) and 24

+ Recognition and estimation of tax expense including deferred tax — Note 2(n),6 and 22
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+ Estimated impairment of financial assets and non-financial assets — Note 2(f) and 2(g)

+ Recognition and measurement of contingency: Key assumption about the likelthood and magnitude
of an outflow of resources — Note 30

+ Lease term: whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise extension options — Note 2(0)
and 37

(v) The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-
19 on the carrying amounts of receivables, inventories, property, plant and equipment, goodwill and
intangible assets. I'n developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global
economic conditions, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial statements, has used
internal and external sources of information, including economic forecasts and estimates from market
sources, on the expected future performance of the Company. On the basis of evaluation and current
indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying amounts of these
assets and does not anticipate any impairment to these financial and non-financial assets. However, the
impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process, given the uncertainties associated with its
nature and duration. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic
conditions.

(w) Recent accounting pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 31 March 2023,
MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from 1 April 2023, as below:

Ind AS | — Presentation of Financial Statements - Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with other information, is material
when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial
statements. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of the amendment.

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in
paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions that,
on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Company is in
the process of evaluating the impact of the amendment,

Ind A5 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - Definition of
Accounting Estimates

The amendments wiil help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates.
The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting
estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies
require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The
Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of the amendment.
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3. Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress

INR m million
Capital
" Land- Building- Building- Plantand ' ™¢™® Vehicles-  Offlee \mrkp—iin—

escription X and Total
freehold Gcrory Othey e quipment owned equipment progress

fixiures .

(CWIP)
Gross carvying value as af | April 2022 59783 167232 963 823719 280.66 1t.79 29771 1L393T0 642,99
Additions/admstments (3) - 58.70 718 29723 1067 - 30.33 404,11 16:4.35
Adjustments on account of demerger {Refer note 40) - - - (5,560 16) (64.15) (G309 (1327 (576019 (35097
Deductions/adpistments - - - (30256) (3:28) (13 (21.54) (32851) (41178
Gross carvying vahue as st 31 March 2023 597.83 173102 30338 1.471.T0 213.90 7.57 173.71 570911 43.59
Accummlared depreciation as at 1 April 2022 - 342,00 554 372108 13859 119 18239 3.948.20 -
Degpreciarion charge for il year - 60.70 8.7% 2724 067 13 t3338 351,98 -

Adjustiments on accamnt of demerger (Refer note 40) - - - {1LE214D) (35.00) (2.40) (879)  (2016.76)
Dieductions adiustinents - - - (170.20) [2.23) (0:73) (16.27) (159.43) -
Ace lated deprecintion as at 31 March 2023 - 402,70 64.20 1,396,711 111.02 0.3% 119.06  2,094,08 -
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2023 597.83 132832 13948 1,274.99 112.8% T.18 5465  3,615.00 43.59
INR in million
Capital
Deseription Land- Building- Building- Plant and F"m"::: Vehicles- Oifice Foial work-in-
freehotd factory Other equipanent ovned equipment progress

fixtures

(CWIT)
Gross currying value ag at 1 Aprl 2021 597 83 1.656.82 19607 79850 2112 3% 27544 11041 84 %701
Additionsadjustments {3) - 15.50 013 35557 §42 1130 29.58 42051 TT6.49)
Deductionsadpstment - - - (30.88) (095} (3.47) (7.31) {GH.65) (420.51)
Gross carvying value as at 31 March 2022 597,33 1,672.32  296.20 §,237.19 280.66 11.79 97T 11,393.70 642,99
Accuomulated depre ciation as at | April 2021 - 28210 998 27389 116.67 237 15017 332518 -
Depreciation charge for the year - 59,99 15.46 52079 2285 232 44,34 665 66 -
Deduetions ady - - = (33.60) (1193} (3.40) (4.60) {42.53) -
Ace | I de pre ciation as af 31 March 2022 - 342.00 55844 322108 134.59 1.29 139.89  3.948.29 -
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2022 597.93 1,330.32  240.76  5.0016.11 142.07 10.50 107.82 7.44541 642.99
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Notes:

(1) Refer note 31(a) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and

equipment,

(2) Refer note 19 for finance costs capitalised.

(3) Includes TNR 11.99 million in respect of research and development assets (previous year INR 68.54 million).
{4) Capital research and development expenditure aggregating to INR 13.75 million (previous year INR 64.18

million) incurred during the year included in additions to property plant & equipment/ capital work-in-
progress.

Ageing detail of Tangible capital work-in-progress as at 31 March 2023 is as follows:

TNR i million
Particulars Amount in capital work-in-progress for a peviod of
Less than 12 Years 23 Years More than
1 vear 3 years Total
Projects in progress 11.20 235 1.91 28.13 43.59
Ageing detail of Tangible capital work-in-progress as at 31 March 2022 is as follows:
INR in million
Particulars Amount in capital work-in-progress for a period of Total
Less than 1-2 Years 2.3 Years More than
1 year 3 years
Projects in progress S0L11 60.12 56.15 25.61 642.99

Project execution plans are modulated basis capacity requirement and priority assessment on an annual
basis and all the projects are executed as per rolling annual plan.

4. Goodwill, other intangible assets and intangible assets under development

INR m mllon

Internally
gene rated N
o ntangible
Description Goodvill Prgurt™ IRIGHE  Softwerg Total assefs mder
regls tration/ {b) € (athtc)

development

market

authorisation (i)

Gross carrying value as ac | April 2022 1,371.36 2712984 1581 9354 303919 334689
Additions/adpstments 113 S 5796 1319 LIS 21232
Adpustinents on account of demeiger (Refer Note 40) (1,371.36) - (16.11) (6.11) -
Irmpairment for the year (4) - - - - - {1,202 34)
Deductions/adjustments (3) - (177.46) - (232)  (17978) {37.96)
Gross carvying valoe as at 31 March 2023 - 2,610.34 15.81 288.30 2.914.45 2,198.91
Accumulated amostisation / impaivinent as at 1 April 2022 B 249156 15 84 246 96 2754 33 ;
Amortisationfimpairment for the year - 129.50 - 1324 14274 -
Adjusinents on account of demerger (Refer Note 40) - (6.15) 6.15)

Deductions/adjustnents (3) - (166.91) (213) (169.04) -
;;3 fabedaes st e Pl SRS L8R C : 245415 IS8T 25192 2,721.88 ;
Net enrrying value a5 at 31 March 2023 - 156.19 - 36.38 192.57 2,298.91
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INR in million
Inte rmally
gemerated ;
Intangible
Description Goodwill s ploi!uct LU . assets under
registration/ {b) (e} (atbtc)
development
market

authorisation (a)

Gross carrying value as at 1 April 2021 137136 272522 15 8t 27590 301693 3156833
Additions/adjustiments (1) - 67.7% - 17.64 8540 378.39
Impamrment for the year (4) - - - - - {156.37)
Dedugtions/adustments (3) - (A3 14) - - (63.14) (443 46)
Gross emrying value as at 31 March 2022 1,371.36 2,729.34 15,81 293.54  3,039.19 3.346.89
Accumulated amortisation / impaivment as at | April 2021 - 2286 11 15 8t [92.84 24947 )
Amortisation/impairment for the year - 22588 - 54.12 280,00 -
Dieductions adj s (3) - (M1 43) - - (20.43) -
;;:;:mulaled amortisationimpaitwent as at 31 March _ 2,491.56 15.81 246,96 2,754.33 :
Net corrying value as at 31 Marvch 2022 1.371.36 238,28 - 46,58 284.86 3,346.89

Ageing decail of Intangible capital work-in-progress as at 31 March 2023 is as follows:

INR # million
Particulars Intangible capital work-in-progress for a period of
Less than 1-2 Years 2.3 Years More than
| vear 3 vears Total
Projects i progress 112.26 138.03 179,49 1.869.13 229891
Ageing detail of Intangible capital work-in-progress as at 31 March 2022 is as follows:
[NR in million
Particulars Intangible capital work-in-progress for a peviod of Total
Less than 1-2 Years 2.3 Years Move than
| year 3 years
Projects i progress 24938 29815 441.26 2,358.10 3346.89

Project execution plans are modulated basis capacity requirement and priority assessment on an annual
basis and all the projects are executed as per rolling annual plan.

Notes:

(1) Represents INR 57.96 million (previous year INR 67.76 million) in respect of research and development
assets.

(2) Capital research and development expenditure aggregating to TNR 212.32 million (previous year INR
378.39 million} incurred duting the year included in additions to Intangible assets/Intangible assets under
development.

{3} During the year, the goodwill has been transferred as part of demerger (Refer Note 40). During the previous
year, goodwill was evaluated for the purposes of impairment testing, The recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit was based on its value in use. The value in use of these units was determined to be higher
than the carrying amount and an analysis of the calculation’s sensitivity towards change in key assumptions
did not identify any probable scenarios where the CGU recoverable amount would fall below their carrying
amount.

During the previous year, value in use for goodwill was determined by discounting the future cash flows
generated from the continuing use of the CGU. The calculation was based on the following key assumptions:

i. The anticipated annual revenue growth and margin included in the cash flow projections are based on past
experience, actual operating results and the 5-year business plan in all periods presented.
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ii. The terminal growth rate of 0.5% was considered for all periods presented, representing management
view on the future long-term growth rate.

iii. Discount rate of 11.21% was considered for all periods presented, in determining the recoverable amount
of the CGU. The discount rate was estimated based on past expetience and industry’s weighted average cost
of capital.

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent the management’s assessment of future
trends in the industry and based on both internal and external sources,

(4) The carrying value of internalty generated product registration and other intangibles (including intangible
assets under development) is reviewed annually and was last reviewed on 31 March 2023. Based on changed
market conditions, recalibrated approach for development of intangibles that stringently evaluates all new
developments and prioritize intangibles under development based on technical and financial assessment,
INR 1202.34 million (previous year INR 156.37 million) had been charged off during the year ended 31
March 2023 and included under depreciation and amortization expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

The Company’s process involves significant judgments in estimating the future revenues, expected cost to
complete the development and estimating the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount arrived at is the
value in use estimated by management. Based on various internal and externally available data, the
Company has also taken into consideration various factors such as current import atert placed by the
USFDA at the Roorkee facility, number of competitors, future revenues and margins etc. The estimate of
value in use was determined by applying discount rate of 12.90% (previous year 11.21%) on the
expected future cash flows estimated considering following:

» Cash flows for a period of 10 years by continuing use of the asset considering possible variations
and uncertainties and necessary growth or decline
+ Net cash flows, if any, to be received or paid at the end of its useful life

Further, the company has sold intangibles under development amounting INR Nil (previous year
INR 375.70 million) to its fellow subsidiary Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc.

(5} Refer Note 19 for finance costs capitalized

5(a) Non-current investments

INR in million
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Investment in equity shares (at cost)

Unquoted investwent (fully paid up)

(A) Subsidiary:

Jubilant Pharma NV 965.00 965.00
[13,900,000 (Previous year 13,900,000} equity shaves of face value

Eure | per share]

(B) Associate:

Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc.
[200 {Previous year 200) equity shares with no par value]

Total non-current investments

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

3,090.00

3,090.00

4,055,00

4,055.00

4,055.00

4,055.00
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5(b) Loans
INR i million
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cuwrrent Non- current Current Non-
corrent
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to related parties (Refer Note 29) - - 7.00 3,250.00
Loan to employees 0.06 1.25 0.22 5.39
Total loans 0.06 1.25 722 3,255.39
5{c) Others
INR in million
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current Non- current  Curvent Non-
current
Deposits accounts with maturity more than twelve months i 0.23 ) i
from the reporting date- held as margin money ’
Security deposits - 16.78 - 44.63
Total others - 17.01 - 44.63
5(d) Trade receivables
INR. in miltion
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured and current
Trade receivables considered good 327.00 1,343.84
Receivables trom related parties (Reter note 29) 713.88 583.24
Trade receivables - credit impaired 52.57 33.90
Less: Expected credit loss allowance (Refer note 26) (52.57) (33.90)
Total trade receivables 1.040.88 1,927.08
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Ageing for irnde reccivables outstanding a5 an March 31, 2023 is as follows:

INR. n milkion
Particulars Outstanding for ihe Following periods from dwe dale of pryment
Total
Less than 6 Moniths - More tham 3
Not Due & Months | Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Vears
Trade veceivables
Undisputed Trade R ble - Considered Good 35640 48943 13719 4909 151 0.03 103411
Undisputed trade recenables = wihich have
signilican increase m credil risk ) i
Undipuled trade receivables - ceed 059 064 231 436 17 003 19,66
impai ed
Dispuled trade receivalles — considered ) R 162 043 172 677
uoad
Disputed vade recerables — which have
subicand ingrease i credit risk . i ’
Dsp:led trade recewables — credi ) B 006 B 030 246 291
iripaired
38705 7 490.07 143.1% 93.45 4.44 5.24 1093.4%
Less: Alk Tor doublfu! trade receivali 52.
1040.88
Ageing for trade receivables cutstanding ns at Man;h 31, 2022 is us pllows:
TR in millian
Parliculars 4] ling for the Kllowing periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 Months - . Mare thwn 3 Total
Not Due 6 Months 1 Yenr 1-2 Years T3 Vears Yems
Trade receivables
Undisputed Trade Recievable - Consideresd Good 131165 M 23840 17 30 ndar 215 R il
Undisputed irade recamables = winch bave R R -
signilicant morease i credil cisk .
Undisputed trade receivables - crede 24 46 5.89 osl oM a1l 1.06 3227
mpaired
D d trade recenables — wered
iy E - - LR 048 108 437
good
Disputed trade receivables — which have - - - - = - s
significant ingrease i credit risk
Dispuded trade receivables — credic - - - ogl ol 151 163
impaired
1336.11 3ER.63 23891 7 18.37 1.17 7.80 19610.98
Less: Allowance for douldlul trade recenables (33.90)
19308
5(e) Cash and cash equivalents
INR in million
As at As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Balances with banks

- in current accounts Q.44 5.23
Cash on hand - 0.11
Others
- imprest 0.1l 0.12
Total cash and cash equivalents 9,58 5.46
5 (f) Other bank balance
INR in million
As at As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Deposits accounts with maturity up to twelve months from the

reporting date- held as margin money

Total other bank balance (1)
(1) These have restricted use

3.60

3.83

3.60

3.83
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5(g) Other current financial assets

INR in million

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Advances recoverable from related parties 226.06 669.74
Interest receivable from related parties - 16.91
Insurance claim recoverable 0.80 131.74
Contract asset 2722 38.92
Interest receivable 0.70 2.5
Others 5.53 11.14
Total other financial assets 260.31 870.96

6. Deferred tax

Deferred income tax reflects the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amount of asset
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for income tax purposes. Significant
component of the Company’s net deferred income tax are as follows:

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to;

Deferred tax assets
TNE in million
Provision for Expenditure Tax losses MAT  Twtangibles Lease Others Taotal
compensated  allowed om actwnl  covried forward Credit Liabiliry
absences and payment basis Entitlement
Eratuity
As at | April 2021 111.06 33.59 79013 153631 320.79 49,81 2386 2019.05
(ChargedifCredited:
- to stateinent of profit and loss 493 i (2990 4046 (85.90) 116,57 515 (78.71)
- to Other comnrehensive mgome 4 764 . - - - - - {476}
As at 31 Mareh 2022 111,23 36,72 76032 1629.27 234,89 33.24 29,01 293558
Transferred in Demerger (61 02) (1230 35022)  (249.60) 000 {137 324 (L1797
(Charged)Credied
- to statement of profit and loss (i 1%y 859 63637 {1359 {64.43) {21.66) 789 54240
- to Other gomprehonsive weome (273) - ] - - - = (273)
As at 31 March 2022 36.30 33m 1047.87 366.08 170.46 10.21 31.66 219559
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Deferred tax liabilities:
INR in million
PPE, Difference in tax Others Total
Intangibles and  value and book
Right of use value of R&D
assets CWIP/! Intangible
and Intangibles
under
development
As at I April 2022 996.22 810.11 4.17 1,810.50
(Charged)/Credited:
- to statement of profit and loss 3.25 (62.04) (3.94) (62,73)
As at 31 March 2022 999.47 748.07 0.23 1.747.77
Transferred in Demerger (Refer note 40) (826.42) - - (826.42)
(ChargedYCredited:
- to statément of profit and loss {23.28) {275.99) B {299.27)
As at 31 March 2023 149.77 472.08 0.23 622,08
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Reflected in the Balance Sheet as follows:

INR. in million
As at 31 March As at 31
2023 March 2022
Deferred tax assets, net; 2195.59 2835.58
Deferred tax liabilities: 622.08 1747.77
Deferred tax assets, net: _ I,S73_.5_ 1 _ 1,087.81

Defetred tax has not been recognized on temporary differences in relation to indexation benefit of investment
in subsidiaries and freehold land amounting to INR 358.18 million (previous year INR 303.08 million) and INR
52.80 million (previous year INR 44.68 million) respectively, as the Company is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
foreseeable future.

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets (net):

TNR in million
As at 31 March As at 31 Mar
2023 2022
Balance as at the commencement of the year 1,087.81 1,108.55
Amount transferred in Demerger (353.34) -
Credit/ (Expense) during the year recognised in statement 83631
of profit and loss (inchiding MAT) ' {15.98)
Credit during the year recognised in Capital Reserve - -
Credit during the year recognised in OCI 2.73 (4.76)
Balance as at the end of the year 1,573.51 1,087.81
7. Other non-current assets
[NR in million
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Capital advances - - 17.62
Total other non-current assefs - 17.62
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8. Inventories

INR in million

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Raw materials* 645.72 1,555.20
Work-in-progress 301.74 2,074.26
Finished goods* 307.00 798.74
Traded goods 57.54 50.40
Stores and spares 243.56 439.77
Packing material 71.68 82.29
Others- process chemicals and fuels 2.50 13.37
Total inventories 1,629.74 5,014.03
*Goods it transit. included in above INR in million
As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Raw materials 11.39 139.17
Finished goods - 256.02
Total inventories 11.39 395.19
Total write down of mventories recognised during the vear 257.75 438.77

Cost of inventories (including cost of purchased products) recognised as an expense amounted to INR 3.032.66

million {previous year INR 2,159.81 million).

9. Other current assets

TNR in million
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Prepaid expenses 93.81 164.07
Recoverable from/ balance with government authorities 327.84 787.06
Advance to employees 2.45 916
Advance for supply of goods and services 49.47 162.18
Others 52.40 14.14
Total other current assets 525.97 1,136.61
10. Equity share capital and other equity
10(a) Equity share capital
INR in million
As at As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Authorised
3,000,000 (Previous vear 3,000,000) equity shares of INR 10 each

Issued and subscribed
2,579,665 (Previous year 2,579,665) equity shares of INR 10 each

Paid up
2,579,665 (Previous year 2,579.665) equity shares of INR 10 each

30.00 30.00
30.00 30.00
25.80 25.80
25.80 25.80
25.80 25.80
25.80 25.80

33



Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial stat ts for the year ended 31 March 2023

Movements in equity share capital

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Numher TNR in million Number INR in millign
Al the commencement of the year 2579665 25 80 2579665 25.80
Al the end of the vea 2570665 25 80 2579663 2580

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having par value of INR 10 each.
Holder of each equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the
holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders,

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

At commencement and end of the year As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 Marvch 2022

Equity shares of INRI© each fully paid-up held by Number % of totad shares Numbe r % oftotal shares
Jubilant Pharma Limited, Smgapore - the holding company

tmehhing & shares held jonitly with 6 indrviduals) 259,665 100% 1579565 e
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters:
Atcommencement anil end of the year As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Equity shares of INR1D each fully paid-up held by Numbe r % of totel shares Numb % of inial shares
Jubilant PI imi ngapoce - (b ing

ubilant Phanna Limited, Sngapore - (he holding company 2579665 100% 2579665 100%

Tmclnding 6 shares held jomthy with 6 ndividuals)

10(b} Other equity

Nature and purpose of other equity

Capital reserve

Accumulated capital surplus not available for distribution of dividend and expected to remain invested
permanently. Represents difference between the consideration and carrying amount of net assets/liabilities
for transactions among entities under common control to transfer out/in of any business or shares of entities
under common control,

Securities preminunt

The unutilized accumulated excess of issue price over face value on issue of shares. This reserve is utilized
in accordance with the provisions of the Act,

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings represent the amount of accumulated earnings of the Company and re-measurement
differences on defined benefit plans.

11(a) Current borrowings

INR in million
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

From banks
Secured (repayable on demand/short tenor loans) 1.[22.55 640.00
Total current borrowings 1,122.55 640.00
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Notes:

L)

3.

Working capital facilities (including cash credit) sanctioned by consortium of banks are secured by a first
charge by way of hypothecation, ranking pari-passu inter-se banks, of the entire book debts, receivables and
inventories, both present and future, of the Company.

Short-term loans are availed in Indian rupees. Indian rupee loans carry interest rate ranging from 4.04% to
8.75% p.a. (Previous year interest rate ranging from 3.62% to 7.75% p.a.).

Inventory and Trade reccivables with a carrying amount of INR 1,629.75 million (previous year INR
5,014.03 millien), and INR 1,040.88 million (previous year INR 1,927.08 million) respectively are provided
as security against borrowing at year end.

The Company has availed fund based and non-fund based working capital facility of TNR 2,450 million
(previous year INR 35,000 million) from a consortium of banks. The facility is secured by way of
hypothecation of the Company’s entire stock of raw materials, semi-finished and finished goods, consumable
stores and spares and such other movables current assets including book-debts, receivables, both present and
future, on a first charge basis ranking pari-passu with other participating consortium member banks.

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current borrowings are:
INR. m million

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Notes

Financial assets

First pari-passu charge

Receivables 3(d) 1,040.88 1,927.08
[nventonies ] 1629 75 5014 03
Total curvent assets pledged as security 2,670.63 6,941.11

During the previous year, the Company surrendered the overdraft facility of TNR 50.00 million availed from
a bank, against fixed deposits of INR 52.95 million placed with the bank.

11({b) Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

INR in million
Other movements
As at  Financing New Finance costs Finance costs As at
31 March 2021 cash flows  fiuance expensed  capitalised 31 March
leases 2022
Fmance lease labiliies 197 92 {6723 634 = = 137.03
Short term Joans repayable on demand (net) 200,01 439 9% - . - 640 00
Interest accrued 0.02 {3819 - 2598 14.00 181
Total 397.95 335457 6.34 25.98 1404 TI8.54
INR in million
Other nove me nts
As at  Financing New Finance costs Finance costs As at
31 March 2022 cash flows finance expensed  capitalised D
leases 2023
Lease .]ia'.}ili.ties {previous year: finance 13703 (74 83) 10 A i 6511
kease labiliiies)
Short term Joans repayable on demand (pet) 640.00 482 55 B - - 1,122 55
Interest accrued 181 (76.77) - 1578 62 B0 362
Total 778.84 330,95 292 15.78 62.30 1,191.29
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11(c) Trade payables
INR in million
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current

Trade payables

-Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

33.32 331
{Refer Note 35)
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
e P 1,165.05 2394.73
small enterprises
Total teade payables 1,198.37 2,427.84
Amount payable to related parties included in above (Refer Note 29) 542,55 327.37
Ageing for trade payables oulstandimg as at Maveh 31, 2023 is as follows :
TNR in million
Particulars Quts tanding for the following periods fom due date of pay
Not Due Less than 1-2 Years 2.3 Years More than 3 Total
1 Year Years
MSME® 14.05 2077 011 - - 3493
Others 183 81 796,92 2765 - 2912 17.19 996,44
Dispated dues MSME®* = = 2 . - -
Dhispuled dues others - - - - . 5
197.86 B817.649 2776 - 29.12 1719 1.031.37
Expenses accrued 167.00
Total 1,198.37
Ageing for trade payables outs tanding as ot March 31, 2022 i5 as follows :
INR in mdlion
Particulms L ding for the following perviods from due date of pay t
Not Due Less than 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Tiorat
| Year Years
MSKIE®* 16.90 16,04 202 012 - 3308
Others 696,02 824 65 60 80 1798 1574 161519
Disputed dues MSME®* - . : - = =
Disputed dues others - - - E - =
ez 340,69 60,52 18.10 1574 1.648.27
Expenses accrued 779.57
Total 2,417.84
*MSME s pet the Micio, Small and Medium Enterprises Develop Acl, 2006
11{d) Other current financial liabilities
INR i million
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 3.62 1.81
Security deposit - 2.70
Capital creditors* 1214 13799
Employee benefits payable 88.49 148,83
Other payable to related partiesd 425,25 394 66
Total other current financial liabilities 529.50 685.99

* Includes payable to Micro, Small & Medium enterprises INR 1.96 million (previous year INR 2.66 million)
# Includes overdue payable of INR 247.74 million (previous year INR 228.52 million) for which the
Company has made an application to the authorised dealer bank for necessary approval for payment.
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12(a) Other non-current liabilities

INR in million

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Contract fiabilities 16.78 18.28

Deferred income - Government grant 30.02 42.73

Total other non-current liabilities 46.80 61.01
12(b) Other current liabilities

INR. i million

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Contract liabikities 213.87 719.13

Deferred income - Government grant 1.67 11.72.

Statutory dues payables 79.05 163.73

Total other current liabilitics 300.59 $94.58

13. Provisions

INR in million

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Current Non-current Current Non-

current

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 24) 71.20 75.00 82.33 313.53

Other provisions 11.68 - 10.72 -

Total provisions 82.88 75.00 923.05 313.53

14, Revenue from operations

INR i million

For the year ended
31 Mavch 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Sake of products

- Finished goods

- Traded goods

Sak of services

Other operating revenue

Total revenue from operations

2,175.70 4,388.53
352.12 2,190.15
485.27 3.29
186.56 142.26

3,199.65 6,724.23
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Disaggregation of revenue:

In the following table, revenue (other than other operating revenue) is disaggregated by primary geographical

market, service lines and sales channels.

INR in million

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Primary geographical markets

India 491.11 2.193.62
Americas and Europe 808.10 2.700.94
Rest of the world 1.713.88 1.687.41
Total 3.013.09 6,581.97
Major product/service line
Dosage 3.013.09 6.581.97
Total 3, 013.09 6,581.97
Sales Channels
Manufacturers 3.013.09 6.581.97
Total 3,013.09 6,581.97
Contract Balances

INR in million

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Trade receivables
Contract assets
Contract liabilities

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price is as follows:

1.040.88 1,927.0%

270 38.92

230.65 737.41
TNR in million

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Contracted Price
Reductions towards discounts/variable consideration components

Revenue recognised

3,027.28 6.589.82
14.19 7.85
3,013.09 6.581.97

The amount of INR 171,27 million (previous year INR 1,026.39 million for both continuing and discontinued
operations) recognised in contract liabilities at the beginning of the period has been recognised as revenue
for the current year (also refer note 40). The balance amount of contract liabilities amounting to TNR 6.96

million has been transferred as a result of demetger as reported in note 40.

Unsatisfied (or partially satisfied) performance obligations are subject to variability due to several factors
such as terminations, changes in scope of contracts, periodic revalidations of the estimates, economic factors
(changes in currency rates, tax laws etc). The aggregate value of transaction price allocated to unsatisfied
(or partially satisfied) performance obligations, excluding those where original expected duration of one
year or less, amounts to INR 17.81 million (previous year INR 62.34 miliion) majority of which is expected

to be recognised as revenue in next 2 years.
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15, Other income

INR in million

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Governiment Grant Income

Interest income

Gain on sale/disposaVdiscard of property, plant and equipments (net)
Rental Income

Other items

Total other income

16. Cost of materials consumed

8.31 -

0.08 4.84

- 83.22

53.90 -

4.28 -

66.57 88.06
INR in million

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Raw materials consumed
Total cost of materials consumed

17. Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

2.56 1.975.57
212.56 1,975,587
INR in million

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Opening balance

Work-in-progress

Finished goods

Stock-in-trade

Tetal opening balance

Adjustment / Transter pursuant to the demerger Scheme

{Refer note 40)

Closing balance

Work-in-progress

Finished goods

Stock-in-trade

Total closing balance

Total changes in inve ntories of finished goods, stock-in-trade
and work-in-progress

Less : Net increase/(decrease) in inventory on account of
transfer

Nee Change in inventories

18. Employee benefits expense

2074.26 1.862.18
798.74 554.24
50.40 70.29
2,923.40 2.486.71
(2,218.24) -
301.74 2074.26
307.00 798.74
57.52 50.40
666.26 2,923.40
38.89 {436.69)

- (406.08)

38.59 (30.61)
INR in million

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salaries, wages, bonus, gratuity and allowances 1,183.80 1.080.38
Contribution to provident fund and other funds (refer note 24) 65.67 59.57
Employee share-based payment expense 2515 -
Staff welfare expenses 61.38 58.77
Total employee benefits expense 1.336.00 1,198.72
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19. Finance costs
INR i million
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 202) 31 March 2022

Interest expense*® 15.44 21.25
Other borrowing costs 0.34 3.32
Total finance costs 15.78 24.57

* Includes interest INR nil under section 234B and 234C of the Income-tax Act, 1961 {previous year INR
10,39 million). Also includes INR 7.26 million interest paid on custom duty (previous year nil).
Note:
(1) Finance costs on general borrowings amounting to INR 62.24 million (previous year INR 14 million)
has been capitalised during the year with a capitalisation rate of 2.55% (previous year 0.84%).

20. Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense
INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 351.98 37252
Amortisation of right of use assets (refer note 37) 48.17 34.93
Tmpairment of intangible assets (including intangibles under 1,202.34 156.37
development} (refer note 4)

Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4) 139.25 277.13
Total depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense 1,741.74 840.95
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21. Other Expenses:

TNR in million

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Power and fuel
Consumption of stores and spares and packing materials
Processing charges
Rental charges (refer note 29 & 37)
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Advertisement, publicity and sales promotion
Travel and conveyance
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and machinery
Buildings
Others
Office expenses
Vehick running and maintenance {refer note 29)
Printing and stationery
Telephone and communication charges
Staff recruitment and training
Donation (including corporate social responsibility expenditure) {refer
note 33)
Payments to auditors (refer note 21 (a))
Legal and professional fees
Freight and forwarding (including ocean freight)
Directors' sitting fees
Subscription
Bank charges
Claims and other selling expenses
Commission on sakes
Net foreign exchange loss
Allowance for expected loss
Loss on sale/disposal/discard of property, plant and equipments (net)
Miscellaneous expenses
Total other expenses

164.86 157.62
229,61 464.14
140.25 830.19
1.37 -
157.65 152.62
20.49 16.68
123,15 82.50
73.25 40.87
79.52 45.44
11.24 9.21
227.20 111.28
34.83 34.34
5.02 4.79
3.53 375
12,56 9.91
8.36 2.93
18.63 30.55
1.25 1.80
373.59 261.00
3323 140.36
0.19 0.36
15.05 18.10
1.49 441
20.43 67.24
8.26 11.43
2.28 8.81
27.78 21,95
335 =
13.09 =
1.812.01 2,535.83

11B. Details of payments to auditors {(excluding applicable taxes and including out of pocket expenses)

INR in million

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Payment to auditors

As auditor;

Audit fee

In other capacities

Certification and other service fees
Total payments to auditors

1.05 1.06
0.20 1.30
1.25 2.36
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22. Income tax expense

The major components of income tax expenses for the year ended 3| March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are:

INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
3lst March 2023 31s¢ Mavch 2022
Profit or loss section
Current tax:
Current tax charge for the year - 3427
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years 0.01 0.18
0.01 34.45
Deferred tax;
Deferred tax on profits for the year (843.51) 2L
Adjustments in respect of deferred tax of previous years 9.21 {4.36)
{836.30) 17.35
Income tax expense of continuing operations (836.29) 51.81
Income tax expense of discontinued operations - 4.82
Income tax expense / (benefit) (836.29) 56.63
OCT section:
Tax related to #ems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Tax related to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss {2.73) 4,76
(2.73) 4.76
Tucome tax expense/(benefit} of continuing operations (2.73) 1.75
Income tax benefit of discontinued operations - 3.0
Income tax expense/(benefit) (2.73) 4.76
Income tax expense of continuing operations (839.02) 33.56
Income tax expense of discontinued operations - 7.83
Income tax expense / (benefit) (839.02) 61.39
Reconciliation between average effective tax rate and applicable tax rate for the year:
INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit betore income tax from continuing operations (2.723.90) 156.21
Profit before income tax from discontinued operations B 24.72
Profit before income tax {2,723.90) 180.93
Al India's statutory income tax rate of 34.944% (31 Mar 2022
34,044%) (951.84) 63.22
Effect of non-deductible expenses and exempt income 127.20 - 1534
Effect of change in tax rate on opening deferrad tax balance - -
Effect of lower tax rate on temporary diffetence of curvent year {13.94) (27.05)
Effect of prior year re-assessments 9.22 (4.18)
Others (6.93) 9.30
Income Tax expenses reported in the State ment of Profit and
Loss (836.29) 56.63
Income Tax expense of continuing operations (836.29) 51.81
Income Tax expense of discantinued operations - 4.82
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23, Research and development expenditure incurred (excluding cost of acquired intangibles, finance cost,
depreciation and amortization expense) comprises:
TNR in million

Revenue expenditure For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 20228

Cost of material consumed 116.80 212.62
Employee benetits expense 208.09 417.96
Utilities- power 25.20 36.76
Other expenses 56.85 291.77
Total revenue expenditure (A) 406.94 959.11

# Out of above INR 212.32 million pertains to discontinued operations

Out of the above total expenditure, the amount of R&D expenditure transferred to Intangibles/ Intangible assets
under development is INR 212.32 Million {previous year INR 366.38 million). This should also be read in
conjunction with other disclosures made in the financial statements,

Capital expenditure (equipment)

INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022#

Capital expenditure

Equipment 13.75 64.18
Total capital expenditure (B) 13.75 64.18
Total (A+B) 420.69 1,023.29

# Out of abave INR 30.88 million pertains to discontinued operations
24, Employee benefits in respect of the Company have been calculated as under:

{(A) Defined Contribution Plans

The Company has certain defined coniribution plan such as employee state insurance, employee pension
scheme, wherein specified percentage is contributed to them. During the year, the Company has conttibuted
following amounts to:

INR in million

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 20224

Employet's contribution to provident fund (refer note 24(B)}ii)) 44.03 24.40
Employet's contribution to employee’s pension scheme 1995 20.43 33.00
Employer's contribution te emplovee state insurance 1.21 2.06

# out of above INR 25.54 million pertains to discontinued operations
(B) Defined Benefit Plans
i. Gratuity

In Accordance with Ind AS 19 “Employee benefits” an actuarial valuation has been carried out in respect of
graity.

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an
independent actuary, at each balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method. The discount rate
assumed is 7.35% p.a. (Previous year 7.2 % p.a.) which is determined by reference to market yield at the

43



Jubilant Generies Limited
MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

balance sheet date on Government bonds. The retirement age has been considered at 58 years (Previous year
58 years) and mortality table is as per TALM (2012-14) (Previous year TALM (2012-14).

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actwarial valuation is 10% p.a. for first three years
and 6% p.a. thereafter (Previous year 10% p.a. for first three years and 6% p.a. thereafter), taking into account
of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment
market,

During the previous year, plan assets were maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India in respect
of gratuity scheme for certain employees at Nanjangud manufacturing unit of the Company, which has been
transferred out as a result of demerger Scheme (Refer note 40). The details of investments maintained by
Life Insurance Corporation were not available with the Company, hence not disclosed. The expected rate of
return assumed on plan assets was 6.80 % p.a.

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation:

INR in million

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Present vahe of obligation at the beginning of the vear 27713 260.72

Current service cost 14,71 36.23

Transter In / Out (inchiding transferred pusuant to the demerger (163.42) (78

Scheme, refer note 40)

Interest cost 8.18 17.73

Actuarial (gan)/loss 7.81 (13.63)

Benefits paid (57.02) (25.709

Present value of obligation at the end of the vear 37.39 277.13
Fair Value of Plan Assets**:

TNR in million

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Plan assels at the begitmig of the year 20.67 32.07

Expected retum on plan assets - 212

Contribution by employer 2.34

Actal benefits paid {6.64)

Fund management charges - (0.72)

Transferred pusuant to the demerger Scheeme (refer note 40) (29.67) -

Plan assets at the end of the year - 29.67

** In respect of certain employees of Nanjangud manufacturing unit of the Company, which has been

transferred out as a result of demerger Scheme (Refer note 40).

Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets:

INR in million

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 87.39 27113
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the vear - {29.67)
Net liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet 87.39 24746
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Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss under employee benefit expense:

INR in million

For the vear ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 20224

Current service cost [4.71 36.23
Interest cost 8.18 15.55
Expenses recognised in the Statement of profit and loss 22.89 51.77
# oul of above INR 25.54 miliion pertains to discontinued operations
Amount recognised in the other comprehensive income:

INR in million

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022#

Actuarial loss/(gain) on arising from change in demographic assumption

Actuarial loss/(gain) on arising from change in financial assumption
Actuarial loss/(gain) on arising from experience adjustment
Actuarial loss/{gain) on plan assets

(0.96)

(0.94)
9.70

(1.27)

(3.20)
(717

# out of above TNR (8.58) million pertains to discontinued operations

Company’s best estimate of contribution during next year is INR 19.7 million (previous year INR 59.16

million).

As at 31 March 2023 there are no plan assets, and as at 31 March 2022, 100% of the plan assets were invested

in insurer managed funds.

Sensitivity analysis

[MNR, in million
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Assumptions Discount rate Futore salary increase
Sensilivity kevel 0.5% inciease 0.5% d 0.5% i 0.5% deciease
Impact on defingd benedit (0.62) 0.63 0.64 (0.63)

MR in niillion
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increase
Sensitivity level 0.5% increase 0 5% decrease 0 5% mcrease 0.5% decrease
Tmpact on defned benefil (915 273 9.7 {2.23)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the year and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on
a change in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.

ii. Provident Fund:

The Company made monthly contributions to the recognised provident fund - "VAM Employees Provident
Fund Trust” {a multi-employer trust) for most of its employees in India, for the period starting with 1 April
2021 till 30 November 2021. Post | December 2021, these contributions are made with the regional provident
fund authority for qualifying employees. Under the scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified
percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits.

The Company has contributed INR 65.67 million to Provident Fund Trust (previous year; INR 48.30 million)
during the year,
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(C) Other long term benefits (Compensated absences)

INR in million
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 58.80 148.39
25. Fair value measurements
INF. 1 miilion
30 March 2023 31 March 2022
Level of
Note tserarchy FPL Fvoct AU py gy Amertised
cost cost
Fluanciaf asseis {excludivg ivextment in subsidinrizs)
Trade receivablys ] . - 1M0gs . - 19tog
Loons it) 3 = 131 : - 326l
Cash and cash equivalents (a) - - 955 - - 546
Orher bank balnces 1) - - 160 i - 183
Other financial assets 12} - - m»n . - %
Toted financial asse s - - 13366 - - 606994
Fliuncind Fabilities
Borrowinys {a) 3 : - LS . - 00
Trade puyables (A} - - 119837 - - 247 ¥
Onber financtal liabiliies (a) - . 529.50 - - 685.99
Lease baliine {al - - 6511 - - 177.03
Total fnancial lishalities > - 191853 - - 38508
Inter-relations hip
Significant between key
Type Valuation technique vnobservabl wnobservable inputs
¢ inpuis and fair valwe
measuvement
Discounted cash
Slows: The valuation  Adjusted  The estimated fair
. model considers the  discount rate: value would ncrease
Loans to celated parties present value of Nil {decrease) if the
expected cashflows (2022:  adjusted discount rate
discounted using an 6.75%)  was lower (higher)
adjusted discount rate
Note:

(a) Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities with shott term maturities is considered as approximate to
respective carrying amount due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

{b) Fair valuation of non-current financial assets has been disclosed to be same as carrying value as there is
no significant difference between carrying value and fair value.

(c}Fair value of loans is as below:

{TNR in million)
Level Fair Value
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Loans 3 1.31 3.274.58
Borrowings 3 1.122.55 640.00
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There are no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year ended 31 March 2023 and
31 March 2022,

26. Financial risk management
A. Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

Risk management franmework

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework.

The Company, through three layers of defense namely policies and procedures, review mechanism and
assurance aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations. The Audit committee of the Board with top management oversees the
formulation and implementation of the Risk management policies, The risks are identified at business unit level
and mitigation plan are identified, deliberated and reviewed at appropriate forums.

The Company has exposure to the following tisks arising from financial instraments:

- credit risk (see (i}
liquidity risk (see (ii}); and
- market risk (see (iii)).

i. Credit risk

-

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter party to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers,
loans and investments. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk exposure.

Trade receivables and other financial assets

The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for
creditworthiness before the Company’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The
Company’s review includes external ratings, if they are available, financial statements, credit agency
information, industry information and business intelligence. Sale limits are established for each customer and
reviewed annually. Any sales exceeding those limits require approval from the appropriate authority as per

policy.

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are compared according to their credit characteristics, including
whether they are an individual or a legal entity, whether they are an institutional dealers or end-user customer,
their geographic location, industry, trade history with the Company and existence of previous financial
difficulties.

Expected credit loss for trade receivables:

Based on internal assessment which is driven by the historical experience/ current facts available in relation to
default and delays in collection thereof, the credit risk for trade receivables is. considered low. The Com pany
estimates its allowance for trade receivable using lifetime expected credit loss. The balance past due for mote
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than six months (net of expected credit loss allowance} is INR 193.24 million (Previous year TNR 253.50
million)

Company’s exposure to credit risk for trade receivables using provision matrix is as follows:

TNR in million
As at 31 March 2023 Asg at 31 March 2022
Gross  Allowance Net Gross  Allowance Net
carrying for credit  cawying carrying  for credit carrying
amount losses® amount amount losses Amount
Mot due 357.05 0.59 356.46 1,336.11 24,46 1,319.90
0-90 days 235.50 0.48 235.02 249 83 5.89 243.94
90-180 days 254,57 0.17 254.40 108.80 0.51 109.74
180-270 days 134.31 0.85 133.46 147.61 0.25 147.36
270-360 days 8.87 1.53 7.34 01.30 0.22 87.64
More than 360 davs 103.15 48.95 34.20 27.33 2,57 18.50
1,093.45 52,57 1,040.88 1,960.98 33.90 1,927.08
Movement in the expected credit loss allowance of trade receivables are as follows:
TNR in million
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 3390 10.20
Transferred pursuant to the Scheme of demerger (refer note
(8.03) -
40)
Less)fadd: Reversed/provided during the year of
(Less) cd/provided during the year (net 26.70 23.70
reversal)
Balance at the end of the year 52.57 33.90

* Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring
banktuptcy or failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company.

Expected credit loss with respect 1o other financial assets:

With regards to all financial assets with contractual cash flows other than trade receivable, management believes
these to be high quality assets with negligible credit risk. The management believes that the parties from which
these financial assets are recoverable, have strong capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of default
is negligible and accordingly no provision for excepted credit loss has been provided on these financial assets.
Break up of financial assets other than trade receivables have been disclosed on balance sheet.

ii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company’s treasury department is responsible for managing the short term and long term liquidity
requirements. Short term liquidity situation is reviewed daily by the treasury department. Longer term liquidity

position is reviewed on a regular basis by the Board of Directors and appropriate decisions are taken according
to the situation.
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Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts
exclude contractual interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.
TNR in million

Contractual Cash flows (1)

31 Mareh 2023 Carrying Total Within 1 More than
Amount year 1 year

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Bomowings 112255 1,12255 1,122 55 -

Lease liability 65.11 6511 19.52 4559

Trade payables £,198 37 1,198 37 1,198 37 -

Crher financial liabilities 520 50 529.50 529.50 -
2.915.5) 291553 2.869.94 45.59

{1) Contractual cash flow excludes interest payable
TNR in milion

Contractual Cash flows (1)

31 March 2022 Carrying Toial Within L More than
Amount YEAT 1 year

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Borrowings 640 00 64000 640 00 -

Lease fiabilicy 137.03 137.03 6556 7147

Trade payables 2427134 242784 2427 84 -

Other {inancial liabilities 685 99 63599 685 99 -
3.890.86 3.390.86 3.819.39 71.47

iti. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates that will
affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising
the return,

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is 2 mismatch between the currencies in which
sales, purchases and borrowings are denominated. The currencies in which the company is exposed to tisk are
USD, Euro, CAD and Other.

The Company follows a natural hedge driven currency risk mitigation policy to the extent possible, Any residual
risk is evaluated and appropriate risk mitigating steps are taken.

Exposure to currency risk
The summary quantitative data about the Company’s exposure to currency risk as reported to the management
of the Company is as follows:

IR o millon

As a3 Much 2023 As a1 31 March 2022 —

UsD Ewg CAD Other USD Euro CAD Other

Trade and olier receivables 647 37 103 77 151 MG 1.874 56 191 66 g 132.03
Cash aid cash equivalentz - - > . e - = =
Trade and ather evables (704 65) {26 Bd) {725 (1567 (1581530 (7389 (2558 (3517
Met statemsent of finurinl posiion exposure {61.38) 16.93 136 25849 23303 LN .29 103.56
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Sensitivity analpsis

A reasonably possible strengthening/weakening of the USD, Euro, CAD and others against all other currencies
at 31 March would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency
and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact on forecast sales and purchases.

INR in million
Profit or loss (before tax) OC]1 (before tax)
Strengthe ning Weakening Strengthening  Weakening
31 March 2023
USD (1% movement) {0.61) 06] - -
Euro (1% movement) 077 (0.7 - -
CAD (1% movement) 008 (0.08) - -
Other (1% movement) 2.58 {2 58) - -
31 March 2022
USD (1% movement) 2,93 (2.93) - -
Euro { 1% movement) 118 (t.1%) - -
CAD (1% movement) 0.07 (0.07) - -
Other { 1% movement) 1 .04 {1.04) - -

Interest rate risk

Tnterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because funds are borrowed at
both fixed and floating interest rates, Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for chan ges
in variable interest rate. The borrowings of the Company are principally denominated in INR with a mix of
fixed and floating rates of interest. The Company has exposure to interest rate risk, arising principally on
changes in base lending rate. The risk is managed by the Company by maintaining an approptiate mix between
fixed and floating rate borrowings.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the

management of the Comipany is as follows:

The following table provides a break-up of the Company’s fixed and floating rate borrowings and floating
rate loan given:

INR in Million

As at As at

i 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Floating rate borrowings ’ 1.122.55 640.00
Floating rate loan given to ultimate holding company & fellow subsidiary - 3,257.00

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for floating rate
liabilities assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the year-end was outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 25 basis points higher / lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Company’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2023 would decrease / increase by INR 2.81 million (previous
year decrease / increase by INR 1.60 million). This is mainly attributable to the Company’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable rate borrowings.
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27. Segment reporting

Board of Directors of the Company has been identified as the Chief Opetating Decision maker (CODM) as
defined by Ind AS 108, “Operating Segments”. Operating Segments have been defined and presented based
on the regular review by the CODM to assess the performance of segment and to make decision about
altocation of resources. Accordingly, the Company has determined pharmaceutical as the only reportable
segment,

Information about Geographical segments:

The geographical information analyses the Company’s revenue (other than other operating revenue) and non-
current assets by the Company’s country of domicile and other countries. In presenting the geographical
information, segment revenue has been based on the geographical location of customers and segment assets
were based on the geograpliical location of the assets.

INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Primary geographical markets

India 491.11 2,193.62
Americas and Europe 808.10 2,700.94
Rest of the world 1.713.88 1,687.41
Total 3.013.09 6,581,97
INR. in million
As at As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Non-current assets (by geographical location of assets)*

Within Tndia 6.233.34 16,527.17
6,233.34 16,527.17
*Non-current assets are excluding financial instruments and deferred tax assets.
Major customers comprising more than 10% of total revenue
INR in million

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Sawai Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd. 670.38 -
Arrow Pharmaceuticals Pty Ltd. 33144 -
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 201.19 2,082.79
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc, 151.87 1.416.26

28. Capital management
Risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:

¢ safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for its
shareholders and benefits for other siakeholders, and

* maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing
ratio:

Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances) divided by ‘Total
equity’ (as shown in the Balance Sheet).

The gearing ratios were as follows:
INR in million

Asat = As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Net debt L109.17 630.71
Total equity 11.911.16 25376.34
Net debt to equity ratio _ ] 0.09 0.02

29. Related Party Disclosures

i) Related parties of the Company

Ultimate Holding Company
Jubilant Pharmova Limited

Holding Company
Jubilant Pharma Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries (including partnevship firm)
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC

Jubilant Biosys Limited

Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc.
Jubilant DraxImage Inc.

Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc.

Jubilant Pharma Australia Pty Limited
Jubilant Draximage Limited

Jubilant Pharma South Afiica Pty Limited
Jubilant Business Services Limited
Jubilant Pharma UK Limited

Jubilant HollisterStier General Partnership
Jubilant Pharma ME FZ - LLC

Subsidiary
Jubilant Pharma NV

Step-down Subsidiaries
Jubilant Pharmaceuticals NV
PSI Supply NV

Other Entities
Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited
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Vam Employees Provident Fund Trust

Jubilant Enpro Private Limited

Jubilant Bhartia Foundation

Jubilant Ingrevia Limited

Jubilant Foodworks Limited (with effect from 19 July 2021)

Jubilant Life Sciences Limited (Sanghai) (with effect from 31 March 2022)
Jubilant Sports Car Pvt. Limited (with effect from 21 October 2021)

Key Managerial Personnel

Ms. Sudha Pillai

Mr. Jasdeepsingh Gurdeepsingh Sood

Mr. Arvind Chokhany, appointed as Director with effect from 3 June 2021

Dr, Jaidev Sanjeev Rajpal, appointed as Additional Director and Managing Director and CEQ of the
Company with effect from 11 October 2022

Mr. Anant Pande, resigned as Director of the Company with effect from 31 March 2022

Mr. Christopher Stanely Krawtschuk — appointed as Director with effect from June 3, 2021 and resigned
as Director of the Company with effect from 14 September 2022

Mr. Pramod Yadav, resighed as Director of the Company with effect from 14 September 2022

Mr. Ramamurthi Kumar, appointed as Director with effect from 1 April, 2022, and resigned as Director
of the Company with effect from 30 June 2022
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INR in million
SElb [Amticulais For the year ¢nded| For the year ended
Description of Transactions: 31 March 2023 2 Rlanchies
1 Sales of goods and services:
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 201.19 2,082,779
Jubitant Pharma Holding Inc. 151.87 1.416.26
Jubilant Phaema ME FZ —-LLC 12.84 -
Jubilznt HollisterStier LLC 55.27 0.18
PSI Supply NV 90.82 239.43
Jubilant Draximage Ing. 80.72 -
Tubilant Pharma UK Ltd 183.22 -
Jubilant Tngrevia Limited 0.18 -
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 183.47 -
Jubilant HollisterStier General Partnership 21.14 -
Jubilant Pharma SA (Pty) Lid 85.86 47.15
1.066.58 3,785.81
2 Rental and other expenses:
Jubilant Pharmwova Limited 48.57 80.21
Jubilant Tngrevia Limited 5.25 10.78
53.82 90.99
3 Purchase of goods and services:
Jubilant Pharma Australia PTY LTD 2.45 -
Jubilant P harmova Limited 308.20 -
Jubilant Pharma Australia Pty Lim#ted - 3.01
Jubilant Biosys Limited 6.47 20.19
Jubilant Pharma SA (Pty) Ltd 9.40 16.38
Jubilant Business Services Limited = 60.05
Jubilant Pharma UK Ltd 12.83 17.66
Jubitant Tngrevia Limited - 2.49
339.35 119,78
4 Intevest income
Jubilant Pharmova Limited - 197.38
Tubilant Draximage Limited 0.23 0.42
0.23 197.80
5 Sale of Merchandise Exports from ladia Scheme scrip:
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited £3.75% z
6 Sale of Intangible assets & Intangibles under devole pment
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticak Inc. - 522.61
7 Net asscts transfe ered pursuant to demerger Scheme (Refer
note 40)
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 11.572.49 -
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INR. i million
Se.No Particulars Forthe year ended| For the year ended
31 March 2023 3t March 2022
Description of Transactions:
8 Recovery of expenses:
Jubilant HollisterStier General Partnership - 20.58
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC - 51.31
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 439.84 -
Jubilant Cadista Pharmacenticals Inc. - 29.33
Jubilant Biosys Limited - 11.68
lubitant Draxlmage [ne. - 37.05
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc, - 73.54
Jubilant Draximage Radiopharmacies Inc. - 16.57
Jubilant Pharma Limited 010 1.48
Jubilant Business Services Limited 2.00 0.23
Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited - 5.98
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 0.04 -
Jubilant Pharma Holding Ine. 12.62 -
454.60 297.75
9 Sale of prope rty plant and e quipme nt:
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 33.15 =
Jubilant Biosys Limited 21.31 -
Jubilant DraxImage Tnc. 2273 -
77.19 -
10 Purchase of prope rty plant and e quipmeni:
Jubilant Sports Cars Private Limited - 11.40
11 Reimbursement of e xpenses:
Jubilant Pharma Holding Ine. 96.34 291.44
Jubilant Pharma UK Lid 2.40 B
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 11.04 84.37
Jubilant DraxTmage Inc, 0.27 0.03
Jubilant Pharma SA (Pty) Ltd 4.09 -
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 5545 150.74
Jubilant Pharmaceuticals NV 55.52 51.63
PSI Supply NV 0.20 2.68
Jubilant Pharma Limited 81.05 96.85
Jubilant Pharma Australia Pty Linixed - 1.33
Jubilant Business Services Limited - 0.02
Jubilant Pharma South Africa Pty Limited - 1.08
Jubilant Pharma Australia PTY LTD 0.58 -
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 57.51 129.87
Jubilant Food Works Limited 0.01 092
Jubilant Life Sciences (Shanghai) Lid - 27.11
364.46 838.07
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INR in million

Sr. No. |Particulars For the year ended| For the year ended
—— - 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Description of Transactions:
12 Donations:
Jubilant Bhartia Foundation 18.63 28.50
18.63 28.50
13 Remuneration and Related Expenses*:
Mr. Jasdeepsingh Gurdeepsingh Sood 22.54 2040
Dr. Jaidev Sanjeev Rajpal 43.11 -
65.65 20.40
14 Sitting fees:
Ms. Sudha Pillai 0.19 0.36
0.19 0.36
15 Company's Contribution to PF Trust :
Vam Emplovee Provident Fund Trust - 438.30
- 48.30
16 Recovery of Payments made on behalf of API:
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 230.19 -
230.19 4
17 Collections made on behalf of APT:
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 74.36 4
74.36 -
1% Rental Income
Jubilant Phannova Limited 63.60 -
63.60 -
19 Employce Benefit Transfer:
Jubilant Phannova Limited 1427 -
Jubilant Tngrevia Limited 0.53 .
14.80 =
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INR m million
Sr.No Particulars As at
31 March 2023 31 Mawch 2022
20 Amount Outstandings :
Trade payables:
Jubilant Pharma Ausiralia Pty Lid 1.13 -
Jubilant DraxImage Tnc. 0.31 0.07
Tubilant HollisterStier General Partnetship - 0.35
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 141.37 59.56
Jubilant Pharma Holding Inc. 113.91 149.23
Jubilant Biosys Limited - 5.98
Jubilant Pharmaceuticals NV 24.66 39.56
Jubilant Pharma Australia Pty Limited - 1.10
PSI Supply NV - 0.83
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited 94.86 -
Jubilant Business services Limited - 0.59
Jubilant Pharma SA (Pty)} Lid 0.03 3.69
Jubilant Pharma Limited 111.08 28.37
Jubilant Life Sciences (Shanghai) Ltd - 2711
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 55.20 6.38
Jubilant Pharma UK. Lid - 4.00
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. # -
542.55 327.37
21 Other payables:
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 425.25 394.66
22 Advance from customers
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 165.09 560.17
165.09 560.17
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INR in million
Sr.No Particulars As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
23 Interest receivable:
Jubilant Pharmova Linited - 16.77
Jubilant Draximage Limited - 0.14
- 16.91
24 Receivable against inter corporate deposit
Jubilant Pharmova Limited - 3.250.00
Jubilant Draximage Limited - 7.00
- 3,257.00
25 Trade receivables:
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc. 81.50 303.49
Jubilant Pharma ME FZ —LI.C 12,98 -
PST Supply NV 100.27 221.04
Jubilant Biosys Ltd 2.37 10.12
Jubitant Pharma SA (Pty) Lid 56.01 48,59
Jubilant Pharma UK Tid 187.82 -
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 136.54 -
Jubilant Draximage Inc. 12.69 -
Jubilant HollisterStier General Partnership 3.52 -
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC 7.27 -
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 112,92 -
713.88 583.24
26 Other receivables:
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 34.46 546.35
Jubilant Biosys Limited 18.93 1.53
Jubilant Draximage [nc. 22.54 31.35
Jobifant Pharima Holding Tnc. 0.78 -
Jubitant Draximage Radiopharmacies - 8.16
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC 0.00 20.54
Jubitant HollisterStier General Partunership (0.00) 14.32
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc. - 25.50
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 143.48 10.24
Tubilant Ingrevia Limited 3.85 6.09
Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited - 547
Tubilant Pharma Limited 0.02 0.18
226.06 669.73

* As the liabilities for the gratuity and compensated absences are provided on an actuarial basis, and
calculated for the company as a whole, the said liabilities pertaining specifically to KMP are not known and
hence, not included in the above table,

Breakup of remuneration to key management personnel were as follows:

INR in million

As at 31 March As at 31 March

2023 2022

Short term employment benefits 64.81 19.56
Post employment benefits 0.84 0.34
Sitting fees 0.19 0.36
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30. Contingent liabilities to the extent not provided for:

Claims against the Company, disputed by the Company, not acknowledged as debt:

TNR i million

As at 31 March As at 31 March

2023 2022

Service Tax - 0.79
Central Excise 7.83 7.83
Customs - 4.44
Goods and Service Tax 3.7 11.18
Others 126.80 153.31

Including claims in respect of TBP business acquired from Jubilant Pharmova Limited (formerly known as
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited), though the litigations may be continuing in the name of Jubilant Pharmova
Limited (formerly known as Jubilant Life Sciences Limited), however any liability arising in future relating
to these disputes will be borne by the Company.

Excluding claims in respect of API business of the Company demerged into Jubilant Pharmova Limited
{formerly known as Jubilant Life Sciences Limited), though the Jitigations may be continuing in the name
of the Company, however any liability arising in future relating to these disputes will be borne by Jubilant
Pharmova Limited (formerly known as Jubilant Life Sciences Limited) (refer note 40),

Additionally, the Company is involved in other disputes, lawsuits, claims, governmental and/ or regulatory
inspections, inquiries, investigations and proceedings, including commercial matters that arise from time to
time in the ordinary course of business.

The Company believes that none of these matters, either individually or in aggregate, are expected to have
any material adverse effect on its financial statements.

In July 2021, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“USFDA") placed the Roorkee facility under import
alert, which restricts supplies to the USA from the Roorkee facility. The USFDA earlier exempted certain
products from the import alert subject to certain conditions. Also, subsequent to the USFDA inspection in
July, 2022, the inspection classification has been concluded as “OAT” (Official Action Indicated) in October
2022. The Company continues to engage with the USFDA and take all necessary steps, including
comprehensive assessment and engaging independent consultants, to ensure continuous quality
improvements to resolve the import alert at the earliest. Manufacturing and supply of pharmaceutical
products continues from Roorkee facility to all other markets including an exempted product to the USA.

The above does not include all other obligations resulting from claims, legal pronouncements having
financial impact in respect of which the Company generally performs the assessment based on the external
legal opinion and the amount of which cannot be reliably estimated.

31. Commitments as at period end

a) Capital Commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) is INR 0.55
million (previous year INR 404.46 million).

59



Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

b) Other Commitments:

Export obligation undertaken by the Company under EPCG scheme to be completed over a period of six
years on account of import of Capital Goods at concessional import duty and remaining outstanding is INR
127.39 million (previous year INR 385.54 million). Similarly, export obligation under Advance License
Scheme/DFIA scheme on duty free import of specific raw materials, remaining outstanding is INR 3.04
million (previous year INR 120.02 million).

32. Disclosure pursuant to section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of unsecured loans to group
companies [Refer note 29];

INR in million
P ft [ 31 March 31 March
urpose of term loan 2023 2022
Ceneral business purpose and
interest rate
Quistanding as at the beginning of the period nil (Previous year 5.25% to 6 75% - 3.257.00
Quistanding as at the end of the period pal - 3.257.00
33. Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) Expense
INR in million
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Prescribed CSR expenditure as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 18.63 30,55

2013

Details of CSR spent during the period

a) Construction / acquisition of any asset - -
b) On purposes other than (a) above ([) 18.63 30.55

(1} Included n Donation (Refer note 21 and note 29)

34. Government grant recoverable INR 18.15 million (Previous year INR 22.78 million) and Government grant
recognized TNR 37.19 million (Previous year INR 53.65 million) in Statement of Profit and Loss.

35. Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises

There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the company owes dues, which are outstanding
for more than 45 days as at the end of period. The information as required to be disclosed in relation to Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the
basis of information available with the Company,
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INR in million
. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of
R 3332 33.08
the period
The interest due on principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier i 0.03
as at the end of the period '
The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of
the Micro, Smalt and Medium Eaterprises Development Act, 2006
(MSMED Act). along with the amount of the payment made to the ) i
supplier beyond the appointed day during the period
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the period) but without adding the interest specified under the i i
MSMED Act
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the ; 0.03
peried )
The amount of further interest remaining due and payabk even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as i )
a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act
36. Earnings per share
For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(Loss)Profit fiom continuing operations for basic and diluted eamiings per share of INR | each TNR in million (1,887 61) 104 40
Profit from discontinued operatiens for basic and dihuted eamings pee share of Rs. INR each INR in million . 1990
(Loss ){Profit for basic and diluted earnings per shave ol INR 1 each INR in million {1.887.61) 124.30
Weighted sverage number of equity shares used in computing earnings per share
For basic entmings per share Mas. 2,579,665 . 2,579,665
For diluled eamings per share:
No. of shares for basic earmings per share Nos 2579665 2579665
Add: Potential dilitive effects of stock options Nos Nos - -
No. ofshares for diluted eamings per share Nos. 1,579,665 2,579,665
(Loss) f earnings perequity share of INR [ each for continuing operations
Basw: INR (73173 40,47
Dituted INR (731.73) 047
{Loss) { eamings per equity shave of INR | each for discontinued operations
Bask INR - 77
Diluted INR - 771
(Loss) f earnings per equity share of INR [ each for continuing and disconiinued operations
Basic [NR (731.73) 4818
Dihwed INR (7IL.73) 48 18

37. Leases
a) As aLessee;
Leases under Ind AS 116 for the period ended 31 March 2023

The details of the right-of-use assets held by the Company is as follows:
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INR in million
Operating Operating Finance Total
Description ' Building Vehicle Vehicle (atb+e)
(2) (b) ()
Gross carrying value as at 1 April 2022 266.13 1.94 1167 279.74
Additions/adjustments - - 292 2.92
Deductions/adjustments on account of demerger (#Refer
Note 42) (4.94) - (1.09) (6.03)
Deductions/adjustments {158.90) - {3.60) (162.50)
Gross carvying value as at 31 Mavch 2023 102.29 1.94 92.90 114.14
Accumulated amortisation as at 1 April 2022 157.12 1.93 5.57 164.62
Amortisation charge for the period 45.82 0.01 2.33 48.16
Deductions/adjustments on account of demerger (¥Refer
, - g .03
Note 42) (0.60) (0.43) (1.03)
Deductions/adjustments {146.32) - {(3.60) (149.92)
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2023 56.02 1.94 3.87 61.84
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2023 46.27 0.00 6.04 52.30
Net carrying value as at 1 April 2022 109.01 0.01 6.10 115.12
INR i million
Operating Opervating Finance Total
Description Building  Vehicle Vehicle (atbrtc)
() (b) {c}
Gross carvying value as at 1 April 2021 269.55 1.94 10.27 281.76
Additions/adjustments 4,94 0.00 1.40 6.34
Deductions/adjustments (8.35) - - (8.36)
Gross carrying value as at 31 March 2022 266.13 1.94 11.67 279.74
Accumulated amortisation as at | Apnil 2021 101.00 1.36 27 105.07
Amortisation charge for the period 56.12 0.57 286 59.55
Deductions/adjustments 2 - - -
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2022 157.12 1.93 5.57 164,62
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2022 109.01 0.01 6.10 115.12
# TNR 5.21 million (previous year INR 14 million) amortisation capitalised during the period.
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss:
INR in million

For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022*

Interest on lease liabifities # 8.12 14.92
Rental expense relating to short term leases 1.37 5.90
Total 9.49 20.82

# INR 0,57 million interest has been capitalised during the year (previous year INR 2.39 million).
* represents amount in respect of continuing and discontinued operations
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Amount recognised in statement of cash flows:

INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Total cash outflow for leases (69.39) (67.23)
Total {69.3% (67.2%)

b) As a Lessor:
The details of assets included in note 3, given on operating lease are as follows:

INR_in milkion
As at 31 March 2023
Particul 'y e d Lease Rent
culars Gross Block ccunm. afe Net Block Received
De preciation

Land Yol - IM.60
Building, 13153 282.0) 849,52 53.90
Total 1506.13 25201 1224.12 53.20

The Company has given its land and building at Nanjangud on |ease vide [ease deed dated 29 July 2023 to
Jubilant Pharmova Limited for the purposes of occupation and to conduct its business with effect from | July
2022 for a period of 3 years till 30 June 2025. The deed can be extended for a period of 3 years on mutually
agreed terms by way of a fresh deed.

38. The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as
required by the transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Tncome-tax Act, 1961. Since the law
requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Company is in
the process of updating the documentation for the specified domestic transactions entered into with the specified
persons and the international transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the financial year
and expects such records to be in existence before the due date of filing of income tax retum, The management
is of the opinion that its specified domestic transactions and international transactions are at arm’s length so
that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of
tax expense and that of provision for taxation.
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39. Ratios:

Ratis Ninne iuier 1] inator 3432023 31-03-2022 %% change Reason [ variamce
Cuoren ralio Cuneni assels Current liabilives 10 146 -43% Refer Motz | below
Debr-Egry rato Tedal deli = Mon-cuntent bortanmgs {yross of  Tafat equaly (hivy o3 274% Incrense in working
Irasgaction vosts) + cuirent bomowmzs capital loans at the #nd
of the year
Debl senwe Enimgs Toe debit service = Profi beloe tax+ Deld senice = Fmance costs + seheduled pincipal 0l 24 214 =21 7% Reduction m
coveIaue il deprecralan and amortisalion cxpense + (nance  repayienis (exchiding prepaymentsd duwing the veur ior profiapdiny dunng the
casts + exceplional iles non-cuerent borrowings (inchudung cunént imtitics) and sear as comnpared W
lense Jaldlines [EVIOUS Y ear
Returm oo equaly Prodil Jor the vear Averape 1042} eque =1 1% N4t <2N6"% Reduciion in
Falks [oditalality during e
vear as counpared o
pret fous vear
Invenion wmorer  Revenue fram operations Avelage inveion 114K IR -G4%: Refer Nole | below
ratw
Tiade receinable  Revenue Niom operalions Average Irade receinable zin (5] 4% Refer Note | below
WMoV Falit
Trade pavable Met pirchases = Crogs purchases - purchase Averpge Irude pay ables k¥ RIS -43% Reler Mote | below
moLeEr 1o reium + other expenses nel of nen cash cxpenses
and dovarions
Mei capinal iwmover Reverus from operalions dverape working capital = Average {cumend asscls — L in ~55%, Increase M average
rann clurent habililies) workmg capital during
the »car a5 compared
10 [We ious vear
Met nodil ratio Prod Tow the year Revenue liom operabone -5 MR LN =I9% Reduction m
proftabihily dunng die
rear a8 compared w0
IMEVIDLE vear
Retwan en capitn)  Eomings before inderest and 1aves = Profit before Averave comlal emploned = Average {loval enquin + REE 0 5% =1%72% Reduction in
ey ed tas + (mnnge costs + exceplional iiems Do ings {gross of ransaclion cosis) + defzired ay profilabilvy during the
frabdlives - deforred 1% assets) vear 15 conpared to
JNevIoUS Y ear
Relum o et faw salue gamfloss) onmvesiments + nel  Average micsininls MA ™A NA
invesinkml gamfiloss) on sale of i + dividend
meOme

Note 1: Significant change in ratio is on account of demerger of the API business of the Company as per demerger
Scheme (refer note 40).

40. The Scheme of Arrangement (“the Scheme”) for demerger of the Active Pharmaceuticals Ingredients

business undertaking of Jubilant Generics Limited (“JGL™) and vesting of the same with the Jubilant
Pharmova Limited (“Ultimate Holding Company™) on a going concern basis, with an appointed date of 1
April 2022 was approved by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench (“the Tribunal®)
vide its order (“the Order™} dated 23 May 2022. The Company has filed the certified copy of the Order from
the Tribunal with the Registrar of Companies for registration in terms the requirements under the Companies
Act, 2013, to make the Scheme effective.

Scheme of Arrangement for Demerger of the AP] Undertaking of the Company

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting heid on 16 July 2021 had approved the Scheme of
Arrangement (*Scheme™) and subsequently filed with the Tribunal for demerger of the API Undertaking of
the Company and vesting of the same with Jubilant Pharmova Limited, on a going concern basis with an
appointed date of 1 April 2022, The Scheme was approved by Honourable NCLT, Allahabad Bench (“the
Tribunal™) vide its order dated 23 May 2022 {formal order received on 13 June 2022). The said NCLT order
was filed with the Registrar of Companies registration in terms the requirements under the Companies Act,
2013 by both the Company and Jubilant Pharmova Limited on 1 July 2022 thereby making the Scheme
effective on 1 July 2022,

Accounting of the demerger of the API Undertaking as per the approved Scheme;
Upon this Scheme coming into effect on the Effective Date on [ July 2022, and with effect from the

Appointed Date, the Company accounted for the demerger of the API Undertaking in its books of accounts
as under:
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(i) The Company reduced the book values of assets and liabilities of the API Undertaking as at the

close of business on the day immediately preceding the appointed date of 1 April 2022 in its books
of accounts; and

(ii) the Company made an adjustment equal to the book values of the API Undertaking, first in the

Capital Reserve to the extent available, and thereafter residual balance in the Seéurities Premium
under the head “Other Equity”.
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The book value of assets and liabilities transfetred as at the appointed date are as under:
INR in Million
As at
31 March 2022

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3,743.43
Capital work-in-progress 351.97
Goodwill 1,371.36
Other mtangible assets 9.96
Right of use assets 4.99
Financial assets

i. Loans 3,253.15
ii.  Others 27.83
Deferred tax assets {net) 353.34
Other non-current assets 15.79
Total non-current assets 9,131.82
Current assets

Inventories 3.231.82
Financial assets

i Trade receivables 1,114.78
ii.  Cash and cash equivalents 0.15
iil.  Other financial assets 149.83
Other current assets 319.38
Total current assets 4,815.96
Total assets (A) 13,947.78
LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i Lease Liabilities 3.62
Provisions 182.47
Other non-current liabilities 6.49
Total non-current liabilities 192.58

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i.  Lease Liabilities 1.82
ii.  Trade payables 1,516.75
ii.  Other financial liabilities 132,15
Other current liabilities 501.41
Provisions 30.58
Total current liabilities 2,182.71
Total liabilities (B) 2,375.29
Net assets transferred pursuant to the demerger Scheme (A) - (B) 11,572.4%

Utilisation ofreserves for transfer of net assets pusvant to the demerger Scheme
INR in Million

As at

31 March 2022

Capital Reserve 3,512.42
Securities Premium 8.060.07

11,572.49
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

41.

The Company presented the API business undertaking as discontinued operations during the yeat ended 31

March 2022 in accordance with Ind AS 1035 as below:

{a) Results of discontinued operations

INR in million

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Revenue from operations 6,445.23
Other income 200.32
Total income 6,645.55
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 3,702.61
Purchases of stock-in-trade 2028
Changes in inventories of fmished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in- (406.08)
progress
Employee benefits expense 1,144,30
Finance costs 1.40
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense 306.63
Other expenses 1,845.69
Total expenses 6,620.83
Profit before tax 24.72
Tax expense/{benefits)
= Current tax 6.19
- Defetred tax charge/(credit) (1.3
Total tax expense/(benefits) 4.82
Profit for the year from discontinued ope rations 19.90
Other comprehensive income/(loss)} from discontinued operations
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit obligations 8.58
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclasssified to profit or loss (3.01)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 5.58
(b) The net cash flows atiributable to the discontinued operations are as follows:

INR in Million

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Net cash generated from operating activities 167.91
Net cash used in investing activities (157.57)
Net cash used in from financing activities (1.99)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 8.35

The Company has foreign currency receivables aggregating to INR 55.24 million (previous year INR 101.58
million} which are outstanding for more than nine months as at March 31, 2023 and foreign currency payables
aggregating to INR 693.44 million (previous year INR 583.92 million) which are outstanding for more than
six months as at March 31, 2023. The Company is in the process of applying to its authorised dealer bank for
extension of time for receipt of above mentioned receivables, The Company has already applied to its
authorised dealer bank for obtaining approval for payment of INR 247.74 million (previous year INR 228.52
million). The Company is in the process of applying to its authorised dealer bank for extension of time for
payment of other payables.
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42. Transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560
of the Companies Act, 1956

[HE in milkon
Name of struck off company ?::;:;rmn Balanee outs tanding Relationship with

the struck off

Asat3IMamh  Asat3iMarch o000

2023 2022 company, if any

. . Advance for supply
Rachana Rubbers Private Limited 0.60
es rma of goods and

43. Additional Information:

a) No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

b) The Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

¢) The Company has not entered any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of the
Companies Act,2013, or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 except as disclosed in financial statements
(refer note 42).

d) There are no transaction which has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

¢) There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

) There are no funds which have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intenmediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the [ntermediary shall:

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Company or
ii) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

g) There are no funds which have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall:

i} directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or
if) Provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

h.) The Company (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016)

does not have any Core Investment Company.

44. Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified to confirm to current period’s classification. Also
refer to note 40,

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICA{ Fffim Registration Number.: 101248W/W-100022

>

For and on behalf of the Board of Dvirectors of

Jubilant Generics Limited

Manish Gupta
Partner

Membership No: 095037

Place: Noida
Date: 29 May 2023

Jasdeepsingh
Gurdeepsingh Sood

Whole-time Director

DIN: 03383578

Place: Noida
Date: 26 May 2023

Dr. Jaidev Sanjeev
Rajpal

Managing Director
& CEO

DIN: - 09734618

Place: Noida
Date: 26 May 2023
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Chartered Accountants
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DLF Cyber City, Phase-l), ax
Gurugram — 122 002, India

Independent Anditor’s Report
To the Members of Jubilant Generics Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Jubilant Generics Limited {the “Company”), which comprise the balance
sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income}, statement of

changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2022, and its profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our andit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act.
Qur responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfitled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is 1o read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 1o be materially misstated. 1f, based on the work we have performed. we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

When we read the other information, it we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions as required under applicable laws
and regulations.

Vst i o 1N
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Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fravd or error.

[n preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial staiements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughont the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
1o financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors,

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors nse of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on

i
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the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to cemmunicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexuré A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

a)

b)

<)

d)

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the writien representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B,

{(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

a)

b)

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its
financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 30 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company

-
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d) (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

= directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Company or

= provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall:

= directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or

= provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(iii)Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

e) The Company has neither deciared nor paid any dividend during the year.

{(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down
under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details
under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accowmtans
ICAI Kirm's Registration No.101248W/W-100022

Manish Gupta
Place: Delhi Partner

Date: May 26, 2022 Membership No. 095037
UDIN: 22095037AJRKWRG6299



BSR & Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Aunditor’s Report on Financial Statements of Jubilant Generics

Limited

{Referred to in our report of even date)

()

(i}

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

{(a) (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical
verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment
are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this
programme, certain property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our
opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. As informed to us, certain discrepancies noticed on such
verification were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of account,

{c)} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than
immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of
the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant
and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

{e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(a) The inventory, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, has been
physically verified by the management during the year. For stocks [ying with third parties at
the year-end, written confirmations have been obtained and for goods-in-transit subsequent
evidence of receipts hag been tinked with inventory records. In our opinion, the frequency of
such verification is reasonabl&and procedures and coverage as followed by management were
appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and
the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital
limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by
the Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of

account of the Company.
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(iif)

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments,
provided any guarantee or security, granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during the
year. The Company has renewed loan to one company during the vear, details of the loan is
stated in sub-clause (B} as below. The Company has net provided any loans, secured or
unsecured, to firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year

A. Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations

given to us, the Company has not granted any loan during the year to parties other than one
fellow subsidiary.

B. Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us, the aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet
date with respect to a loan renewed to one fellow subsidiary is as below:

In INR million

Particulars Guarantees | Security Loans Advances in
nature of loans

Aggregate amount
during the year

- Subsidiaries
- Joint ventures
- Associates

- Others - - B

Balance

outstanding as at
balance sheet date

- Subsidiaries
- Joint ventures
- Associates

_ Others = = 7 =

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of the loan given is, prima
facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given (including loan renewed
during the year) in earlier years, in our tpinion the repayment of principal and payment of
interest has been stipulated. As stipulated, there was no repayment or receipt due during the
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(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

year. Further, the Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party during
the year.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety
days in respect of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature
of loans to any party during the year.

(&) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion following instances of loans falling
due during the year were renewed or extended or settled by fresh loans:

In INR million
Name of the Aggregate amount dues renewed or Percentage of the
parties extended or settled by fresh loans aggregate to the total

loans or advances in the
nature of loans granted
during the year

Jubilant Draximage 7.00 100%
Limited

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security as
specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). In respect of
loans granted and the investments made by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of
Section 185 and 186 of the Act, as applicable, have been complied with,

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section
143(1) of the Act in respect of its manufactured goods (and/or services provided by it} and are
of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of the records with a
view to determine whether these are accurate or complete.

(a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been

subsumed into GST.
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According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the bocks of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax (‘GST”),
Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other
statutory dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities;

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Services Tax (*GST’), Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of
Customs, Cess and other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no dues relating to Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or
other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, except as
mentioned below:

Amount | Amount paid | Financial
involved* | under protest year
- Forum where
Name of the Statute Nature of to which dispute is
the Dues {Rs. in (Rs. in the endin
million) million) amount p g
relates
High court,
3.59 o 2910-1) Uttarakhand
Central Excise Act, Excise Deputy
1944 Duty Commissioner
0.05 i 2O {Excise),
Dehradun
Joint
Commissioner,
Central Goods and Joodsand | g9 18 201819 1 Commercial Tax
Services Tax Act, 2017 Tax {Appeal)
Deputy
5.67 0.51 2019-20 Commissioner

*amount as per demand orders including interest and penalty, wherever indicated in the order.

(viii)

(ix)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

{(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of
loans and borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.
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x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c} of the
Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have
been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as
defined under the Act,

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its subsidiaries (as defined under the Act).

{a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the
year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12)
of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(¢) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

A
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(xvi)

(xiv)

(xv}

(xvii)

(xviii}

(xix)

(a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our
opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

{b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

{c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company,
the Group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any Core Investment Company. For reporting on this clause
/ sub clause, while we have performed the audit procedures, we have relied on and not been
able to independently validate the information provided to us by the management of the
Company with respect to entities outside the consolidated Group but covered in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year,

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii} of the Order is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

Also refer to the Other Information paragraph of our main audit report which explains that the
other information comprising the information included in Board of Director’s report is expected
to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.
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(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no
unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project.
Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)}(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Eirms Registration No.101248W/W-100022

Manish Gupta
Place: Delhi Parmer
Date: May 26, 2022 Membership No. 095037

UDIN: 22095037AJRKWR6299
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements of Jubilant Generics
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

Referred to in paragraph 2{A)(f) under ‘Report on Qther Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Jubilant Generics
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “Guidance Note™).

Mamagement’s Respensibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial stalements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Act™),

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such
mternal financial controls, assessing the risk that a materjal weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reljability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and proceduresthat
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstateroents
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For BSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Eirm's Registration No.101248W/W-100022

Manish Gupta
] Partner
Ptace: Delhi Membership No. (95037
Date: May 26, 2022 »  UDIN: 22095037AJRK WR6299



Jubilant Generics Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

Notes
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3
Capital work-in-progress 3
Goodwil 4
Other intangible assets 4
Intangible assets under development 4
Right of use assets 37
Fmancial assets
i Investments 5(a)
i Loans 5b)
i Others 5(c)
Deferred tax assets {net) 6
Income tax assets (uet)
Other non-current assets 7
Total non-current asseis
Current assets
Inventories 8
Financial assets
i Trade receivables 5(d)
i. Cash and cash ¢quivakents 5(e)
ii.  Other bank balances )
iv. Loans 5(b)
v.  Other financial assets 5(g)
Other current assets 9
Total current assets
Total assets

INR in million

As at

31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

7,445.41 7.716.66
642,99 287.01
1,371.36 1,371.36
284.86 522,17
3,346.89 3,568.33
115.12 176.69
4,055.00 4.055.00
3,255.39 3.256.03
44,63 4327
1,087.81 1,108.55
2.90 531
17.62 20.50
21,669.98 22,130.88
5,014.03 4.490.30
1,927.08 1,866.87
5.46 47.90
3.83 56.55
122 7.00
$70.96 544.62
1,136.61 1,104.59
8,965.19 8,117.83
30,635.17 30,248.71
....Continued
2



Jubilant Generics Limited
Balaace Sheet as a1 31 March 2022

INR in million
Notes As at As at
o B 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
EQUITY AND LIARILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital H(a) 25.80 25.80
Other equity 25350.54 25217.37
Total equity 25.376.34 25,243.17
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Fivancial linbilites
i Lease Liabilties 11{by 71.47 137.52
Provisions 13 313.53 32538
Other non-current liabilities 12 (a) 61.01 75.71
Total non-curre ot liabilities 446,01 538.61
Currept liabilities
Financia! liabilities
i Barrowings 11{a} 640.00 200.01
i  Leass Libilites 11(h) 65.56 6040
il. Trade payables 11(c)
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises 3311 4326
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micre enferprises and small enterprises 239473 2336.75
iv.  Other financial Ezbilities 11(d) 685.99 536.11
Other current liabilities 12 (b 894 58 1,175.72
Provisions 13 93.05 70.92
Curtent tax liabilitias (net) 5.80 43,76
Total current liabilities 4,812.82 4,466.93
Total liabilities 5,258.83 5,005.54
Taotal equity and labilities 30.635.17 3¢,248.71
The accompanying notes form an ntegral part of the financia) statements
As per our report of even date attached
For BSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICAL Figm Registration Number : 101243W/W-100022 Jubilant Generics Limited
W R\
RN S 1
NN Jasdey
Manisk Gupta Ramamuithi Kumar Guree
Partmer Whaole-tine Director Hhole-time Director
Membershp No: 095037 DIN: 09139426 DIN: 03383578
Place: Dehi Place : Noida Phce : Noida
Date: 26 May 2022 Date: 26 May 2022 Date: 26 May 2022




Jubilaot Generics Limited

Statement of Profic and Loss for the ycar ended 30 March 2022

TNR i million
Notes For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenue from operations 14 12,608.00 14.531.02
Other came 15 288.32 240.51
Total inceme 12,896.32 14,771.53
Expenses
Cost of materiaks consumed 16 5116.74 532321
Purchases of stock-in-trade 1372.31 88.60
Changes i'-'.l inventories of finished gonds, stock-n-trade 17 (436.69) 163.04
and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense 18 2343.02 2,173.80
Finance costs 19 25.98 19.43
Depreciation , amortisation and impaimment expense 20 1,147.58 127716
Other expenses 21 4381.435 3,574.99
Total expenses 12,715.39 12.621.13
Profit before tax 130.93 2.150.40
Tax expensef(benefits) 22
- Current lax 40.64 392.91
- Deferred tax charge/(credit} 15.99 460.57
Total tax expense/(benefits) 56.63 853.43
Profit for the yvear 12430 1,296.92
QOther comprehensive income
Jtewss that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of defiied benefit oblizations 13.63 3.34
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclasssified
10 profi or loss 22 (4.76) 117
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 3.87 2.17
Total other comprehensive income 3.87 217
Total comprehensive mcome 133.17 1,299.09
Eaming per equity share of INR 10 each 36
Basi (INR) 48.18 502.75
Dilzted (INR} 48.18 502.75

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co.LLP

Charrered Accountants

ICA! Fjm Registration Number : 101248W/W-100022

Manish Gupta

Pariner
Membership No: 095037

Place: Delhi
Date: 26 May 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Jubilant Generics Limited R

S "\"’
Ram ar‘n\tﬁ'thi Kumar
Whole-time Director
DIN: 09139426
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Date: 26 May 2022
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HWhofe-tie Direcror
DIN: 03383578
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2022

a) Equity share capital

TNR i mlion

Balance as at 1 April 2020
Lssue of equity shares

Balance ac at 31 March 2021
Issve of equity shares

Balance as at 31 March 2022

(b) Other Equity (1)

25.30
25.80

25.80

INR i million

Total rasecves and

Reserves and surplus smeplasisadiother

Total other ¢ quity

comprehensive
income
Capital SEF""F“ Retained earnings

o reserve premium - -
As al 1 April 2020 351242 i5.572.04 4,833.82 21391828 2391828
Profit for the year - - 1.296.92 1,296.92 1.296.92
Other comprehensive meome - - 217 2.17 2.17
Total conprebensive incoms for the vear - - 1299.09 1,299.09 1299.0%
As ot 31 March 20218 3,512.42 15,572.04 6,132.21 2521737 23,217.37
Profit for the year - 12430 124.30 124.30
Othzr comprabensne meoms - - 8.87 8.87 $.87
Tatal comprebensive incame for the year - - 132.17 13317 133.17
As at 31 March 2022 351242 15.572.04 6.266.08 15,350.54 25,350.54

(1) Refer note 10 for nature and purpose of wiber equity

The accompanying notes fom an niteeral part of the Mancil satements

As per aur report of even date attached
For BSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accoumianis

1CAL Figm Regisration Number ; 101298W/AM-100022

&*}
Manish Gupta

FPartmer
Membership No; 095037

Place: Dehi
Date: 26 May 2022

N

Ramum'u'thl Kumar
Whole-time Divector
DTN: 02i39426

Phlce : Noida
Date: 26 May 2022

Forand om behzif of the Board of Dircctors of
Jubilant Geae rics Limited

Gurde Afisingh Sood
Whole-time Director
DIN: 03383578

Phace : Moida
Date: 26 May 2022

M



Juhilant Generics Limired
Statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended 3] March 2022

R 0 million

Farthe year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

A, Cash flons from operating actis ities

Profit before tax

Adjusonents :

Depreciation and amonisation expense

(Gain)loss an sale/disposaldscard of property, pleat and equipment (net)
Finance costs

Unrealsed foreign exchange Yoss

Allowance for expected credit Ioss

Interest incame

Operating cash flows before working capital changes

{Increase) n trade receivables, Joans, other financil 4ssets
(Increase) in inventorics

(Decrease) b rade payables, other financial Eabilities, other
lmbilities and provisions

Cash generated from operations

Income tzx paid (net of refinds)

Net cash (used)/gene rated from operating activities

B. Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and cquipment, other ilangible assets (mehuding capial work-
-progress end mtangible assets under devebpment)

Proceeds [rom sak of property phnt and equiprent

Investiment in deposits

Interest received

Net cash used in investing zctivitics

. Cash lows from financing activities #

Proceeds from short term borrowings (net of repayments)
Finance costs paid

Payrent of kease labiliries

Net cash generated{used in) from financing activities

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalenes (A+B+C)
Add: cash and cash equivakents at the beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalemts at the ¢nd ofthe vear (refer note 5(e))

# Refer note 11(h) for changes i iabiliijes arising from financing activities.

MNote:

150.93 2,150.40
1147.58 1277.16
(83.24) 15.17
25,98 19.43
35.63 19.62
2472 1.25
(203.61) {218.97)
1.127.99 3.264.07
(467.48) (163.03)
(522.73) (373.01)
(158.84) (1575.67)
(21.9% 952 36
(76.19) (308.34)
(98.18) 643.02
(684.24) (847.97)
152.05 8.08
5272 @a.1%)
200,64 221.63
(178.83) (621.45)
439,99 (799.17)
(38.19) (89.81)
(67.23) 153.55)
334.57 (242.56)
(42.44) (919.99)
47.90 967.89
5,46 47.90

1. Statement of Cash Flows las been prepared under the indirect method a5 set out iy the Ind AS 7 "Starement of Cash Flows”.

2. Bank balnces of INR 3.83 million (Previous year INR 56.55 miion) has restricted use.

3. During the vear, the Company paid in cash TNR 30.55 milion (previous year INR 19,05 milion) towards corporate socig‘l

responsibility (CSR) expenditie (holaded m donation refer note 33).

The accompening notes form an integrad pant of the (mancial statements
As per ow report of even dafe attached

For BSR & Co. LLT

Charterad Accountanrs

ICANm Registration Number 1 101243WAW-100022

0P

Manish Gopta

Fariner J,/_.;—:-:_\
Membership Mo 093037 e

ST —— ‘ -
Place- Dl ‘; . ! :.

Dhare- 26 Meey 222 = ==

|

For and on behalfof the Board of Directars of
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. }5 -

1 .
| _’\ ‘f’_./

Ramamurthi Kumar
Hhole-time Dirsoror
DIN: 09132426

Plice ; Noida

Prates 26 1o 200k

Jubilant Generdes Limitfd f_j -
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Curde ¢ inzl Rood
Hheleame Director
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Jubilant Generics Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022

1.

[

Corporate Information

Jubilant Generics Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company domiciled in India and
incorporated on 25 November 2013 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The Company is
incorporated to engage in the manufacture and supply of Generics (including Active Pharmaceutical
Ingredients (APIs) and Solid Dosage Formulations). The registered office of the Company is situated at
Plot No 1A, Sector 16A, Institutional Area, Noida, Gautam Buddha Nagar, Uttar Pradesh 201301, During
the year 2020, the Company acquired the India Branded Pharmaceuticals (“IBP*) business from Jubilant
Pharmova Limited erstwhile Jubilant Life sciences Limited, which is a formulations business that caters
to the Indian market,

The Scheme of Arrangement (“the Scheme”) for demerger of the Active Pharmacenticals Ingredients
business undertaking of Jubilant Generics Limited (“JGL”) and vesting of the same with the Jubilant
Pharmova Limited (Ultimate Holding Company) on a going concem basis, with an appointed date of 1
April 2022 was approved by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench (“the Tribunal™)
vide its order (“the Order”) dated 23 May 2022. The Company is in the process of filing the certified copy
of the Order from the Tribunal with the Registrar of Companies for registration in terms the requirements
under the Companies Act, 2013, to make the Scheme effective npon such filing.

Significant nccounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. The accounting policies adopted are vonsistent with those of the previous financial year.

(a) Basis of preparation

(i) Statement of compliance
These Ind AS Financial Statements (“financial statements™) have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified

under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (“the Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

All the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in millions of Indian Rupees and are
rounded to the nearest million, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

The financial statements are authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 26 May, 2022.
In accordance with Rule 6 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company does not prepare
consolidated financial statements.

(ity Historical cost convention

The standalone tinancial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on acerual basis,
unless otherwise stated

N



Jubilant Generics Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(b) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Shect based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when:

o It is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

o It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

o It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

o It is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.
A liability is treated as current when:
o It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
o It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
¢ Tt is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified a period of less than twelve months as its operating
cycle for the purpose of current / non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

{(¢) Business Combinations

Business combinations {other than business combinations between common control entities) are
accounted for using the purchase (acquisition) method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the fair value of the consideration transferred, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange. The consideration transferred does not include amounts
related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships; such amounts are generally recognised in
the Staternent of Profit or Loss and Qther Comprehensive Income. The cost of acquisition also
includes the fair value of any contingent consideration. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
& contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at fair value at
the date of acquisition. Transaction costs incurred in connection with a business combination are
expensed as incurred. The excess of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value
of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as capital reserve provided there is clear
evidence of the underlying reasons for classifving the business combination as a bargain
purchase.

Business combinations arising from transfers.of interests in entities that are under the control of
the shareholder that controls the Company are accounted for as if the acquisition bad occurred at
the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented or, if later, at the date that common
control was established; for this purpese comparaiives are revised. The assets and liabilities

A~



Jubilant Generics Limited
Neodes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

acquired are recognized at their carrying amounts. The identity of the reserves is preserved and
they appear in the financial statements of the Company in the same form in which they appeared
in the financial statement of the acquired entity. The differences, if any, between the
consideration and the amount of share capital of the acquired entity is transferred to capital
reserve,

(d) Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and intangible assets
(i) Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost,
which includes capitalized finance costs, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment loss. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
The cost of an item of a PPE comprises its purchase price including import duty, and other non-
refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition of its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price.

Expenditure incurred on startup and commissioning of the project and/or substantial expansion,
including the expenditure incurred on trial runs (net of trial run receipts, if any) up to the date of
commencement of commercial production are capitalised. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a scparate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The camrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during
the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Advances paid towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance
Sheet date, are shown under other non-current assets and cost of assets not ready for intended use
before the year end, are shown as capital work-in- progress.

(it} Intangible assets
s Goodwill

Goodwill arising on business combinations is disclosed in the Balance sheet and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an asset.
With regard to other internally generated intangible assets:

- Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or
technical knowledge and understanding, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and T.oss as
incurred.

- Development expenditure including regulatory cost and legal expenses leading to product
registration/ market authorisation relating i the new and‘or improved product and/or process
development capitalised only if devclopment costs can be meastred reliably. the product or process
is technically and commercially feasible, fure ceenomiv benetits are probable, and the Company

A,.



Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements or the year ended 31 March 2022

intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use the asset. The expenditure
capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour, overhead costs that are dircctly attributable
to preparing the asset for its intended use, and directly attributable finance costs (in the same manner
as in the case of PPE), Other development expenditure 1s recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss as incurred.

- Intangible assets that are acquired {including implementation of software systemn) are measured
initia]ly at cost.

- After initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment loss. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the
future economic benefits from the specific asset to which it relates.

(iii) Depreciation and amortization methods, estimated usefal lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided on straight line basis on the original cost/ acquisition cost of assets or other
amounts substituted for cost of PPE as per the useful life specified in Part 'C' of Schedule I of the Act,
read with notification dated 29 August 2014 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, except for the
following classes of property, plant and equipment which are depreciated based on the internal
technical assessment of the management as under:

Category of assets Management estimate of useful Useful life as per Schedule II
life
Motor vehicles (Vehicle -Owned) 5 years 8 years
f:omputer servers and networks (included S years b e
n office equipment)
Dies and punc.hes for manufacture of 1-2 years | 15 years
dosage fonmulations !
i tur g |
Change parts for manufacture of dosage 5 years 15 years

formulations
Employee  perquisite  related assets

5 years, being the period of

{(except end user computers) (ncluded m .. 10 years

. perquisite scheme g
office equipment) |
Leaschold improvements 10 vears _ |Period of lease I
Leasehold land which qualifies as finance lease is amortised over the lease period on straight line

basis.

The estimated useful lives of intangibles are as follows:

Internally generated product registration 5 years
Rights 5 years
Scftware 5 years

Depreciation and amortization on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets added/ disposed
off during the year has been provided on pro-rata basis.

Depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each
reparting period and adjusted if appropriate.

A .
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Jubilant Generics Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2022

(e)

®

(v} Derecognition

A property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is derecognised on disposal or when no futurce
economic benefits are expected from its use and disposal. Losses arising from retirement and gains or
losses arising from disposal of a tangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-cumrent assets are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered
primarily through sale rather than through continuing use. Such assets, are generally measured at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell. Losses on initial classification as held for
sale and subsequent gains and losses on re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Once classified as held for sale, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are no longer
depreciated or amortised.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill, intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life and intangible assets under development
arc not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events or
changes i circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. The company’s other non-financial
assots, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether therc is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows (i.e. corporate assets) are
gronped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The ailocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit tfrom
the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using
a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time vahue of money and the risks specific
1o the asset or CGU.

An Impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impatrment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment Inss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for
which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at reporting date
whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimaites used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a
reversal is made only to the extent that ihe asset’s canving amount does not exceed the carrying amount

P :
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that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

{g) Financial instrument

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entily and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset, Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, 1.e.,
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measuvement
For purposes of subsequent measuremient, financial assets are classified in four categories:

s  Debt instruments at amortised cost

+  Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

e Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
»  Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Debr instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is meastired at the amortised cost if the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and contractual terms of the asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding,.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carvying
amount of the financial asset or the amortised cost of the financial liability. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses
arising from impaiment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies
to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FVOCT

A ‘debt instrument” is classificd as at the FVOCI if the ohjective of the business model is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the,ﬁ],i'iu]_c.ial assets. and the asset’s contractual cash flows
represent SPPL '

A’ WA S,/
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Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCT). On
derecognition of the asset, cinulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest eamed whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest
income using the EIR method.

Debt insorument at FVPL

FVPL is a residual category for debt instruments, Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria
for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOCL is classified as at FVPL. In addition, at imitial
recognition, the Company may irrevocably elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortised cost or FVOQCI criteria, as at FVPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces
or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all chan ges recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
Company makes such election on an instrument by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are rccognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from
OCI to the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer
the cumulative gain or loss to retained earnings.

Equity instruments included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investmems in subsidiaries and associate

Investments in subsidiaries and associate are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written
down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference
between net disposal proceeds and the cartving amounts are recognized in the Slatement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets
which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivablés with no significant
financing component is measured at an amount equal o lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with
contractual cash flows other than trade receivable, ECLsare measured at an amount equal to the 12-month
ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in coedit risk from initial recognition in which case those

/&r | N
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are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECL {or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance
at the reporting date is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

° The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obljgation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVPL if it is classified as held-for—trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terins, or the terms of an existing [iabilify are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as foreign-exchange forward contracts to hedge
its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at faiwr value.
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when
the fair value is negative.

Offsetting
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(b}

®)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Balance Sheet when,
and only when, the Company currenly has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value except scrap, which is valued at net estimated
realisable value.

The Company uses weighted average method to determine cost for all categories of inventories except for
goods in transit which is valued at specifically identified purchase cost. Cost includes ail costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition inclusive of non-refundable (adjustable) taxes wherever applicable. The cost of work in progress
and manufactured finished goods include an appropriate share of variable and fixed production overheads.
Fixed production overheads are included based on normal capacity of production facilities.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The net realisable value of work-
in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished products. Raw materials
and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are not written down below cost,
except in cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products
will exceed their net realisable value. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-
by-item basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprise cash at banks and on hand (including imprest) and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value,

Pravisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions arc
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A .
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(k)

o

Contingent liability

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of products is recognised upon transfer of control of products to customers at the time of
shipment to or receipt of goods by the customers. Service income is recognised as and when the underlying
services are performed. The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance
obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a period of time.

Any fees including upfront fees received in relation to contract manufacturing arrangements is recognized
over the period over which the company satisfies the underlying performance obligations. In respect of
outsourcing contracts for drug development with third party Clinical Research Organization (CRO),
revenue is recognized on the basis of actual cost incurred plus mark up as agreed with the customer under
each agreement.

Revenues are measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, net of tax collected from
customers and remitted to government authorities such as Goods and services tax (GST), sales tax, excise
duty, value added tax and applicable discounts and allowances including expected sales return etc. The
computation of these estimates using expected value method involves significant judgment based on various
factors including contractual terms, historical experience, estimated inventory levels etc.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue eamed over billings on contracts. Contract
assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing 1s pending) when there is unconditional
right to receive cash and only passage of time is required as per contractual terms. Contract liabilities are
recognised when there are billings in excess of revenues. Contract liabilities relate to the advance received
from customers and deferred revenue against which revenue is recognised when or as the performance
obligation is satisfied.

Income in respect of entitlement towards export incentives is recognised in accordance with the relevant
scheme on recognition of the related export sales. Such export incentives are recorded as part of other
operating revenue.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
Employee benefits
(i} Short-tern employee benefits: All employee benefits falling due within twelve months of the end of
the period in which the employees render the related services are classified as short-term employee
benefits, which include bepefits like salaries, wages, short tenn compensated absences, performance
incentives, etc. and are recognised as expenses in the period in which the employee renders the related

service and measured accordingly.

(i) Post-employment benefits: Post employment benefit plans are classified into dgﬁned benefits plans
and defined contribution plans as under:

P
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(a) Gratuity

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible
employees. The plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in
employment or on termination of employment of an amount based on the respective employee's salary
and the tenure of employment.

(h) Provident fund

(1) The Company makes contribution to the recognised provident fund - "VAM EMPLOYEES
PROVIDENT FUND TRUST" (a muiti-employer trust) for most of its employees in IndiaDuring the
year the Company transferred the balance in VAM EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND TRUST to
Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and started to make contribution with Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner for al] the employees with effect from 1 December 2021 .This is treated as defined
contribution plan,

The Company's contribution to the provident fund is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.
(i} Other long-term employee benefits:
Compensated absences

As per the Company's policy, eligible leaves can be accumulated by the cmployees and carried forward
to future periods to either be utilised during the service, or encashed. Encashment can he made during
service, on early retirement, on withdrawal of scheme, at resignation and upon death of the employee.
Accumulated compensated absences are treated as other long-term employee benefits.

(i Termination benefits:

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when, as a result of a past event, the Company has a
present obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation.

Actuarial valuation

The liability in respect of all defined benefit ptans and other long term benefits at the end of the financial
year i3 accrued in the books of account on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent
actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each year of service as giving rise to
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the final
obligation, The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount
rates used for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the
market yields on Government securities as al (he Balance Sheet date, having maturity periods
approximating to the terms of related obligations.

Remeasurment gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
they arise. Remeasurment gains and losses in respect of all-defined benefit plans arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions e recogiiised liv the period in which they occur, directly
in other comprehensive income. They are included in {.;l_hr::‘ equiry in the Statement of Changes in Equity
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and in the Balance Sheet. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from
plan amendments or curtailinents are recognised immediately in the Statement of profit and loss as past
service cost. Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised
when the curtailment or settlement occurs. Any differential between the plan assets (for a funded defined
benefit plan) and the defined benefit obligation as per actuarial valuation is recognised as a liability if it
is a deficit or as an asset if it is a surplus (to the extent of the lower of present value of any economic
benefits avajlable in the form of refunds from the plan or reduction in future contribution to the plan).

Past service cost is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss on a straight-line basis
over the average period until the benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefits are already vested
immediately following the introduction of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan, the past service cost is
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Past service cost may be either positive
{(where benefits are introduced or improved) or negative (where existing benefits are reduced)

(m) Finance costs

()

Finance costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Finance cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
finance costs. Finance costs that are  directly attributable to the construction or production or development
of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a  substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. All other finance
costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the finance costs eligible for capitalization. Any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective inferest method Ancillary costs incurred in
connection with the arrangement of borrowings are amortised over the period of such borrowings.

Income tax

Incomme tax expense comprises current and defeired tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in OCL

Current tax:

s Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount
of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received after considering uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

e Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

e

18



Tuhilant Generics Limited
Naotes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022

¢ Deferred tax:

Deferred 1ax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss
at the time of the transaction;

- temporary differences related to freehold land and investments in subsidiaries, to the extent that
the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets (DTA) include Minimum Alternate Tax {MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws
in India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future
income tax liability.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they
can be used. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
used. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, 1o recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax asscts and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultancously,

{0) Leases

Leases — Company as a lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration, To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contact involves the use of an identified asset;
(2) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of
(he Iease; and (3) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Land, buildings and vehicles which
typically run for a period of 3 to 10 years, with an option to renew the lease after that date. For certain
leases, the Company is restricted from entering into any sub-lease arrangements. At the date of
commencement! of the iease, the Company recogniscs a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease
liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessec, excepl 7or leases with a term of twelve months
or less (short-term leases). For these shori-term Ieases, the Com pany recognises the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the 1enm of the lease,
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Right-of-use assets and lease labilities includes the options to extend or terminate the lease when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any
initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment
whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if
any, is recognised in the Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the future lease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates based on information available as at the date of
commencement of the lease. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension
or a temmination option. Lease liability and right-of-use asset have been separately presented in the
Balance sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted
with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The
Company makes an assessment on the expected [ease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses
whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In
evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements
undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the
underlying asset to Company’s operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the
availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease
term reflects the current economic circumstances.

(p) Segment reporting

Board of Directors of the Company had been identified as the Chief Operating Decision maker (CODM)
as defined by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments. Operating Segments have been defined and presented
based on the regular review by the CODM to assess the performance of segment and to make decision
about allocation of resources. Accordingly, the Company has determined pharmaceutical as the only
reportable segment.

{q) Foreign currency tramslation
(i} Funetional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. These financial statements are presented
in Indian rupees.

(i) Tromsactions and balances

Foreign currency bransactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
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dates of the transactions, Forcign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at Balance Sheet date exchange rates are generally recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the Statement
of Profit and Loss, within finance costs, All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses).

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchan ge
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example translation differences on non-
monetary assets such as equity investments classified as FVOCI are recognised in other comprehensive
income (OCI).

(r) Government grants

Grants from the govemment are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within
other operating income,

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred income and are credited to Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over
the expected lives of the related asséts and presented within other operating income.

(s} Earnings per share
(i)  Basic earnings per share
Basic eamnings per share is calculated by dividing:
e the profit attributable to owners of the Company )
* by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted
for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

(i) Dituted emnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic eamings per
share to take into account:

» the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity sharcs, and

¢ the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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() Measurement of fair values

A number of the accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values are catcgorised into different levels in a fair value
hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than guoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either  directly  (i.e. as  pricesy or indirectly (ie. derived from  prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This
includes a finance team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value
measurements, including Level 3 fair values.

The finance team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third
party information is used to measure fair values, then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from
the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including
the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far
as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of
the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair vaiue hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used in preparing these financial
statements is included in the respective notes.

(u) Critical estimates and judgments

The preparation of Financial Statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual resuits may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments
in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements is included in the following notes.

. Assessment of useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets —- Note 2(d)
» Valuation of inventories — Note 2(h)

» Recognition of revenue — Note 2(k)

« Fair value measurement — Note 2(t) and 25

- Estimation of assets and obligations relating to employee benefits — Note 2(3) and 24

« Recognition and cstimation of tax expense including delerresd tax —Xepte 2(n),6 and 22

« Estimated impairment of financial assets and non-finandial issers - Note 2([} and 2(g) -
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes 10 the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

* Recognition and measurement of contingency : Key assumption about the likelihood and magnitude
of an outflow of resources — Note 30

+ Lease term: whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise extension optians — Note 2(p)
and 37

(v} The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-
19 on the carrying amounts of receivables, inventories, property, plant and equipment, goodwill and
intangible assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global
econormic conditions, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial statements, has used
internal and extemnal sources of information, including economic forecasts and estimates from market
sources, on the expected future performance of the Company. On the basis of evaluation and current
indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying amounts of these
assets and does not anticipate any impairment to these financial and non-financial assets. However, the
impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process, given the uncertainties associated with its
nature and duration. The Company will contimze to monitor any material changes to future economic
conditions.

(w) Recent accounting proneuncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indtan Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 23 March 2022.
MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from 1
April 2022, as below:

Ind AS 103 — Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceplual
Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes
do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Group does not expect the amendment to
have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 16 — Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment
amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use.
Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Group does not
expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its
financial statements.

Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly
to the contract’. Costs that relate directly 1o a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to
fulfilling contracts. The amendinent is essentially a clarification and the Group does not expect the
amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements,

Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the *10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109
in assessing whether to derecognise a financial iiabilits The Group dees not expect the amendment to have
any significant impact in its financial statements. i

Y
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements {or the year ended 31 March 2022

Ind AS 116 — Anpual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leaschold improvements by
the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives
that might arise because of how lease mcentives were described in that illustration. The Group
does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes:
(1) Refer note 31(a) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
(2) Refer note 19 for finance costs capitalised.
{3) Includes INR 68.54 in respect of research and development assets (previous year INR 23.01 million).
(4) Capital research and development expenditure aggregating to INR 64.18 million (previous year INR 30.91
million) incurred during the year included in additions to property plant & equipment/ capital work-in-progress.

Ageing detail of Tangible capital work in pregress as at 31 March 2622 is as follows :

{INR in million)
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 122 Years 2.3 Years Motre than
1 year 3 years Total
Projects in progress 501.11 60.12 56.15 25.61 642.99
Ageing detail of Tangible capital work in progress as at 31 March 2021 is as follows :
(INR. in million)
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than
B 1 year 3 years
Projects in progress 181.78 75.03 19.71 10.4% 287.01

Project execution plans are modulated basis capacity requirement and priority assessment on an annual basis
and all the projects are executed as per rolling annual plan.

4. Goodwill, other intangible assets and intangible assets under development

- INR in million
- Internally
generated B Intangibles
Description Goodwill . proc.’!m:t Rights  Software Totsl asse:sgunder
registration/ (b) (c) (atbte)
market development
- authorisation (2)
Gross carrying value as at 1 April 2021 137136 2,725.22 15.8) 27590 301693 3568.33
Additions/adjustments (1) - 67.76 - 17.64 85.40 378.39
Deductions/adjustments {3) - (63.14) - - (63.14) (599.83Y
Gross carrying value as at .ﬂ March 2022 1,3?1_.36 2,729.8_4 ]_5.81 203,54 3,I_}39.19 3,346.89
|
Accumulated amortisatien as at 1 April 2021 - 2286.11 15.81 [92.84 249476 - |
Amoriisation for the year - 225.88 - 54.12 250,00 -
Deductions/adustments (3) - - {20.43) = 5 (20.43) -
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2022 - 2.491.56 15.81 246,96 2,754.33 a
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2022 1,371.36 238.28 ’ 46.58 284.86 3,346.89

A
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year cnded 31 March 2022

. = JNR i million
Inte mally ;
generated I“:Zi':[e ¢
. . product  Rights Software Total
|Description Goodwill regls tration/ (b) © (atbro) under |
developme
market ot
authorisation (a)
Gross carrying value as at I April 2020 1,371.36 2578.43 15.81 253,57 2,847.81 3.472.55
Additions/adjustments (1) - 146.79 - 22.33 169.12 524.09
Déductions/adjustments (3) . = . = - (42831)
Gross cartying value as at 31 March 2021 1,371.36 2,725.22 15.81 27590 3,016.93 3,568.33
Accumulated amortisation as at 1 April 2020 - 2,032.45 15.81 14136 2,189.62 -
Amorlisation for the year - 253.66 - 51.48 305.14 -
Deductions/adjustments (3) - . - - -
{Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2021 - 2,286.11 15.81 192.84 2,494.76 -
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2021 137136 43011 = 83.06 522.17 3.568.33
Ageing detail of Intangible capital work in progress as at 31 March 2022 is as follows :
{INR in million)
Particulars Intangible capital work in progress for a period of
Less than Moaore than
1-2 Y - a
1 year ear ix e 3 vears Total
Projects in progress 249,38 298.15 441.26 2358.10 3346.89
Ageing detail of Intangible capital work in progress as at 3| March 2021 is as follows :
{INR in million)
Particnlars Intangible capital work in progress for a period of Total
Less than 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than
1 vear 3 vears
Projects in progress 462.39 536.96 418.23 2150.75 3568.33

Project execution plans are modulated basis capacity requirement and priority assessment on an annual basis
and all the  projects are executed as per rolling annual plan.

N
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Jubilant Generies Limited

Nofes to the inuncial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes:

ey

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

Represents INR 67.76 million (previous year INR 146.79 million) in respect of research and development
assets.

Capital research and development expenditure aggregating to INR 378.39 miilion (previous year INK
514.74 million) incurred during the year included in additions to Intangible assets/Intangible assets under
development.

The carrying value of internally generated product registration and other intangibles (including intangible
assets under development) is reviewed annually and was last reviewed on 31 March 2022 and based on
prevailing market conditions, technical and financial assessment, INR 156.37 million (previous year INR
259.19 million) had been charged off during the year ended 31 March 2022 and included under depreciation
and amortization expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The estimate of value in use was determined
using a discount rate of 11.21% (previous year 11.55%). Further the company has sold intangibles under
development amounting INR 375.70 million (previous year nil) to its fellow subsidiary Jubilant Cadista
Pharmaceuticals Inc.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Cash Generating Units (CGU) which
represents the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes, which is
not higher than the Company’s operating segments. Accordingly , the Company is considered as a single
CGuU

The recoverable amount of the above cash generating unit was based on its value in use. The value in use of
these umits was determined to be higher than the carrying amount and an analysis of the calculation’s
sensitivity towards change in key assumptions did not identify any probable scenarios where the CGU
recoverable amount would fall below their carrying amount.

Value in use was determined by discounting the future cash flows generated from the continuing use of the
CGU. The calculation was based on the following key assumptions:

i. The anticipated annual revenue growth and margin included in the cash flow projections are based on past
experience, actual operating results and the 5-vear business plan in all periods presented.

ii. The terminal growth rate of upto 0.5% (previous year: 0.5%) is considered for all periods presented,
representing management view on the future long-term growth rate.

iii. Discount rate considered is 11.21% (previous year: 11.55%) is considered for all periods presented, in
determining the recoverable amount of the CGU. The discount rate was estimated based on past experience
and industry’s weighted average cost of capital.

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent the managernent’s assessment of future trends in the
industry and based on both internal and external sources.

Refer Note 19 for finance costs capitalized

A~

28



Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

5(a) Non-current investments

INR. im million

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Investment in equity shares (at cost)
Unguoted investment (fully paid up)

(A) Subsidiary:
Jubilant Pharma NV 965.00 965.00
(13,900,000 (Previous year 13,900.000) equity shares of face value Euro 1
per share]
(B) Associate:
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc. 3,090.00 3,090.00
[200 (Previous year 200) equity shares with no par value]
Total non-current investments 4,055.00 4,055.00
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 4,055.00 4,055.00
5(b) Loans
INR in million
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current Nop- current Current Non-
current
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to related partics (Refer Note 29) 7.00 3.250.00 7.00 3,250.00
Loan te employees 0.22 5.39 6.03
Total loans 7.22 3,255.39 7.00 3,256.03
S(c) Others
_— INR in million
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current Non- current  Current i
curremt
Deposits accounts with maturity more than twelve months 0.23
from the reporting date- held as margin money i i )
Security deposits - 44.63 - 43.04
Total others = 44.63 - 43.27

Vs
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Netes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

5(d) Trade receivables

As at
31 March 2022

INR in million

As at
31 March 2021

Unsecured and current

Trade receivables considered good

Receivables from related parties (Refer Note -29)

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Less: Expected credit loss allowance

1,343.84
583.24
33.90
(33.90)

1,590.12
276.75
10.20
(10.20)

Total trade receivables

1,927.08

1,866.87

Ageing for trade recefvables outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is as follows :

(INR in million}

Particotars

Outstanding for the fllowing periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 Months -

Not Due & Momhg 1 Year

1-2 Years

Trade receivables

Undsputed Trade Recievable - Considered Good
Undisputed trade raceivables — which
have

significant mcrease in credi risk
Undisputed trade receivables - credit
mpaired

Dspuied rade recepvables —
consedersd

good

Dispaned trade reczivables — which
have

significant increase in credit rsk
Disputed trade recenvables — credit
impaired

1336 11 35863 23891

17.54 058

og2 0.5%

2.3 Years More than 3

Total

_ Years

321 1954.98

4.59 6.00

1336.11 358.63 238.91

18.36

=
=
= |

7.80 1960.98

Less: Allpwance for doubtful rade
receivables

Ageing for trade receivables outstanding as at Mareb 31,2021 is as foliows :

Particulars

(33.90)
192708

(INE. in mllioa)

Ouistanding for the following periods_ﬁ';\ de date ; paymen¢

& Months -
1 Year

Less than

NotDue ot onths

1-I Years 2-3 Years

More than 3

Total
Years

Trade receivables

Undisputed Trade Recievable - Considered Good
Undispuied made receivables — which

have

significant merease in credi sk

Urndisputed trade receivables — credit

impaired

Disputed rade receivables - - - 082
considered

good

Disputed trade receivabks - which e

have

significant increase in credit risk,
Disputed trade receivables ~ credit
impaired

[.255 58 32793 260.30

3.42 514

56 4 50

123558 327.93 26102

Less: Allowance for doubiful frade

recevables

3a8 2.64

18.82

1832 1,871.19

588

187'1'_.27

(1020)
1866.87
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Jubilant Generies Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

S(e) Cash and cash equivalents

As at
31 March 2022

INR in million

As at
31 March 2021

Balances with banks

- in current accounts 5.23 33.85
Cash on hand 0.11 0.42
Others
- funds in transit - 13.53
- imprest 0.12 0.i0
Total cash and cash equivalents 5.46 47.90
5 (f) Other bank balance
INR in million
o As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Deposits accounts with maturity up to twelve months from the reporting

date- held as margin money 383 6.9
Total other bank balance (1) 3.83 56.55
(1) These have restricted use

5(g) Other current financial assets

INR. in million

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current Current

Advances recoverabke from related parties 669.74 332.72

Interest receivable from related parties 16.91 14.22

Insurance claim recoverable 131.74 145.95

Contract asset 38.92 42,18

Interest receivable 2.51 2.23

Others 11.14 7.32

Total other financial assets 870.96 544.62

6. Deferred tax

Deferred income tax reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amount of asset
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for income tax purposes. Significant

component of the Company’s net deferred income tax are as follows:

Y
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Noles to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Deferred tax assets

____INRinmilien
Provisian for Expenditure Tax losses MAT  Intangibles Lease Others Tocal
compensated  aflowed on actual  carried farward Credit Liahility
absences and pavment basis Entitle ment
= o gratuity — . _ —
As at 1 April 2620 ~ 97.81 23 1,407.43 1,196.34 45813 47.80 13.69 325061
(ChargedyCredited:
-t statement of profil and foss 14,42 418 (61631} Wz47 {157,343 1.92 1010 {330.39)
- 19 Other comprehensive meomng 117 . i - - - ) - < {m
As at 31 March 2021 s 33.5% 791.13 155581 320,79 49.81 13.86 2919.05
{ChargedVCre dited:
- to stalement of profit and loss 493 213 {29913 4046 {85.90) [16.57) 515 {727
- 1 Other compreh nooms 14.76) - . - - - b (176
As at 31 March 2022 11123 36.72 T61.22 1625.27 234.39 33.24 2501 2835.58

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Deferred rax liabilities:
INR in million
PPE, Difference in  Others Total
Intangibles and tax value and
Right ofuse  book value of

assets R&D CWIP/
Intangible and
Intangibles
under
development
As at 1 Apnil 2020 870.23 802.78 7.32 1,680.33
(Charged)/Credited:
- to statement of profit and loss 125.99 7.33 (3.15) 130.17
As at 31 March 2021 996.22 810.11 4.17 1,810.50
(Charged)/Credited:
- to statement of profit and loss 3.25 (62.04) (3.94) (62.73)
As at 31 March 2022 999 47 748.07 0.23 1,747.77
Reflected in the Balance Sheet as follows:
INR i million
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Deferved tax assets B 2,835.58 2919.05
Deferred tax liabilities 1,747.77 1,8101.50
Defeired tax assets, net: R 1,087.81 - 1,108.55

Deferred tax has not been recognized on temporary differcnces in relation to indexation benefit of investment
in subsidiaries and freehold land amounting to INR 303.08 million (previous year 240.10 million) and INR
44.68 million (previous vear 35.40 million) respectively, as the Company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the tempdrary differences will nol reverse in

A

foreseeable future.
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for me_y_car ended 31 March 2022

7. Other non-current assets

INR i million

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Capital advances 17.62 20.50
Total other non-current assets 17.62 20.50

8. Inventories

INR in million
As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Raw materials* 1,555.20 1,577.98
Work-im-progress 2,074.26 1,862.18
Finished goods* 798.74 554.24
Traded goods 50.40 70.29
Stores and spares 439.77 314.30
Packing material 82.29 99.84
Others- process chemicals and fuels 13.37 11.47
Total inventories 5,014.03 4,490.30
*Goods in transit, ncluded in above TNR. in million
As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Raw materiaks 139.17 72.75
Finished goods 256.02 123.17
Total inventories 395.19 195.92
Total write down of inventories recognised during the vear 438.77 310.40

Cost of inventories (including cost of purchased products) recognised as an expense amounted to INR 6,637.37

million (previous year INR 8,622.14 million).

9. Other current assets

INR i million

: o As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Prepaid expenses 164.07 143.93
Recoverable from/ balance with government authorities 787.06 £94.48
Advance to employees 9.16 321
Asset held for sale 14.14 -
Advance for supply of goods and services 162,18 62.97
Total other current assets 1,136.61 1,104.59

Via
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Jubilant Generies Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

10. Equity share capital and other equity

10(a) Equity share capital

_INR in million
o 1{3 at As at
- 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Authorised
3,000,000 (Previous vear 3,000,000) equity shares of INR 10 each 130,00 30.00
30.00 30.00
Issued and subscribed h
2,579,665 (Previous year 2,579,665) equity shares of TNR 10 each 25.80 25.80
25.80 25.80
Paid up o
2,579,665 (Previous year 2,579,665) equity shares of INR 10 each 25.80 25.30
25.80 25.80

Movements in equity share capital

As at31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Number ~ INR in million Number INE in million
At the commepcement of the period 2579663 2580 2579665 25 80
At the end of the period 23579663 2580 2579665 2530

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having par value of INR 10 each.
Holder of each equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the
holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

As at 31 March 2021
Number % oftotal shares

2579665

As at 31 March 2022

"At commencement af the vear and end of the period
Number % of total shares

Equity shares of INRI0 each fully paid-up held by
Jubilsnt Pharma Limited, Singapore - the holding comparmy
(includine 6 shares beld omthy with 6 individuals)

2579665 100% 100%

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters:
Al ¢ ement of the year and end ofthe period N
Equity shares of INR10 each fully paid-up held by

Jubiant Pharma Limied. Singapore - the hokding compary
Aincluding & shares held jomity with 6 mndividualsh

As at 31 March 2021
Number % oftotal shares

100%

Asat31 March 2022
Number % oftotal shares

2,579,665 100% 2579665

10(b) Other equity

Nature and purpose of other equity
Capiral reserve

Accumulated capital surplus not available for distribution of dividend and expected to remain invested
permanently. Represents difference between the consideration and carryin amount of net assets/liabilities
for transactions among entities under common control to transfer out/in of any business or shares of entities
under commeon control.

Securities premitm

The unutilized accumulated excess of issue price o er face vaiue on issue of shares. This reserve is utilized
in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

% 34



Jubilant Generies Limited
Notes to the financial siatements for the year ended 31 March 2022 - B

11(a) Current borrowings

__INR in million

Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Loans repayable on demand

From banks
Secured 640.00 200.01
Total current borrowings 640.00 200.01

Notes:

1. Working capital facilities (including cash credit) sanctioned by consortium of banks and financial
institutions are secured by a first charge by way of hypothecation, ranking pari-passu inter-se banks, of the
entire book debts, receivables and inventories, both present and future, of the Company. All working capital
loans are repayable on demand.

2. Short-term loans are availed in Indian rupees. Indian rupee loans carry interest rate ranging from 3.62% to
7.75% p.a. (Previous year interest rate ranging from 3.78% to 9.20%) p.a.

3. Imventory and Trade receivables with a carrying amount of INR 5,014.03 million (previous year INR
4,490.30 million), and INR 1,927.08 million (previous year INR 1,866.87 million) respectively are provided
as security against borrowing at year end.

4. The Company had availed fund based and non-fund based working capital facility of INR 5,000 million

{previous year INR 5,000 million) from a consortium of banks. The facility is secured by way of
hypothecation of the company's entire stock of raw materials, semi-finished and finished goods, consumable
stores and spares and such other movables current assets including book-debts, receivables, both present and
future, on a first charge basis ranking pari passu with other participating consortium member banks.

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current borrowings are:

{INR. in million)
Notes As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Financial assets

First Pari Passu charge
Receivables 5(¢) 1,927.08 1,866.87
Inventories 8 5014.03 4.490.30
6.941.11 6,357.17

Total current assets pledged as security

Lo

5. During the previous year, the Company had availed an overdraft facility of INR 50.00 million from a bank,

against 2 fixed deposit of INR 52.95 million placed with the bank.

Al
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11(b) Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

TNR in million
B B Other movements )
As at  Financing New Finance costs Finance costs As at
finance o 31 March
31 March 2020  cash flows expensed  capitalised
leases ~  ° — 2021
Finance lease labilities 195.77 (33.58 5573 . - 197.92
Short term loans repayable on demand (net) 999.18 (719917 - - 200,01
Interest accrued 0.11 (85.81) B 19.43 70.29 0.02
Total 1,195.86  (942.56) 55.73 19.43 70.29 _397.95
INR in million
- Other movements
As at  Financing ﬁn:::: Finance costs Finance costs 31 ]\;‘::
31 March 2021  cash flows leases expensed  capitalised 2022
Lease liabilitics (previous year: finance
ease abilitis) 157.92 (67.23) 6.34 - - 137.03
Short term loans repayable on demand (net) 200.01 439.99 - - - 640.00
Interest accrued 0.02 (38.19) - 25.98 14.00 1.81
Total 397.95 334.57 6.34 25.98 14.00 778.84
11(c) Trade payables
TNR in million
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current
Trade payables
-Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smail enterprises
33.1 4326
(Refer Note 35)
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
s ® 2394.73 233675
and srnall enterprises
Total trade payables 2.427.84 2,330.01
Amount payable to related parties included in above (Refer Note 29) 327.37 44795

A
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Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is as follows :

(INR i million}

Particuiars _Ou:_si_t:lnding for the followin_g periods from due date of paymeat B
Not Doe Less thap 122 Years 2.3 Years More u:an 3 Total

- S ——— _ 1¥ear ) Years
MSME* 16.90 15 04 002 0.12 33.08
Qthers 696,02 #2465 60.30 1798 15.74 1,615.19
Disputed dues MSME? - - - : - .
Disputed dues others - - - - - :

712.92 840.69 60.82 18.10 1574 164827
Expenses acerved 779.57
Total 2427.834
Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2021 is as follows :

(INR. . miliion)

Particulars mg for the hl[omm due date of paymemnt N
- Not Due Lesls :,:i: 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Mors T::; Rl
MSME* 3741 5.85 000 0.00 0.00 43.26
Others 044,56 744.83 2269 23.99 §2.88 1.818.95
Diputed dues MSME* . . . - - -
Dispuled dues others ! - . . - ) 5
981.97 750.68 2269 23.99 8283  1862.21
Expenses accrued 517.80
Total 218(&0_1 _
*MSME as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006
11{(d) Other current financial liabilities
INR. in million
As at As at
o 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1.81 0.02
Security deposit 2,70 1.00
Capital creditors* 137.99 67.39
Employee benefits payable 148.83 150.63
Other payable to related parties 394.66 317.07
Total other current financial liabilities 685.99 536.11
* Includes payable to Micro, Small & Medium enterprises INR 2.66 Million (previous year nil)
12(a) Other non-current liabilities
INR in million
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Contract liabilities 18.28 26.82
Deferred mcoms - Government grant 4273 48.89
Total other non-curre nt tiabilities 61.01 75.71
12(b) other curreni liabilities
INR in million
o As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Contract liabilities B 719.13 1,055.45
Deferred income - Government grant 11.72 9.89
Statutory dues pavables 163.73 110.38
Total other current liabilities " 894.58 L1752

s
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13. Provisions

INR in million

. N As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current Nom-current Current Non-

current

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 24) 82.33 313.53 61.04 32538
Other provisions 10.72 - 9.88 s
Total provisions 9305 313.53 70.92 325.38

14. Revenue from operations

INR i million

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Sale of products
- Finished goods 10,026.40 12,335.02
- Traded goods 2,190.15 1,793.01
Sak of services 3.29 47.13
Other operating revenue 388.16 355.86
Total revenue from operations 12,608.00 14,531.02

Disaggregation of revenue:

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by primary geographical market, service lines and sales

channels.

INR in million

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Primary geographical markets

India 2,864.35 243324
Americas and Europe 6.766.80 9.384.59
Rest of the world 2,588.69 2357.33
Total 12,219.84 14,175.16
Major product/service line

AFI 5,637.89 6.599.36
Dosage 6,581.95 7575.79
Total 12,219.84 14,175.15
Sales Channels

Wholesalers/distributors 6.581.95 7,575.79
Manufacturers 5,637.89 6,599.36
Total C12,219.84 14,175.15

A
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Contract Balances

INR in million

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

-T_'rade receivables 1.927.08 1,866.87
Contract assets 38.92 4218
Contract Liabilities S 737.41 1,082.28

The amount of INR 1,026.39 million (previous year INR 1,632.94 million) recognised in contract liabilities
at the beginning of the period has been recognised as revenue for the current year.

Unsatisfied (or partially satisfied) performance obligations are subject to variability due to several factors
such as terminations, changes in scope of contracts, periodic revalidations of the estimates, economic factors
(changes in currency rates, tax laws etc). The aggregate value of transaction price allocated to unsatisfied
(or partially satisfied) performance obligations, excluding those where original expected duration of one
year or less, amounts to INR 62.34 million (previous year INR 81.87 million) majority of which is expected
to be recognised as revenue in next 2 years.

15. Other income

_ INR i million

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Interest mcome 203.61 218.97
Net foreign exchange gain - 20.36
Gain on sale/disposaldiscard of property, plant and equipments (net) 83.24 -

Other items 1.47 1.18
Total other income 288.32 240.51

16. Cost of materials consumed
TNR i million

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

532321
5,323.21

Raw materials consumed
Total cost of materials consumed

s

511674
5.116.74
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17. Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

INR in million

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Opening balance
Work-in-progress
Finished gaods
Stock-n-trade

Total epening balance

Closing balance
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Stock-in-trade

Total closing balance

Total changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-

trade and work-in-progress

18. Employee benefits expense

1,862.18 1,895.85
554,24 730.74
.29 24.06
2,486.71 2,650.65
2.074.26 1,862.18

798.74 554.24

50.40 70.29

2,923.40 2,486.71
(436.69) 163.94

INR in million

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Salaries, wages, bonus, gratutty and allowances
Contribution to provident fund and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

Total employee benefits expense

19. Finance costs

2,064.10 1,902.46
106.79 99.07
172.13 172.27

2.343.02 2,173.80
INR in million

For the year ended

31 March 2022

For the year ended

31 March 2021

Interest expense®
Qther borrowing costs
Total finance costs

22.66 18,10
o 3.32 1.33
25.98 19.43

* Includes interest INR 10.39 million under section 234B and 234C of the Income-tax Act, 1961 (previous

year INR 2.92 million)

Note:

S
!

{1) Finance costs on general borrowings amounting to INR 14 million (previous year INR 75.55 million)
has been capitalised during the year with a capitalisation rate of 0.84% (previous year 2.74%).

e
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20. Depreciation , amortisation and impairment expense

INR in million

For the ye;lr ended
31 March 2022

For the vear ended
31 Mareh 2021

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 665.66 670.53
Amortisation of right of use assets (Refer Note 37) 45.55 42.30
Impairment of ntangible assets (including intangibles under 156.37 259.19
development)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Notedy 280.00 305.14
Total depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense 1,147.58 1,277.16
21. Other Expenses :
INR in million

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Power and fuel 687.99 583.37
Consumption of stores and spares and packing materials 708.17 641.61
Processing charges 841.87 497.06
Rental charges (refer note 29 & 37) 390 1.01
Rates and taxes 166.93 122.59
Insurance 55.30 49.83
Advertisement, publicity and sales promotion 82.75 19.26
Travel and conveyance 50.01 31.03
Repairs and maintenance

Plant and machinery 165.76 130.34

Buildings 16.26 8.56

Others 118.27 91.68
Office expenses 33.35 65.12
Vehicle running and maintenance (refer note 29) 6.86 7.28
Printing and stationery .04 7.43
Telephone and comumnmnication charges 13.65 12,99
Staff recruitment and training 13.07 13.96
Donation (including corporate social responsibility expenditure) 30.55 84.53
(refer note 33)
Payments to auditors (refer note 21 (a)) 2.36 1.41
Legal and professional fees 904.68 687.93
Freight and forwarding (including ocean freight) 25717 33598
Directors' sitting fees 0.36 0.41
Subscription 23.49 17.58
Bank charges 9.42 9.10
Claims and other selling expenses 66.99 72.98
Commission on sales 51.70 61.98
Net foreign exchange loss 14.63 -
Allowance for expecied loss / Irrecoverable advances (net) 24.72 1.25
Loss on sale/disposaldiscard of property, plam and equipments 15.17
{net)
Miscellaneous expenses 0.20 3.55
Total other expenses 4,381.45 3,574.99

/g,.
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21(a): Details of payments to auditors (excluding applicable taxes and including out of pocket expenses}

- INR in million
For the yvear ended For the year ended

o 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Payment to auditors
As auditor:
Audit fee 1.06 1.06
In other capacities
Certification and other service fees 1.30 0.35
Total payments to aunditors . 2.36 1.41

22. Income tax expense

The major components of income tax expenses for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 are:

INR in millien
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Profit or loss section
Current income tax:

Current mcorne tax charge for the year 40.46 393.07

Adjustments in respect of current incorne tax of previous years 0.18 (0.16)
40.64 392.91

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax on profits for the year 60.80 461.38

Adjustments in respect of deferred tax of previous years {4.36) (0.81)
56.44 460.57

MAT Credit

MAT credit on profits for the year (40.45) -

Adjustment in respect of MAT credit of previous years - -

Total MAT credit tax expense (40.45) -

Income tax expense reported in the State ment of Profit and 56.63 $53.48

Loss

OCI section

Tax related to items that will not be reclassified to Profir or Loss 4.76 1.17

Income tax charged to OCI 4.76 1.17

A
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Reconciliation between average effective tax rate and applicable tax rate for 31 March 2022 and 31 March
2021

B INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended

_ 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Profit before income tax 180.93 2,150.41

At India's statutory mcome tax rate of 34.944% (31 Mar 2021

34.944%) 63.22 751.44

Effect of non-deductible expenses and exempt income 15.34 3397

Effect of change in tax rate on opening deferred tax balance - 85.28

Effect of lower tax rate on temporary difference of current year (27.05) (18.10)

Effect of prior year re-assessments {4.18) 0.89

Others 9230

Income Tax expenses reported in the Statement of Profit

and Loss 56.63 853.48

23. Research and development expenditure incurred (excluding cost of acquired intangibles, finance cost,
depreciation and amortization expense) comprises:

INR in million
Revenue expenditure For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Cost of material consumed 212.62 168.40
Employee benefits expense 417.96 404.62
Utilities- power 36.76 35.28
Other expenses 291.77 _337.26
Total revenue expenditure (A) 959.11 945.56

Out of the above total expenditure, the amount of R&D expenditure transferced to Intangibles/ Intangible assets
wnder development is INR 366.38 Million {previous year INR 448.42 million). This should also be read in
conjunction with other disclosures made in the financial statements,

Capita] expenditure (equipment)

INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended

it di
Capital expenditure 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Equipment 64.18 30.08
Total capital expenditure (B) 64.18 B 30.08
Total (A+B) 1,023.29 975.64

24. Employee benelits in respect of the Company have heen calculated as under:

(A) Defined Contribution Plans

I'he Company has certain defined contribution plan such as employee state insurance, employee pension
scheme, wherein specified percentage is contributed to them. During the year, the Company has contributed

/,.

following amounts to
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- (INR in ynillion}

For the year ended For the year ended

_ - 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Employer’s contribution to provident fund (refer note 24 (b) (i) 24.40 5
Employer's contribution to employee’s pension scheme 1995 33.00 33.58
Employer's contribution to employvee state msurance 2.06 _ 2.18

(B) Defined Benefit Plans

i. Gratoity

In Accordance with Ind AS 19 “Employee benefits™ an actuarial valuation has been carried out in respect of
gratuity,

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation, perfonned by an
independent actuary, at each balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method. The discount rate
assumed is 7.2% p.a. (Previous year 6.8 % p.a.) which is determined by reference to market yield at the
Balance Sheet date on Government bonds. The retirement age has been considered at 58 years (Previous
year 58 years) and mortality table is as per IALM (2012-14) (Previous year IALM (2012-14).

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation is 10% p.a. for first three years
and 6% p.a. thereafter (Previous year 10% p.a. for first three years and 6% p.a. thereafier), taking into account
of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment
market.

The plans assets are maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India in respect of gratuity scheme for
certain employees of the Company. The details of investments maintained by Life Insurance Corporation
are not available with the Company, hence not disclosed. The expected rate of return assumed on plan assets
is 6.80 % p.a. (previous year 6.80% p.a.).

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation:

- (INR in million}

- As at As at
- 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 260.72 230.59
Current service cost 36.23 35.68
Acquisition adjustinent 1.78 3.81
Interest cost 17.73 1521
Actuarial (gain)/loss (13.63) (3.04)
Benefis paid (25.70) (21.53)
Present value of oblication at the end of the year 277.13 260.72

A~
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Fair Value of Plan Assets™*:

o (INR in milion)

As at As at

) 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Plan assets at the beginning of the year 32.07 36.26
Expected return on plan assets 2.12 2.46
Contribution by employer 2.84 212
Actual benefits paid (6.64) (9.08)
Fund management charges (0.72) 0.31
Plan assets at the end of the vear 29.67 32.07

** In respect of certain employees of Nanjangud manufacturing unit of the Company.

Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets:

- {INR in million)

R As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 277.13 260.72
Fak vahie of plan assets at the end of the year (29.67) (32.07)
Net liabilities recognised in the Balance Shest 247.46 228.65

Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss under employee benefit expense:

{INR in miltion)

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 Marech 2021
Current service cost 36.23 35.68
Interest cost 15.55 12.75
Expenses recognised in the Statement of profit and loss 51.77 43.43
Amount recognised in the other comprehensive income:
{INR in million)
Forthe yearended For the year ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Actuarial loss/(gain) on arising from change in demographic

. {1.27) 0.41
assumption
Actuarial loss/(gain) on arising from change in financial assumption (5.20)
Actuaria] loss/(gain) on arising from experience adjustment {7.17) (3.45)
Actuarial bss/(gain) on plan asseis - (0.3D

Company’s best estimate of contribution during next vear is INR 59.16 million (previous year INR 55.81

million),

As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, 100% of the plan assets were invested in insurer managed funds,

e
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Sensitivity analysis

I (INR. in million)

Particulars 31 March 2022 o 31 March 2022 ;
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increase

Sensitivity kvel 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease

Impact on defined benefit (9.15) 9.73 9.74 {9.25)

B - {INR in milliotr)

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2021 -
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increase

Sensitivity level 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease 0.5% mcrease 0.5% decrease

Impact on defined benefit (6.29) 6.61 6.59 (6.34)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the year and may not be representative of the actual change. [t is based on
a change in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.

ii. Provident Fund:

The Company made monthiy contributions to the recogmised provident fund - "VAM EMPLOYEES
PROVIDENT FUND TRUST" (a multi-employer trust) for most of its employees in India, for the period
starting with 1 April 2021 till 30 November 2021, post December 2021 these contributions are made with the
regional provident fund authority for qualifying employees. Under the scheme, the Company is required to
contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits.

The Company has contributed INR 48.30 million to Provident Fund Trust (previous year: INR 69.61million)
during the year.

(C) Other long term benefits (Compensated absences)
(INR in million}
As at As at
31 Mareh 2022 31 Moarch 2021

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 148.39 157.76

25. Fair value measurements

- - N B . (TNE in million}
31 March 2022 21 March 2021
Levebaf

Note hierarchy FVPL  Fvocs ATOTSE  pupy  pvpcy AmOTie
_ R —— - o d cost dJ cost

Financigi assets fexeluding investmendt in subsidiaries)
Trade recetvables (a) 1.937.08 1,566 27
Loans {c) 5262.61 3,306.07
Cash and cash equivalenis {a) 5.46 41.90
Orher bank balances fa} 38 56.55
Other fmancial assets o - fa} = £70 96 544,62
Total financial assets - - 6,069.54 - 5,322.01

Financial ifobilities

Bomowings (a} e &0.00 20001
Trade payables () Al 2427.84 238001
Qdwer Mnancial liabdiies {u) 635.9¢ 53611
Leasc fiabilty - {a) 137.03 197 92
Total inancial Kabilitics - T - 3.514.05
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Valuation techniques and significant unobse rvable inputs

The following table shows the valuation techniques and the significant unobhservable nputs used i determination of fair value of the
Level 3 financial instruments not measured at fair value:

a i  Inter-rejationship
Significant between key

Type Valuation technique unobservable unobservable inputs
inputs and fair valoe
meys ure me ni
Discounted cash flows: Adpsted The estimated fair
Other financial assets The valuation model discount rate:  valve would increase
considers the present valie  6.75% {decrease) if the
Loans to relaled parties of expected receipis (2021: 6.50%) adjusted discount rate
Note:

(a) Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities with short term maturities is considered as approximate to
respective carrying amount due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

(b) Fair valuation of non-current financial assets has been disclosed to be same as carrying value as there is
no significant difference between carrying value and fair value.
(c) Fair value of loans is as below :

(INR. i million)
Level Fair Value
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
L.oans 3 3274.58 3.121.04

There are no iransfers between level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year ended 31 March 2022 and
31 March 2021.

26. Financial risk management
A. Financial risk management

‘The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework.

The Company, through three layers of defense namely policies and procedures, review mechanism and
assurance aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations. The Audit commitiee of the Board with top management oversees the
formulation and implementation of the Risk management policies. The risks are identified at business unit level
and mitigation plan are identified, deliberated and reviewed at appropriate forums.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

- credit risk {(see (i});
- liquidity risk (see (i1)); and - g

- market nisk (see (iii)).
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i. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter party to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers,
loans and investments. The camrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk exposure.

Trade receivables and other financial assets

The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for
creditworthiness before the Company’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The
Company’s review includes external ratings, if they are available, financial statements, credit agency
information, industry information and business intelligence. Sale limits are established for each customer and
reviewed annually. Any sales exceeding those limits require approval from the appropriate authority as per
pelicy.

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are compared according to their credit characteristics, including
whether they are an individual or a legal entity, whether they are an institutional dealers or end-user customer,
their geographic location, industry, trade history with the Company and existence of previous financial
difficulties.

Expected credit loss for trade receivables:

Based on internal assessment which is driven by the historical experience/ current facts available in relation to
default and delays in coilection thereof, the credit risk for trade receivables is considered low. The Company
estimates its allowance for trade receivable using lifetime expected credit loss. The balance past due for more
than six month {net of expected credit loss allowance) is INR 33.90 million (Previous year INR 84.29 million)

Company’s exposure to credit risk for trade receivables using provision matrix is as follows:

(INK in million)
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

ca?r:::; J:_E:\::::; Net carrying Gross carrying Af:::::;; Nei carrying

B N . ::mmml’_ amount losses amount
Not due 1,344.36 24.46 1,319.90 1.255.21 1.24 1253.97
0-90 days 249.83 5.89 243.94 313.12 0.37 312,75
90-180 days 110.25 0.51 109.74 214.66 0.19 214.47
180-270 days 147.61 0.25 147.36 1.76 0.31 1.45
270-360 days 87.86 0.22 87.64 57.57 0.29 57.28
More than 360 davs 21.07 2.57 18.50 34.75 7.80 26.95
- 1.960.98 33.90 1.927.08 1.877.07  10.20 1,866.87

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance of trade receivables are as follows:

) [NR m million
As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Baknce at the begmning of the year 10.20 13.70
{Less) / Add: Reversed /Provided during the year (net of reversal) 2370 (3.5
Balauce at the end of the year B - 33.90 10.20

* Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring
bankruptey or failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company.
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Expected credit loss with respect to other financial assets:

With regards to all financial assets with contractual cash flows other than trade receivable, management believes
these to be high quality assets with negligible credit risk. The management believes that the parties from which
these financial assets are recoverable, have strong capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of default
is negligible and accordingly no provision for excepted credit loss has been provided on these financial assets.
Break up of financial assets other than trade receivables have been disciosed on balance sheet.

i, Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company’s treasury department is responsible for managing the short term and long term liquidity
requirements. Short term liquidity situation is reviewed daily by the treasury department. Longer term liquidity
position is reviewed on a regular basis by the Board of Directors and appropriate decisions are taken according
to the situation.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts
exclude contractual terest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

S - (TNR m million)
Contractual Cash flows (1)
31 March 2022 Canrying Total Within1  More than
Amount year 1 year

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings 640.00 640.00 640.00 ¢
Lcasc liability 137.03 137.03 65.56 71.47
Trade payables 2427.84 242784 2427.84 -
Other fmancial liabilities 685.99 685.99 685.99 -

3,890.86 3,890.86 3,819.39 71.47
TITC_ontracmal cash flow excludes mterest payable

{INR. in million)

Coatractual Cash flows (1)

31 March 2021 Carrying Total Within 1 More than
Amount year 1 year

Now-derivative financial liabilities o

Borrowings 200.01 200.01 200.01 -

Lease liability 197.92 197.92 60.40 137,52

Trade payables 2.380.01 2.380.01 2.380.01 s

Qther financial liabilities 536.11 536.11 530.11

3,314.05 3,314.05 3,176.53 137.52

(N Contractual cash flow excludes mterest pay;ble

il Market risk
Market risk ts the risk that changes in market prices such as iGrefen exchange rates and interest rates that will
affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings ef financiat instiuments The objective of market risk
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management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising
the return.

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which
sales, purchases and borrowings are denominated. The currencies in which the company is exposed 1o risk are
USD, Euro, CAD and Other.

The Company follows a natural hedge driven currency risk mitigation policy to the extent possible. Any residual
risk is evalualed and appropriate risk mitigating steps are taken.

Exposure to currency risk

The summary quantitative data about the Company’s exposure to currency risk as reported to the management
of the Company is as follows:

(TR & million)

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
o UsDh Eure CAD Other USD Euro CAD Other
Trade and other receivables 1,374.56 191.66 3287 139.03 1,407.05 205.26 92.02 73.63
Cash and cash equivakents - - - - 13.53 - . -
Trade and other payables (1.381.53)  (73.8%) (25.58) (3507 (1.289.28) (132.38) {91.34) (19.75)
Net,gtatement af fnancial 29303 117.77 729 103.86 13130 5238 0.68 53.88

pusition exposure

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening/weakening of the USD, Euro, CAD and others against all other currencies
at 31 March would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency
and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounis shown below. This analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact on forecast sales and purchases.

{INR in million)
Profit or loss (before tax}  OCI (before tax)
Strengthening Weakening rengthening Weakening

31 March 2022

USD (1% movement) 2.93 (2.93) - -
Euro (1% movement) 1.18 (1.18) - -
CAD (1% movement) 0.07 (0.07) - -
Other (1% movement) 1.04 (1.04) = =
31 March 2021

USD (1% movement} 1.31 (L.31) - -
Euro (1% movement) 0.52 (0.52) - -
CAD (1% movement) 0.01 (0.01) - .
Other (1% movement) 0.54 {0.54) - .

Interest rate risk

[nterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because funds are borrowed at
both fixed and Noating interest rates. Interest raterisk is nréasired by uxing the cash flow sensitivity for changes
in variable interest rate. The bomrowings of the Conrpany wre principaily denominated in INR 'with a mix of
fixed and floating rates of interest. The Company has exposure 1o interest rate risk, arising principally on
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changes in base lending rate. The risk is managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between
fixed and floating rate borrowings.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the
management of the Company is as follows:

The following table provides a break-up of the Company’s fixed and floating rate borrowings and floating
rate loan given:

INR in Million
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Floating rate borrowings 640.00 200.01
Floating rate loan given to uktimate holing company & fellow subsidiary 3.257.00 3.257.00

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for floating rate
liabitities assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the year-end was outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 25 basis points higher / lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Company’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2022 would decrease / increase by INR 1.60 million (previous
year decrease / increase by INR 0.50 millions). This is mainly attributable to the Company’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

27. Segment reporting

Board of Directors of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision maker (CODM) as
defined by Ind AS 108, “Operating Segments”. Operating Segments have been defined and presented based
on the regular review by the CODM to assess the performance of segment and to make decision about
allocation of resources. Accordingly, the Company has determined pharmaceutical as the only reportable
segmen.

Information about Geographical segments:

The geographical information analyses the Company’s revenue (other than other operating revenue) and non-
current assets by the Company’s country of domicile and other countries. In presenting the geographical
information, segment revenue has been based on the geographical location of customers and segment assets
were based on the geographical location of the assets.

INR in million

For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Primary geograpbical markels

India 2513.02 2,081.91
Americas and Europe 1.116.92 273471
Rest of the world 2,589.90 - 2358.54
Total 12,219.84 a 14,175.16

/}-'
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o TNR. in million
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 Margh 2021

Non-current assets (by geographical location of assets)*
Within India 16,527.18 ) 16,967.33

16.327.18 16,967.33

*Non-current assets are excluding financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

Major customers comprising more than 10% of total revenue

INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals inc. 2,082.79 3,960.62
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc. 1.416.26 1.003.91

28. Capital management

Risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are lo:
» safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide retumns for its

shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
» maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital siructure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing
ratio:

Net debt {total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances) divided by ‘Total
equity’ (as shown in the Balance Sheet).

The gearing ratios were as follows:

INR in million

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Net debt 630.71 95.56
25.376.34 2524317

Total equity
Net debt to equity ratio

0.02 0.00

29. Related Party Disclosures

i) Related parties of the Company

Ultimate Holding Company N
Jubilant Pharmova Limited

A "
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Holding Company
Jubilant Pharma Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries (including partnership firm)
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC

Jubilant Biosys Limited

Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc.

Jubilant DraxImage Inc.

Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc.

Jubilant Life Sciences (USA) Inc. (Till February 1, 2021)
Jubilant Clinsys Inc.

Jubilant Pharma Australia Pty Limited

Jubilant Draximage Radiopharmacies Inc.

Jubilant Draximage Limited

Jubilant Infrastructure Limited (Till February 1, 2021)
Jubilant Pharma South Africa Pty Limited

Jubilant Business Services Limited

Trialstat Solutions Inc.

Jubilant Pharma UK Limited

Jubilant HollisterStier General Partnership

Subsidiary
Jubilant Pharma NV

Step-down Subsidiaries
Jubilant Pharmaceuticals NV
PSI Supply NV

Other Entities

Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited

Vam Employees Provident Fund Trust

Jubilant Enpro Private Limited

Jubilant Bhartia Foundation

Jubilant Ingrevia Limited

Jubilant Foodworks Limited (with effect from July 19, 2021)

Jubilant Life Sciences Limited (Sanghai) (with effect from March 31, 2022¥x,
Jubilant Sports Car Pvt. Limited (with effect from October 21, 2021)

Directors

Ms. Sudha Pillai

Mr. Pramod Yadav

Mr. Anant Pandc (Joined on 14th May 2019) Resigned effective from 31 March-2022

Mr. Jasdeepsingh Gurdeepsingh Soad

Mr. Arvind Chekhany — Appointed as Director with effect from June 3, 202}

Mr. Ramamurthi Kumar — Appointed as Whole time Direcior with effect from April 01, 2022

Mr. Christopher Stanely Krawtschuk — Appointeda é-j_ Diréetor witk effect from June 3.2021

N
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______ B B INR i million
G .Parliculars - i For the year ended| For the year ended
IDe.';r:ription of Transactions: BIRAGTSR 211224 31 March 2021
Sales of goods and services: o - ]
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. B 2.082.79 3,960.62
Jubilant Pharma Holdngs Inc. - 1.416.26 1,003.91
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC. 0.18 =
PSI Supply NV 239.43 260.13
Jubilant Biosys Ltd. - 1.69
Jubilant Pharma SA (Pty) Ltd 47.15 -
3,785.81 5,226.35
Rental and other expenses:
Jubitant Pharmova Limited 80.21 79.38
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 10,78 0.80
90.99 80.18
Purchase of goods and services:
Jubfant Pharmova Limited - 90.79
Jubilant Pharma Australia Pty Limited 3.01 2.57
Jubilant Clnsys Inc. J 14.97
Jubilant Biosys Limited 20.19 1.97
Jubilant Pharma SA (Pty) Lid 16.38] 11.63
Jubilant Business Services Limited 60.05 66.14
Jubllant Pharma UK Ltd 17.66 -
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 2.49 -
119.78 188.07
Interest income
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 197.38 186.85
Jubilart Draxinage Limited 0.42 0.46
197.80 187.31
Sale of Merchandise Exports from India Scheme scrip:
Jubiant Pharmova Limited B 5.00
- 5.00|
Sale of Intangible assets & Imtangibles under devole pment . B
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticak Inc. B 522.61
—— B ~ 522.61 -

A
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Si.No

iParticulars

‘incscn‘_plio'ﬁ ﬁfTransactious:

For the year ended
31 March 2022

INR m million

For the year ended
31 March 2021

7 |Recovery of expenses:
Jubifant HollisterStier General Partnership 20.58| 20.5]
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC 5131 46.94
Jubilant Pharmova Limited - 524
{Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc 29.33 19.08]
[Jubitant Biosys Limited 1.68 21.56
Jubilant Draximage Inc. 87.05 ~ 53.08]
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc. 73.54 65.46
Jubilant Draximage Radiopharmacies Inc. 16.57 13.81
Jubilant Pharma Limited 1.43 1.43
Jubilant Business Services Limited 0.23 0.27
Jubilant Enpro Private Limited = 0.73
\Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited 5.98 0.06
[Jubilant [ngrevia Limited - - 100
Jubilant Pharmaceuticals NV - 1.33
| 297.75 250.50
8 Purchase of property plant and equipment:
\Jubilant Pharmova Limited - 373
Jubilant Sports Cars Private Limited 11.40 -
1140 3.73
9 Reimbursement of expenses: !
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc, 84.37 83.43
Jubilant Draximage Inc. 0.03| 0.10
|Jubilant Biosys Limited - 0.83
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 150.74 134.73
Jubilant Pharmaceuticals NV 51.63 gL13
|PS1 Supply NV 2.68) 0.83
Jubilant Phamma Limited 9.85  69.68
Jubilant Pharma Holdmes Inc. 291.44 317.14
Jubilant Pharma Australia Pty Linited 1.33| -
Jubikant Business Services Limited 0.02| 0.35
Jubilant Pharma Sowuth Africa Pty Lmited 1.08 0.12
HJubilant Infrastructure Limited . 0.03
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 129.87 17.87
Jubilant Food Works Limited 0.92
Jubilant Life Sciences (Shanghai) Ltd 27.11 -
1 “ 838.07 706.24)

)
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- INR n million
Sr.No Particulars For the year endedI For the year ended
: —r = 31 March 2022/ 31 March 2021
:Descriptien of Traosactlions:
10 Donations: ]
{Jubilant Bharta Foundation 28.50i §0.20
' 28.50| 10.20
11 Remuneration and Related Expenses®: i ]
Mr. Jasdeep Singh Sood 20.40 16.47
Mr. Anil Srivastava ) - 8.51
- ~ 2040] ) 24.98
12 Sitting fees:
Ms. Sudha Pillai 0.36 0.41
0.36 0.41
13 Company's Contribution to PF Trust : -
Vam Employee Provident Fund Trust 48.30 69.61
48.30 69.61
INR in million
Sr.No Particulars As at

31 March 2022 31 March 20_21‘
|

| Amount Outs tandings_:_
Trade payables:
Jubilant DraxImage inc. 0.07 o 0.02
Jubitant HollisterStier General Partnership 0.35 49.47
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC - 40.15
Jubilant Pharmova Linited 59.56 106.36
Jubilarit Pharma Holdings Tnc. 149.23 150.11
Jubilant Biosys Limited 5.98 0.85
Jubilant Pharmaceuticals NV 39.56) ~ 54.19,
Jubilant Pharma Ausgalia Pty Limited 1.10| .16
PSI Supply NV 0.38 20.77
Jubilant Business services Limaed 0.59 20.48
| Jubilant Pharma SA (Pty) Ltd 3.69 1.46
Jubilant Pharma Limited 28.37 -
Jubilant Life Sciences (Shanghai) Ltd 27.11
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 6.88 -
Jubilant Phanna UK Lid 4,00 2.93
327.37 447.95
2 Other payables: |
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticak Inc. 394,66 _ 317.07|
394.66 317.07
3 |Advnm:c from customers -
| Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 4 560.17 960.13
560.17 960.13
i4 |Employee benefits payable |
| Vam Employees Provident Fund Trust . 16.37]
| o : 1637

; l

-
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. . o N INR m millien

[Sr.No  [Particulars - B I B As at
- | 31 March2022 31 March 2021

5 Interest receivable: N _ - )
Jubilant Pharmeva Limited 16.77 14,04
Uublant Draximage Linited [ o4 0.18
! - _ 16.91 14.22
6 Receivable against inter corporate deposit
\Jubilant Pharmova Limitcd - _ 3,250.00 3250.00
|Jubilant Draximage Limited 7.00 700
_ 3,257.00 3,257.00
7 Trade receivables: |
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc. 303.49 58.33
Jubilant Pharmaceuticals NV - 21.86
PS! Supply NV 221.04 196.56
Jubilant Biosys Limited 10.12 -
Jubilant Pharma SA (Pty) Ltd - 48.59 -
583.24 276.75
8 Other receivables:

Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 546.35 16.74
Jubilant Biosys Limited 1.53 5.13
Jubilant Draximage Inc. 31.35 60.21
Jubilant Draximage Radiophannacies Inc. B - 8.16 7.1
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC 20.54 34.89
Jubilant HollisterStier General Partnership | 14.32 54.62
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc. - 25.50 140.20
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 10.24 10.25
Jubilanl Ingrevia Limited | 6.09 0.50
Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited | .Y 1.25
Jubilant Enpro Private Limited = 1.16
Jubilant Pharma Limited 0.18 0.92
669.73 333.57
' 9 Loan to Jubilant Draximage Limited amounting to INR 7 million was extended for a period of 1 year |

during the current year.

* As the liabilities for the gratuity and compensated absences are provided on an actmarial basis, and
calculated for the company as a whole, the said liabilities pertaining specifically to KMP are not known and

hence, not included in the above table.

Breakup of remuneration 1o key management personnel were as follows:

{INR m million)

As at 31 March As at 31 March

) 2022 2021
Short term employment benefits 19.56 23.93
Post employment benefiis 0.84 1.05

N
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30. Contingent liabilities to the extent not provided for:

Claims agaiust the Company, disputed by the Company, not acknowledged as debt:

(INR in mitlion)

Asg at 31 March As at 31 March

2022 2021

Service Tax 0.79 0.79
Central Excise 7.83 7.87
Customs 4,44 26.33
Goods and Service Tax 11.18 11.18
Others 153.31 142.08

Including claims in respect of business acquired from Jubilant Pharmova Limited (formerly known as
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited), though the litigations may be continuing in the name of Jubilant Pharmova
Limited (formerly known as Jubilant Life Sciences Limnited), however any liability arising in future relating
to these disputes will be borne by the Company.

Additionally, the Company is involved in other disputes, lawsuits, claims, governmental and/ or regulatory
inspections, inquiries, investigations and proceedings, including commercial matters that arise from time to
time in the ordinary course of business.

The Company believes that none of these matters, either individually or in aggregate, are expected to have
any material adverse effect on its financial statements.

In July 2021, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“USFDA™) placed the Roorkee facility under import
alert, which restricts supplies to the USA from the Roorkee facility. However, the USFDA. exempted certain
products from the import alert subject to certain conditions. The Company continues to engage with the
USFDA and take all necessary steps, including comprehensive assessment and engaging independent
consultants, to ensure further controls to resolve the import alert at the earliest and ensure Current Good
Manufacturing Practices {CGMP) compliance for the Roorkee facility. No other regulatory agency so far
suggested or recommended similar action for any other market and/or product. Manufacturing and supply
of pharmaceutical products is continuing from Roorkee facility to all markets and for non-restricted products
to the USA.

The above does not include all other obligations resulting from claims, legal pronouncements having
financial impact in respect of which the Company generally perforins the assessment based on the external
legal opinion and the amount of which cannot be reliably estimated.

31, Commitinents as at period end

a) Capital Commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) is [INR 404.46
million (previous year INR 271.45 miilion).

b) Other Commitments:

Export obligation undertaken by the Company under EPCG scheme to be completed over a period of six
vears on account of import of Capital Goods at concessional import duty and remaining outstanding is INR
385.54 million (previous year INR 78.42 million). Similarly, export obligation under Advance License
Scheme/DFIA scheme on duty free import of specific raw_materinls. remaining outstanding is INR120.02
(previous year INR 311.86 million). S EL R e

=

58



Jubilant Generics Limited
Naotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

32. Disclosure pursuant to section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of unsecured loans to group
companies [Refer note 29]:

- INR i million

p ‘e I 31 March 31 March

urpose ol term loan - 2022 2021

General business purpose and
) mterest rate
Outstanding as at the begnning of the period between 5.25% to 6,75% p.a. 3257.00 3.257.00
Outstanding as at the end of the period (Previous vear 5.50%10 6.50% p . 1 3257.00 3257.00
33. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expense
{INR in million)
Particnlars o 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Prescribed CSR expenditure as per Section 135 of the Companies

Act 2013 30.55 19.05

Details of CSR spent during the period
a) Construction / acquisition of any asset - .
b) On purposes other than (a) above (1) 30.55 19.05

{1} Included in Donation — Refer note 29

34. Government grant recoverable INR 22.78 million (Previous year INR 129.27 million} and Government grant
recognized INR 53.65 million (Previous year INR 187.53 million) in Statement of Profit and T.oss.

35. Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the company owes dues, which are outstanding
for more than 45 days as at the end of period. The information as required to be disclosed in relation to Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the
basis of information available with the Company.

INR in million
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Particulars

The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end =~
of the peried

The interest due on principal amount remaining unpaid to any
supplier as at the end of the period

The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16
of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 (MSMED Act). along with the amount of the payment made
to the supplier beyond the appointed day durig the period

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day dwing the period) but without adding the interest specified
under the MSMED Act

The amount of mierest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
the period

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in
the succeeding vears, until such date when the mterest dues as
above are actually paid te the small emtetprise, for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductble experndinure under the MSMED Act

p .

33.08 42.91

0.03 0.35

0.03 0.35
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36. Earnings per share

For the year ended

For the year

, ended
31 March 2022 '31 March 2021
Profit for basic and diluted carnings per share of INR 10 each [NR in milion 12430 1296.92
Weighted average no. of shares outstanding during the peried Nos 25.79.665 25,79,665
Basic (INR) INR 48.18 502,75
Drtuted (INR) INR 48.18 502.75
37. Leases
Leases under Ind AS 116 for the period ended 31 March 2022
The details of the right-of-use assets held by the Company is as follows:
INR in million
Operating Operating Finance
. ) . . Total
Description Building Vehicle Vehicle (a+bte)
(a) (b) (c)
Gross carrying value as at 1 April 2021 269.55 1.94  10.27 281.76
Additions/adjustments 4.94 0.00 1.40 6.34
Deductions/adustments {3.36) - - (8.36)
Gross carrying value as at 31 March 2022 266.13 1.94 11.67 279.74
Accumulated amortisation as at 1 April 2021 101.00 1.36 2.7 105.07
Amortisation charge for the period 56.12 0.57 286 59.55
Deductions/adjustments - . z ’
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2022 157.12 1.93 5.57 164.62
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2022 109.01 0.01 6.10 115.12
Net carrying value as at 1 April 2021 168.55 0.58 7.56 176.69
INR in million
Operating Operating Finance Total
Deseription Building Vehicle Vehicle (a+bte)
(a) (b) {c)
Gross carrying value as at 1 April 2020 219.56 1.94 19.4 240.94
Additions/adjustments 49.99 0.00 5.74 55.73
Deductions/adjustments - - {14.9D) (14.91)
Gross carrying value as at 31 March 2020 269.55 1.94 10.27 281.76
Accumulated amortisation as at 1 April 2020 46.49 0.68 11,00 58.17
Amortisation charge for the period 54.51 0.68 438 59.57
Deductions/adjustments - - {12.67 (12,67
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2021 10¢1.00 1.36 2.71 105.07
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2021 168.55 0.58 7.56 176.69

# INR 14 million (previous year INR 17.27 million) amertisation capitalised during the period,

-
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Amount recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss:

INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
‘31 March 2022 ‘31 March 2021

Interest on lease fiabilities # 14.92 ©19.69
Rental expense relating to short term leases 5.90 1.01
Total 20.82 2070

# INR 2.39 million (Previous year INR 5.26 million) interest has been capitalised during the period.
Amount recognised in statement of cash flows:
INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
‘31 March 2022 '31 March 2021

Total cash outflow for leases (67.23) (53.58)
Total (67.23) (53.58)

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to new lease liabilities is 7.20% {previous year
9.16%).

38. The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as
required by the transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Income-tax Act, 1961. Since the law
requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Company is in
the process of updating the documentation for the specified domestic transactions entered into with the specified
persons and the international transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the financial year
and expects such records to be in existence before the due date of filing of income tax return. The management
is of the opinion that its specified domestic transactions and international transactions are at arm’s length so

3, that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of
tax expense and that of provision for taxation.

A
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 20272

40. The Scheme of Armrangement (“the Scheme”) for demerger of the Active Phanmaceuticals Ingredients
business undertaking of Jubilant Generics Limited (“JGL”) and vesting of the same with the Jubilant
Pharmova Limited (Ultimate Holding Company) on a going concern basis, with an appointed date of 1 April
2022 was approved by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench (“the Tribunal”) vide its
order (“the Order”) dated 23 May 2022. The Company is in the process of filing the certified copy of the
Order from the Tribunal with the Registrar of Companies for registration in terms the requirements under the
Companies Act, 2013, to make the Scheme effective upon such filing.

41. Transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560

of Companies Act, 1956: .
A .« (INR m million)

Nature of i Relationshi
Name of struck off company Transaction Balance outstanding with the strucl:k
As at 31 March As at 31 March  off company, if
2022 2021 any
Advance for
Rachana Rubbers Private Limited supply of goods 0.60 0.00
and services

42. Additionai Information :

2) No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

b} The Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

¢) The Company has not entered any transactions with the companics struck off under section 248 of the
Companies Act,2013, or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 except as disclosed in financial statements
{refer Note 41).

d) There are no transaction which has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assesstnents under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

€) There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the stamtory period.

f) There are no funds which have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Company or
1)) Provide any gnarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

g) There are no funds which have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall:

1) directly or indircetly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (*
Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Funding Partv or
i) Provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

l.) The Company (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016)

does not have any Core investment Company.

A S
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Jubilaat Generics Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

43. Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified to confirm to current period’s classification.

For BSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Jubilant Generics Limited

ICAIl Finn Registration Number.: 101248 WAW-100022

Manish Gupta
Parmer

Membership Neo: 695037

Place: Noida
Date: 26 May 2022

-;\\ P
--"\?,’f‘v f/

U_.r» \\\/
Ranlam\mhi Kumar
Director
DIN: 09139426

Place: Noida
Date: 26 May 2022

cpsingh Y,
Gurde® psingh Sood
Whole-time Director
DIN: 03383578

Place: Noida
Date: 26 May 2022
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